
AGENDA
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is specified below.
Meeting Location: Mammoth Lakes Suite Z, 437 Old Mammoth Rd, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Regular Meeting
July 20, 2021

TELECONFERENCE INFORMATION
The meeting will be held in person and via teleconferencing, as authorized by Governor Newsom’s Executive
Order, N-29-20, dated March 17, 2020, with members of the Board attending from separate remote locations.
This hybrid format recognizes that the state is moving beyond the Blueprint for a Safer Economy beginning
June 15, 2021. 

Members of the public may participate in person, or via the Zoom Webinar, including listening to the meeting
and providing public comment, by following the instructions below. If you are unable to join the Zoom Webinar
of the Board meeting, you may still view the live stream of the meeting by visiting
http://monocounty.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=759e238f-a489-40a3-ac0e-a4e4ae90735d

To join the meeting by computer: 
Visit https://monocounty.zoom.us/j/98473303562
Or visit https://www.zoom.us/, click on "Join A Meeting" and enter the Zoom Webinar ID 984 7330 3562. 
To provide public comment, press the “Raise Hand” button on your screen. 

To join the meeting by telephone: 
Dial (669) 900-6833, then enter Zoom Webinar ID 984 7330 3562. 
To provide public comment, press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to mute/unmute. 

NOTE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 932-5530 or bos@mono.ca.gov. Notification 48
hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (See 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 35.130).
Full agenda packets are available for the public to review in the Office of the Clerk of the Board (Annex I - 74
North School Street, Bridgeport, CA 93517) and online. Any writing distributed less than 72 hours prior to the
meeting will be available for public inspection in the Office of the Clerk of the Board and online. 
ON THE WEB: You can view the upcoming agenda at http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos. If you would like to
receive an automatic copy of this agenda by email, please subscribe to the Board of Supervisors Agendas on
our website at http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos.
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY TIME, ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR EITHER THE MORNING OR
AFTERNOON SESSIONS WILL BE HEARD ACCORDING TO AVAILABLE TIME AND PRESENCE OF
INTERESTED PERSONS. PUBLIC MAY COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS AT THE TIME THE ITEM IS
HEARD.

Page 1 of 7

mailto:bos@mono.ca.gov
http://http//monocounty.ca.gov/bos
http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos


9:00 AM Call meeting to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items of public interest that
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Speakers may be limited in
speaking time dependent upon the press of business and number of persons
wishing to address the Board.) Please refer to the Teleconference Information
section to determine how to make public comment for this meeting via Zoom.

2. RECOGNITIONS

A. Pretrial, Probation, and Parole Week Proclamation
Departments: Probation
5 minutes

(Dylan Whitmore, Deputy Probation Officer) - Proposed proclamation recognizing
the efforts of the Probation Department and proclaiming the week of July 18-24,
2021, Pretrial, Probation and Parole Week.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed proclamation. Provide any desired
direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact.

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE

CAO Report regarding Board Assignments
Receive brief oral report by County Administrative Officer (CAO) regarding work
activities.

4. DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS

Receive brief oral report on emerging issues and/or activities.

5. CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Contract for Assessor's Counsel
Departments: Assessor

Proposed contract with Michael K. Slattery of Lamb & Kawakami LLP pertaining
to outside counsel services for the Mono County Assessor.

Recommended Action: Approve County entry into proposed contract and
authorize Barry Beck to execute said contract on behalf of the County. Provide
any desired direction to staff.

Page 2 of 7



Fiscal Impact: The Assessor’s Office has appropriated $50,000 for legal
services in the approved county budget for 2021-2022. The ultimate fiscal impact
depends, however, on the number and complexity of assessments that are
appealed.

B. Behavioral Health Department Restructure
Departments: Behavioral Health

Proposed Resolution Authorizing the County Administrative Officer to Amend the
County of Mono List of Allocated Positions to Remove One (1.0) FTE Behavioral
Health Services Coordinator II and One (1.0) FTE Behavioral Health Services
Coordinator I and add One (1.0) FTE Behavioral Health Services Coordinator III
and One (1.0) FTE Fiscal Technical Specialist III.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution. Provide any desired
direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: The salary ranges of the removed positions are $57,424-
$69,799 for the Behavioral Health Services Coordinator II and $52,023-$63,234
for Behavioral Health Services Coordinator I. The salary ranges for the added
positions are $63,385-$77,045 for the Behavioral Health Services Coordinator III
and $48,308-$58,719 for the Fiscal Technical Specialist III. Assuming the “A
Step” of each position, this is an additional $2,246 in funding, excluding the cost
of benefits.  This staffing restructure was not included in the approved budget for
FY 2021-2022.

C. Used Oil Opportunity Grant (OPP12) Application
Departments: Public Works - Solid Waste

Proposed resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors authorizing the
Director of Public Works to submit and execute on behalf of Mono County an
application to the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery for the
Used Oil Payment Program, fiscal years 2021-22 through 2025-26 (12th through
16th cycle).

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution. Provide any desired
direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: $10,000 revenue per year to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, to
maintain used oil collection programs throughout the County.

D. Claim for Damages - Adam Flores
Departments: Risk Management

Claim for damages filed by Adam Flores, related to alleged personal injury during
a vehicle collision involving a county vehicle. 

Recommended Action: Deny the claim submitted by Megeredchian Law on

Page 3 of 7



behalf of Adam Flores, direct the Risk Manager, in consultation with County
Counsel, to send notice to the claimant of the denial.

Fiscal Impact: None at this time.
E. Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement

Departments: Sheriff

Interagency Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement made and entered into by
and between the County of Inyo on behalf of its Sheriff’s Department and District
Attorney’s Office, the City of Bishop on behalf of its Police Department, and
Mono County, on behalf of its Sheriff’s Department.

Recommended Action: Recommend that the Chair sign the Interagency Mutual
Aid and Joint Training Agreement on behalf of Mono County.

Fiscal Impact: None.

6. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any item
of correspondence listed on the agenda.

A. Application for Alcoholic Beverage License - Mono Inn LLC

An application to the State of California Department of Alcoholic Beverage
Control for Alcoholic Beverage License by Mono Inn LLC doing business as
Mono Inn located at 55620 Highway 395, Lee Vining, CA 93541.

B. Proposed Southern California Edison Control-Silver Peak Project Notice

A notice regarding the proposed Southern California Edison Control-Silver Peak
Project. 

7. REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

A. 2021 Supervisorial Redistricting Update
Departments: CAO
20 minutes

(Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Christian Milovich, Assistant County Counsel) -
Presentation by staff regarding the 2021 Redistricting Process, including
discussion about public outreach, scheduling public hearings and creation of
informational website.

Recommended Action: Advise staff to schedule public hearings, create
website and implement plan for public outreach. Provide any desired direction to
staff.

Page 4 of 7



Fiscal Impact: None.
B. COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update

Departments: CAO, Public Health
30 minutes

(Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Bryan Wheeler, Public Health Director) - Update on
Countywide response and planning related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Discussion of planning for changes to County operations as the State moves into
its "Beyond the Blueprint" stage, including, but not limited to: status of emergency
declarations; returning to in-person County meetings; returning remote
employees to work.

Recommended Action: None, informational only.

Fiscal Impact: None.
C. Mono County Audit Reports for FY 2019-20

Departments: Finance
45 minutes

(Janet Dutcher, Finance Director) - Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and the Single Audit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020.

Recommended Action: None. Presentation and discussion only.

Fiscal Impact: None. 
D. Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 2.68 of the Mono County

Code "Personnel System"
Departments: County Counsel and Human Resources
10 minutes

(Stacey Simon, County Counsel, Ryan Roe, Acting HR Director) - Proposed
ordinance repealing Mono County Code Chapter 2.68 "Personnel System" which
has been superseded by Personnel Rules negotiated between the County and
each of its employee bargaining units and adding language to Chapter 2.68
instead referencing the Personnel Rules.

Recommended Action: Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of
proposed ordinance. Provide any desired direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: None.
E. Ordinance Amending Mono County Code Section 3.52.050 - Assessment

Appeals Boards
Departments: County Counsel and Clerk

Page 5 of 7



5 minutes

(Stacey Simon, County Counsel, Scheereen Dedman, Acting Clerk-Recorder-
Registrar) - Proposed ordinance amending Mono County Code Section 3.52.050
to align with changes in state law which eliminated specified qualifications for
members of County Assessment Appeals Boards in counties with populations
under 200,000.

Recommended Action: Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of
proposed ordinance. Provide any desired direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: None.
F. Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.28 of the County Code - Camping

Departments: Public Works
10 minutes

(Tony Dublino, Director of Public Works) - Ordinance amending Chapter 7.28
Camping. Extends existing prohibitions on camping in county parks to include
county recreational facilities and community centers and associated parking
areas.  Also prohibits camping on paved county roads and within their rights-of-
way. Provides exceptions relating to emergencies, special uses and where
otherwise authorized by action of the Board of Supervisors. 

Recommended Action: Following the Board's July 6th introduction of this item,
it was discovered that the template ordinance used to make the proposed
revisions to Chapter 7.28 was out-of-date and did not reflect amendments made
to that Chapter in 2016.  The attached Ordinance proposes the same changes
proposed on July 6th, includes the additional changes the Board directed on July
6th, and adds the omitted 2016 changes.  Because it is substantively different
from what was introduced on July 6th, the Board must start the adoption process
over.  Accordingly, it is recommended that the Board today introduce, read title,
and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance.

Fiscal Impact: None.
G. Countywide Solid Waste Services

Departments: Public Works - Solid Waste
30 minutes

(Justin Nalder, Solid Waste Superintendent) - Discussion of Proposals and
Recommendation for next steps on Countywide Solid Waste Services.

Recommended Action: Receive summary report on the work of the evaluation
committee and provide any direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: A precise fiscal impact is unknown at this time. Fiscal impact will
be significantly different between alternatives, but it is clear there will be financial
impacts to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, the General Fund and to the citizens

Page 6 of 7



of Mono County by way of tipping fees. These impacts may carry over into the
General Fund if not offset by increased tipping fees. Today’s item will provide a
sense of assumed fiscal impacts, with a more precise fiscal impact possible
upon the presentation of a negotiated final agreement, as directed by the Board.

8. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items of public interest that
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Speakers may be limited in
speaking time dependent upon the press of business and number of persons
wishing to address the Board.) Please refer to the Teleconference Information
section to determine how to make public comment for this meeting via Zoom.

9. CLOSED SESSION

A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Bob Lawton, Stacey Simon,
Janet Dutcher, and Anne Frievalt. Employee Organization(s): Mono County
Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's Association), Local 39 -
majority representative of Mono County Public Employees (MCPE) and Deputy
Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County Paramedic Rescue Association
(PARA), Mono County Public Safety Officers Association (PSO). Unrepresented
employees: All.

B. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

C. Closed Session - Public Employment

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT. Government Code section 54957. Title: Paramedic I.

D. Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION.
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: One.

10. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

The Board may, if time permits, take Board Reports at any time during the
meeting and not at a specific time.

ADJOURN

Page 7 of 7



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Probation
TIME REQUIRED 5 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Dylan Whitmore, Deputy Probation
OfficerSUBJECT Pretrial, Probation, and Parole Week

Proclamation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed proclamation recognizing the efforts of the Probation Department and proclaiming the week of July 18-24, 2021,
Pretrial, Probation and Parole Week.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed proclamation. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact.

CONTACT NAME: Dylan Whitmore

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5570 / dwhitmore@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Proclamation

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/9/2021 2:46 PM County Counsel Yes

 6/10/2021 9:19 AM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25794&ItemID=13399

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25795&ItemID=13399


 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MAILING: P.O. BOX 596, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
                                                                     BRIDGEPORT OFFICE (760) 932-5570•FAX (760) 932-5571 
                                                                        MAMMOTH OFFICE (760) 924-1730•FAX (760) 924-1731 

   
Mark Magit 
Presiding Judge 
Superior Court 
 

  

 
Dr. Karin Humiston  
Chief Probation Officer 
 

                                                     
                                                     

 

 
Date:  May 12, 2021 
 
To:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation 
 
Subject:  Pre-trial, Probation and Parole Supervision Week 
 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
Adopt proposed Resolution recognizing Pretrial, Probation and Parole Supervision 
Week. 
 
Discussion 
 
During the week of July 18th through the 24th, 2021, the essential responsibilities 
performed by probation, parole, and community supervision professionals will be 
honored nationwide.  
 
Today in America, there are over 5 million adults on community supervision, and most 
of these individuals are monitored by pretrial, probation, and parole officers. Monitoring 
may take the form of home contacts, drug testing, making sure the offender attends 
counseling sessions and helping offenders to find suitable housing and employment. 
Many officers also supervise offenders using electronic monitoring equipment which 
requires expert knowledge of newer technologies. 
 
Budget shortfalls and changing laws mean that community corrections professionals 
must be creative in finding solutions to make sure those they supervise have the 
support needed to find jobs, housing, and treatment. By collaborating with community 
leaders and volunteering their own time off work, many officers are making a difference 
while faced with expanding caseloads and additional responsibilities. 
 



 
Members of our community are encouraged to join together during Pretrial, Probation, 
Parole Supervision Week to honor those who work to make our communities a safer 
place to live. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
No fiscal impact to the General Fund. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Pretrial, Probation and Parole Supervision Week Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

PRETRIAL, PROBATION AND PAROLE WEEK PROCLAMATION 
JULY 18 – 24, 2021 

 

 
WHEREAS, community corrections is an essential part of the justice system; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals uphold the law with dignity, while 

recognizing the right of the public to be safe-guarded from criminal activity; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals are responsible for supervising adult and 

juvenile offenders in the community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals are trained professionals who provide 

services and referrals for offenders; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals work in partnership with community 

agencies and groups; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals promote prevention, intervention and 

advocacy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals provide services, support, and protection 

for victims; and, 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals advocate community, evidence-based 

practices and restorative justice; and 
 

WHEREAS, community corrections professionals are a force for positive change in their 

communities. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mono County Board of Supervisors proclaims the week of July 18 

– 24, 2021, Pretrial, Probation and Parole Week.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of July 2021, by the Mono County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

 
__________________________________         ___________________________________ 
  Jennifer Kreitz, Supervisor District #1           Rhonda Duggan, Supervisor District #2 
 
 

 

__________________________________ 
Bob Gardner, Supervisor District #3 

 

 

 
__________________________________           __________________________________  
   John Peters, Supervisor District #4                      Stacy Corless, Supervisor District #5               



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Assessor
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Contract for Assessor's Counsel

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed contract with Michael K. Slattery of Lamb & Kawakami LLP pertaining to outside counsel services for the Mono
County Assessor.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve County entry into proposed contract and authorize Barry Beck to execute said contract on behalf of the County.
Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Assessor’s Office has appropriated $50,000 for legal services in the approved county budget for 2021-2022. The
ultimate fiscal impact depends, however, on the number and complexity of assessments that are appealed.

CONTACT NAME: Emily Fox

PHONE/EMAIL: 410-627-8893 / efox@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report re Contract for Outside Counsel Services for Assessor

 Agreement for Services of Outside Counsel

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/14/2021 12:43 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25747&ItemID=13492

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25757&ItemID=13492


 7/8/2021 1:32 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 
County Counsel 
Stacey Simon 
 
Assistant County Counsels 
Christian E. Milovich 
Anne L. Frievalt 
 
Deputy County Counsel 
Emily R. Fox 

OFFICE OF THE 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Mono County 

 
South County Offices 

P.O. BOX 2415 
MAMMOTH LAKES, CALIFORNIA 93546 

Telephone 
760-924-1700 

Facsimile 
760-924-1701 

____________ 
 

Paralegal 
Kevin Moss 

 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Emily Fox 
 
Date:  July 20, 2021 
 
Re: Consent agenda item re Contract for Outside Counsel Services for Assessor 
 
 The Mono County Assessor’s Office had a contract in place for outside counsel 
services with Brett Price. Unfortunately, Brett passed away and the Assessor’s Office 
needs to retain new outside counsel. 
  
 Michael Slattery has over 34 years of practice with an expertise in several aspects 
of real estate law, including real property assessment appeals. Mr. Slattery received his 
law degree from the University of Southern California. Some of his representative 
matters include representation of the San Francisco Assessor in property tax appeals of 
office buildings at 555 California Street (the Bank of America building), One Market 
Plaza, the Embarcadero Center, and appeals of enrolled values of the Ferry Building, the 
S.F. Giants baseball stadium, and the Mirant Potrero power plant. Mr. Slattery also 
served on the San Francisco Assessment Appeals Board No. 3. He has also had 
experience representing property owners in appeals in Los Angeles, Orange, and San 
Diego counties. Mr. Slattery’s experience and expertise will be a valuable asset to the 
Assessor’s Office. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The Assessor’s Office has in the approved county budget for 2021-2022 $50,000 
budgeted for legal services. The ultimate fiscal impact depends, however, on the number 
and complexity of assessments that are appealed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions on this matter prior to your meeting, please call me at 924-
1712. 
 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

SERVICES OF SPECIAL COUNSEL 
 

(Property Tax Assessment Appeals and Litigation) 
 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES OF SPECIAL COUNSEL (the "Agreement") is made and 
entered into effective as of this 20th day of July 2021, by and between the COUNTY OF MONO, a 
political subdivision of the State of California (the "County"), and LAMB & KAWAKAMI LLP and 
MICHAEL K. SLATTERY (collectively "Attorney"). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Assessor ("Assessor") requires advice and representation by special 
private counsel in connection with proceedings before the Mono County Board of Equalization (the 
"Board") in relation to various applications for changed assessment now pending before the Board, 
which have been previously litigated before the Board, and which may be filed with the Board in the 
future (the "Appeals"), appeal(s) from determinations of the Board therein, resulting or related litigation 
and various other property tax matters; 
 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors, under the provisions of Section 31000 of the 
Government Code, is empowered to contract for such special legal services; 
 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors has determined that the Assessor should be advised 
and represented by special private counsel in proceedings before the Board, appeals therefrom, in 
resulting or related litigation, and in various other property tax matters because of actual, potential or 
apparent conflicts of interest, the complex and technical nature of such matters, and the skill, experience 
and competence of Attorney in relation to such matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, Attorney is specially trained, skilled, experienced, and competent to perform the special 
legal services required by the Assessor, and the Assessor desires to retain the services of Attorney 
pursuant to the terms, covenants, and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, conditions and terms 
contained herein, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. Term 
 
The term of this Agreement shall be from July 20, 2021 until terminated by the parties pursuant to the 
provisions of paragraph 10 herein. 
 
2. Employment of Attorney 
 

2.1 The County does hereby engage, retain and contract with Attorney to provide legal services as 
special counsel to the Assessor and/or the County, as the case may require, to advise and represent 
the Assessor in the Appeals before the Board or the State Board of Equalization and any resulting or 
related litigation; to advise and represent the Assessor and/or the County in any appeal therefrom or 
any action, proceeding, hearing or litigation related thereto; and, to advise and represent the Assessor 



and/or the County in such other matters as the Assessor and/or the County may deem necessary or 
advisable. 
 
2.2 Attorney accepts such employment and agrees to perform and provide the legal services required 
by this Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof. Attorney agrees to represent 
and advise the Assessor and/or the County in those matters assigned to Attorney by the Assessor 
and/or the County, as the case may be, to the best of Attorney's ability. 

 
3. Legal Services 
 
Attorney's services shall include prehearing research, discovery, pleadings, investigation, interviews, 
meetings, negotiations, advice, review of documents, records, transcripts and evidence, and preparation 
necessary to the full and effective presentation of the Assessor's and/or the County's case, as may be 
reasonable given the time allowed before the hearing of any matter assigned to Attorney, as well as 
representation of the Assessor during hearings and post-hearing proceedings before the Board and the 
Assessor and/or County before the Courts of the State of California or the State Board of Equalization 
concerning said matters and any litigation related thereto or resulting therefrom. Attorney shall provide 
such further services to the Assessor and/or County as may be incidental or related to the services 
expressly set forth in this paragraph, or as may be requested by the Assessor and/or the County, from 
time-to-time, in relation to any matter in which the Assessor and/or the County desires the assistance of 
Attorney. 
 
4. Continuing Duty of Representation 
 
This Agreement is drafted with a term to coincide with the annual appropriations cycle of County 
government. In the event that the services contemplated by this Agreement are not completed by June 
30, 2016, the parties agree to execute a new agreement at that time to embrace the services remaining to 
be performed on the same terms and conditions as set forth herein, except that new hourly rates may be 
negotiated by the parties. 
 
5. Compensation 
 
In consideration for the services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement, the County shall pay to 
Attorney the following: 
 

a. Fees for Professional Services 
 
 Title         Rate 
 Michael K. Slattery      $285/hour 
 Senior Associates (4+ years experience)    $240/hour 
 Associates (up to 4 years experience)    $225/hour 
 Legal Assistants/Law Clerks     $140/hour 
 
Such rates shall apply to all services performed by Attorney, including, but not limited to, 
investigation, research, evaluation, consultation, travel, preparation, negotiation, meetings, 
pleadings, briefing, and appearances at proceedings before the Board, the State Board of Equalization 
and any Court(s). 
 
 



b. Reimbursement of Costs 
 
The County shall reimburse Attorney for all costs incurred or advanced by Attorney in providing the 
services herein described. Said costs shall include, but are not limited to, expenses for travel, lodging, 
meals, photocopies, long distance telephone calls, reporter's transcript(s) of all proceedings, filing 
fees, witness fees and costs for lay or expert witnesses, and such other costs as are reasonably 
necessary for the preparation, presentation or defense of the Appeals, any litigation resulting, related 
or incidental thereto, any appeal or litigation resulting or arising therefrom, and any other matter(s) 
for which Attorney is requested to provide services by the Assessor and/or the County. 

 
6. Statement for Services Rendered 
 
Attorney shall render monthly statements to the County for services rendered and costs incurred or 
advanced during the period of representation of Attorney. Such statements shall reasonably set forth the 
time spent by Attorney, a general statement of the work performed, and an itemization of costs incurred 
or advanced. Said statements shall be submitted to the Assessor for processing for payment and the 
Assessor shall take reasonable steps necessary to assure prompt payment of Attorney. 
 
7. Records 
 
Attorney shall keep accurate records of all time expended, the rates applicable to the time expended, and 
all costs incurred in the performance of this Agreement, and such records shall be subject to inspection 
and audit by the County at reasonable times. The parties acknowledge that Attorney's billing records 
contain privileged and confidential information concerning other clients of Attorney which is subject to 
the "Attorney-Client" privilege and is required to be kept in confidence by Attorney. In disclosing billing 
records in connection with any County audit, Attorney shall be entitled to withhold or mask any entry in 
the records provided for audit purposes which would relate to, identify or which would tend to identify 
any other client of Attorney, or which would disclose any work done for other clients of Attorney. This 
provision is intended by the parties to preserve the confidentiality of such other clients of Attorney and 
to prevent the exposure of Attorney and such other clients of Attorney to embarrassment, damage or 
loss. 
 
8. Control of Board Proceedings 
 
The Assessor shall have exclusive control of Attorney in providing legal services relating to matters 
before the Board or to which the Assessor is a party; provided, however, that Attorney shall determine 
the necessity of conducting discovery, investigation, research and preparation, including the nature and 
extent thereof, and the employment of experts so as to prepare adequately for the presentation of the 
Assessor's case. The final decision as to the assessment valuations and disposition of the proceedings 
shall be made by the Assessor. Neither the County Board of Supervisors nor the County Counsel shall 
have any control over Attorney in providing legal services to the Assessor under this Agreement. 
 
9. Confidentiality 
 
The Attorney's services, advice and representation shall be provided exclusively to the Assessor and/or 
the County, as the case may be; and all records, data, and information coming into Attorney's possession 
or knowledge from the County or the Assessor, his personnel or his appraisal consultants during the 
course of Attorney's performance of services hereunder, shall be maintained in strictest confidence, 
except as needed or required for case preparation or presentation, and shall not be disclosed or furnished 



to any person, firm, or agency without the express consent of the County or the Assessor, or upon the 
order of a court. 
 
10. Termination 
 
This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party hereto upon the terminating party's giving 
ten (10) days' written notice of such termination to the other party; provided, however, that County shall 
not terminate this Agreement as to then pending proceedings without first notifying the Assessor of its 
intention nor until Attorney has had a reasonable opportunity to withdraw as counsel of record in all 
such then pending matters. In the event of termination by Attorney, the County and the Assessor shall 
be given sufficient notice to enable them to obtain the services of other counsel, and Attorney shall take 
appropriate steps to continue legal services to the Assessor and/or the County as required to protect their 
interests until the services of other counsel are obtained. Upon termination or Attorney's withdrawal as 
counsel pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 10, Attorney shall receive final payment for all 
services rendered and costs incurred upon presentation of final statements to the Assessor or the County. 
 
11. Conflict of Interest 
 

11.1 The Assessor and/or the County will outline to Attorney the matters involved in the Appeals, 
any related litigation and in other matters assigned to Attorney and will identify the parties, business 
entities and consulting firms associated therewith, and Attorney will determine whether there will be 
a conflict with the Assessor's and/or the County's interests in providing legal services for and on 
behalf of the Assessor and/or the County under this Agreement. 
 
11.2 In the event a presently unknown and unavoidable conflict does arise during the course of 
Attorney's employment, Attorney shall so notify the Assessor and/or the County, as the case may 
require, and unless the Assessor and/or the County shall consent to the continued representation by 
Attorney, Attorney shall withdraw as counsel for Assessor and/or the County as to the specific matter 
involving the conflict. 
 
11.3 During the term of this Agreement, Attorney agrees not to undertake additional representation 
on behalf of other clients which would place Attorney in a position adverse to the Assessor. 

 
12. Independent Contractor Status 
 
It is understood and agreed that Attorney is herewith retained in the capacity of an independent contractor 
practicing its profession and not as an officer, employee or agent of the County or the Assessor; and that 
Attorney is acting as an independent contractor in the performance of any services, work, or duties to or 
for the Assessor and/or the County. Attorney shall not be entitled to participate in any pension plan, 
insurance plan, bonus, or other similar benefits which the Assessor or the County may provide to its 
employees. 
 
13. Insurance and Indemnification 
 

13.1 Attorney shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Assessor, the County, and its officers, 
agents and employees against any and all actions, claims, damages, losses or expenses, including 
reasonable attorney fees and costs, that may be asserted by any person or entity against the Assessor, 
the County or its officers, agents and employees for any injuries or other damages suffered by any 
such person or entity arising out of or in connection with any willful, deliberate or negligent act or 



omission of Attorney, its agents or employees, in the performance of its duties or obligations 
hereunder; but excluding liability resulting from any negligence or any willful or deliberate act, 
omission or misconduct of the Assessor, the County, or its officers, officials, agents, representatives 
and employees. 
 
13.2 Attorney shall take out and maintain at all times during the life of this Agreement the following 
policies of insurance:  

 
a. Worker's Compensation Insurance: To cover Attorney's employees as required by the Labor 
Code of The State of California for Attorney's employees. 
 
b. Public Liability Insurance: Bodily injury and property damage insurance for all activities of 
Attorney, its employees, agents, and representatives, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, written on a comprehensive general liability form including protective coverage, 
blanket contractual, complete operations, and employers' non-ownership liability coverage in an 
amount not less than One Million and no/100 Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) combined single limit bodily 
injury and property damage for each occurrence. Each such policy shall provide that Mono County 
be named as an additional insured for all liability arising out of operations by or on behalf of 
Attorney in the performance of this Agreement. 

 
c. Documentation: The following documentation of insurance shall be submitted to the County 
upon its request: 

 
i. A certificate of insurance for Workers Compensation; and 
ii. Certificates of insurance for liability insurance. 
 

14. Compliance with Applicable Laws 
 
In the performance of services pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, Attorney shall 
comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, regulations, rules and ordinances, 
including, but not limited to, the Workers' Compensation laws of the State of California, and all 
applicable Federal, State, and Local laws, rules and regulations relating to non-discrimination in 
employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical 
condition, or handicap. 
 
15. Expert Consultants 
 
The Assessor and the County recognize that it may be necessary to engage the services of expert 
consultants at the expense of the County in the evaluation, preparation, handling and presentation of the 
Assessor's case, and County agrees to consider Attorney's reasonable recommendations in that regard. 
The County itself may contract for such consultants' services or authorize Attorney to enter into 
agreements for such services, in which event Attorney will be reimbursed by the County for all fees, 
costs and expenses so incurred. 
 
16. Cooperation of Assessor 
 

16.1 The Assessor recognizes that it is essential for his office to cooperate fully with Attorney in 
connection with the preparation and presentation of the Assessor's case by Attorney. In  connection 
therewith, Assessor agrees to provide any and all data, information and documentation reasonably 



requested by Attorney and, further, to provide adequate personnel from the Assessor's Office to assist 
Attorney in the evaluation, preparation, handling and presentation of the matters assigned to 
Attorney. 
 
16.2 The Assessor and the County further acknowledge and agree that, without prior authorization 
of Attorney, neither the Assessor, his staff nor his appraisal consultants shall provide any 
applicant/taxpayer with information (oral or documentary) nor participate in discussions with 
applicant's'/taxpayers' representatives, attorneys and consultants except in the presence of or with the 
consent of Attorney. It is intended that this procedure will be in the best interests of the Assessor and 
the County in avoiding unnecessary misunderstandings and disputes over statements made outside 
of the proceedings and will allow Attorney to discharge its responsibilities as to the control of the 
proceedings in which the Assessor is adverse to the applicants/taxpayers. 

 
17. Resolution of Billing and Payment Questions 
 
In order to assist the parties in resolving any questions which may arise as the result of the presentation 
of any billing statement in this matter or to resolve any questions or problems with the payment of 
compensation on billing statements which are not disputed by the County, the County designates the 
Assessor, or his designee, as its contract administrator under this agreement. Said contract administrator 
shall properly take all reasonable actions as may be necessary or appropriate to resolve any financial 
questions or disputes as may arise in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
18. Assignment 
 
Except as otherwise set forth herein, no party hereto shall assign or transfer any right, interest, duty or 
obligation under this Agreement without the written consent of the other; and no such assignment or 
transfer shall be of any force or effect, whatsoever, unless and until the other party shall have so 
consented. 
 
19. Entire Agreement, Modification and Waivers 
 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject 
matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations, 
understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, of the parties, including, among 
others, any and all prior Agreements For Special Legal Services entered into by and between the parties 
hereto; and there are no warranties, representations or agreements between the parties in connection with 
the subject matter hereof except as set forth or referred to herein. No supplement, modification, waiver, 
amendment or termination of this Agreement, or any provision thereof shall be binding unless executed 
in writing by the parties to be bound thereby. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall such waiver constitute a 
continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided. 
 
20. Attorneys' Fees 
 
In the event of any action for breach or to enforce the provisions hereof, the prevailing party of such 
action shall be awarded all costs of enforcement of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 
 
 





 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Behavioral Health
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Behavioral Health Department
Restructure

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed Resolution Authorizing the County Administrative Officer to Amend the County of Mono List of Allocated Positions
to Remove One (1.0) FTE Behavioral Health Services Coordinator II and One (1.0) FTE Behavioral Health Services
Coordinator I and add One (1.0) FTE Behavioral Health Services Coordinator III and One (1.0) FTE Fiscal Technical

Specialist III.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed resolution. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The salary ranges of the removed positions are $57,424-$69,799 for the Behavioral Health Services Coordinator II and
$52,023-$63,234 for Behavioral Health Services Coordinator I. The salary ranges for the added positions are $63,385-
$77,045 for the Behavioral Health Services Coordinator III and $48,308-$58,719 for the Fiscal Technical Specialist III.
Assuming the “A Step” of each position, this is an additional $2,246 in funding, excluding the cost of benefits.  This staffing
restructure was not included in the approved budget for FY 2021-2022.

CONTACT NAME: Robin Roberts

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1740 / rroberts@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25670&ItemID=13462

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25671&ItemID=13462


 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/13/2021 2:41 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/14/2021 12:54 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

 

 

             

TO: Mono County Board of Supervisors 

FROM: Robin K. Roberts, Behavioral Health Director 

DATE: June 17, 2021 

 

SUBJECT: 

Resolution Authorizing the County Administrative Officer to Amend the County of Mono List of 

Allocated Positions to Remove One 1.0 FTE Behavioral Health Services Coordinator II and One 

1.0 FTE Behavioral Health Services Coordinator I and Add One 1.0 FTE Behavioral Health 

Services Coordinator III and One 1.0 FTE Fiscal Technical Specialist III 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt proposed resolution. Provide any desired direction to staff. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

In an effort to increase capacity to serve the residents of Mono County, the Behavioral Health 

department is recommending the addition of one Behavioral Health Services Coordinator III and 

removing one Behavioral Health Services Coordinator II – this change will allow MCBH to 

promote a high-performing existing employee into a role with greater responsibility. 

Additionally, the Behavioral Health Department is proposing to remove a Behavioral Health 

Services Coordinator II and add a Fiscal Technical Specialist III to assist with the administrative 

burden the department currently faces. 

Behavioral Health Departments across the state face an ever-increasing administrative burden 

that is also felt by Mono County Behavioral Health’s staff members. Adding these positions 

would help alleviate some of the administrative burden that is currently spread across the 

leadership team. These two positions will increase the capacity of the Mono County Behavioral 

Health team and ultimately help improve the health of Mono County residents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The salary ranges of the removed positions are $57,424-$69,799 for the Behavioral Health 

Services Coordinator II and $52,023-$63,234 for Behavioral Health Services Coordinator I. The 

salary ranges for the added positions are $63,385-$77,045 for the Behavioral Health Services 

Coordinator III and $48,308-$58,719 for the Fiscal Technical Specialist III. Assuming the “A Step” 

of each position, this is an additional $2,246 in funding.  

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Robin K. Roberts, Director of Behavioral Health, Contact: 760.924.1740 

MONO COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

 

P. O. BOX 2619 MAMMOTH LAKES, CA 93546  (760) 924-1740  FAX: (760) 924-1741 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 

R21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE 

OFFICER TO AMEND THE COUNTY OF MONO LIST OF ALLOCATED POSITIONS 
TO REMOVE ONE 1.0 FTE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATOR II 
AND ONE 1.0 FTE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATOR I AND ADD 
ONE 1.0 FTE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES COORDINATOR III AND ONE 1.0 

FTE FISCAL TECHNICAL SPECIALIST III IN THE DEPARTMENT OF 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Mono maintains a list of County job classifications, the pay 
ranges or rates for those job classifications, and the number of positions allocated by the Board 
of Supervisors for each of those job classifications on its List of Allocated Positions (or 
“Allocation List”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Allocation List identifies approved vacancies for recruitment and 
selection by Human Resources and implements collective bargaining agreements related to job 
classifications and pay rates; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to provide public services in the most efficient and 
economical manner possible, which at times requires the modification of the job classifications 
on the Allocation List; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is currently necessary to amend the Allocation List as part of maintaining 

proper accounting for hiring employees to perform public services. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO RESOLVES that the County Administrative Officer is authorized to amend the County 
of Mono List of Allocated Positions to reflect the following changes: 

 
Remove the allocation of one 1.0 full-time permanent Behavioral Health Services 

Coordinator II (new total: one) ($57,424-$69,799) and one 1.0 full-time permanent Behavioral 
Health Services Coordinator I (new total: one) ($52,023-$63,234) 

 
Add the allocation of one 1.0 full-time permanent Behavioral Health Services 

Coordinator III (new total: one) ($63,385-$77,045) and one 1.0 full-time permanent Fiscal 
Technical Specialist III (new total: one) ($48,308-$58,719). 

 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, 
by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Public Works - Solid Waste
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Used Oil Opportunity Grant (OPP12)
Application

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors authorizing the Director of Public Works to submit and
execute on behalf of Mono County an application to the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery for the Used Oil

Payment Program, fiscal years 2021-22 through 2025-26 (12th through 16th cycle).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed resolution. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
$10,000 revenue per year to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, to maintain used oil collection programs throughout the
County.

CONTACT NAME: Justin Nalder

PHONE/EMAIL: 17609325453 / jnalder@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 OPP Grant Application Staff Report

 OPP 12-16 Grant Application Resolution

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/9/2021 2:50 PM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25630&ItemID=13447

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25774&ItemID=13447


 7/13/2021 10:48 AM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 MONO COUNTY 
 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 SOLID WASTE DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 457 � 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET � BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517  

760.932.5440 � FAX 760.932.5441 � monopw@mono.ca.gov � www.monocounty.ca.gov 
 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

 

Date: July 13, 2021 

To: Honorable Board of Supervisors 

From: Justin Nalder, Solid Waste Superintendent / Environmental Manager 

Subject: 5-Year Authorization for County Participation in CalRecycle oil Opportunity 
Payment Program (OPP). 
 
Recommended Action: 

 Adopt proposed resolution and authorize the Chair’s signature on Resolution No. R21-
___, “A Resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors Authorizing the Director of 
Public Works to Submit and Execute on Behalf of mono County an Application to the 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery for the Used Oil Payment Program, Fiscal 
Years 2021-22 through 2025-26 (12th Through 16th Cycle).” 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

 $10,000 revenue per year to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, to maintain used oil 
collection programs throughout the County. 

 
Discussion: 

 Through the California Oil Recycling Enhancement Act, administered by CalRecycle, 
annual funding is made available to assist local jurisdictions with their used motor oil and oil 
filter collection. In past years, these grants have enabled Mono County to purchase 
equipment, provide staff training, and conduct public awareness campaigns in an effort to 
ensure the proper collection and handling of used motor oil and oil filters and to minimize the 
amount that is improperly disposed in landfills. 

The program provides $10,000 in revenue annually to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund on a 
non-competitive basis. These funds are used to continue existing used oil recycling 
programs, including outreach and education, collection, handling, and removal of used motor 
oil and oil filters.   
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact me at 932-5453. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Justin Nalder 
Solid Waste Superintendent 
 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 

R21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO SUBMIT AND EXECUTE 
ON BEHALF OF MONO COUNTY AN APPLICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT OF 

RESOURCES RECYCLING AND RECOVERY FOR THE USED OIL PAYMENT 
PROGRAM, FISCAL YEARS 2021-22 THROUGH 2025-26 (12th THROUGH 16th 

CYCLE) 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code § 48690, the Department of Resources 

Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle), formerly known as the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board, has established the Used Oil Payment Program (OPP) to make payments to 
qualifying jurisdictions for implementation of their used oil programs; and 
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority, Cal Recycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, CalRecycle's procedures for administering the Used Oil Payment Program 
require, among other things, an applicant's governing body to declare by resolution certain 
authorization related to the administration of the Used Oil Payment Program. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO RESOLVES that: that the Mono County Board of Supervisors, authorizes the submittal 
of a Used Oil Payment Program application to CalRecycle; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: the Director of Public Works, or his designee, is 

hereby authorized and empowered to execute in the name of Mono County all documents, 
including but not limited to, applications, agreements, annual reports including expenditure 
reports and amendments necessary to secure said payments to support our Used Oil Collection 
Program; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: that this authorization is effective for five (5) 

years from the date of adoption of this resolution. 
 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this ___20____ day of _July________, 2021, 

by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Risk Management
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Claim for Damages - Adam Flores

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Claim for damages filed by Adam Flores, related to alleged personal injury during a vehicle collision involving a county
vehicle. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Deny the claim submitted by Megeredchian Law on behalf of Adam Flores, direct the Risk Manager, in consultation with
County Counsel, to send notice to the claimant of the denial.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None at this time.

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Claim for Damages

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/8/2021 2:49 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/8/2021 1:27 PM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25771&ItemID=13482

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25769&ItemID=13482


 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

COUNTY OF MONO 

 
P.O. BOX 696, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 

(760) 932-5405 • FAX (760) 932-5411 
   
Jay Sloane 

Risk Manager 

  

 
To: Board of Supervisors 
 
From: Jay Sloane 
 
Date: July 20, 2021 
 
Re: Claim for damages filed by Adam Flores 
 
Discussion: 
 
On February 25, 2021 the Clerk of the Board received a claim filed by Megeredchian 
Law on behalf of Adam Flores.  The claim alleges personal injury related to a vehicle 
accident involving a Mono County vehicle in Duarte, CA on October 20, 2020.  The law 
firm is not responding to county insurance correspondence.    
 
Recommended Action: 
 
Deny the claim submitted by Megeredchian Law on behalf of Adam Flores, direct the 
Risk Manager, in consultation with County Counsel, to send the notice to the claimant of 
the denial.    
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 











 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Sheriff
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid
and Joint Training Agreement

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Interagency Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement made and entered into by and between the County of Inyo on behalf
of its Sheriff’s Department and District Attorney’s Office, the City of Bishop on behalf of its Police Department, and Mono

County, on behalf of its Sheriff’s Department.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Recommend that the Chair sign the Interagency Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement on behalf of Mono County.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Ingrid Braun

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-7549 / ibraun@monosheriff.org

SEND COPIES TO: 
Sheriff Ingrid Braun
County Counsel Stacey Simon

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Interagency Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25690&ItemID=13471

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25689&ItemID=13471


 7/2/2021 10:12 AM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 10:54 AM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



Phillip West 
Undersheriff  

 MONO COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

 

P.O. BOX 616 • 49 BRYANT STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CA 93517 • (760) 932-7549 • WWW.MONOSHERIFF.ORG 

Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff -Coroner  

DATE: July 20, 2021 
 
TO: The Honorable Board of Supervisors 

 
FROM: Ingrid Braun, Sheriff-Coroner 
 
SUBJECT: Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Board Chair to sign the Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training 
Agreement. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Mono County Sheriff’s Office is currently a party to an Interagency Mutual Aid Agreement 
with the Inyo County Sheriff’s Office, Inyo County District Attorney’s Office and City of Bishop 
Police Department.  The agreement allows the Mono County Sheriff’s Office to participate in 
the Inyo County Special Enforcement Detail (SED).  The SED is comprised of sworn members 
from each agency and responds to critical incidents in Inyo and Mono Counties.  The SED 
trains together and meets the standards of a Level III Special Weapons and Tactics Team, as 
established by the California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training. 
 
This Agreement updates the original document to include provisions for joint training exercises.  
As training is an important component in the effectiveness and certification of the SED, all 
parties agreed the added language was necessary.  The remainder of the Agreement remains 
substantially unchanged from the original. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial impact to this Agreement. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Ingrid Braun 
Sheriff-Coroner 
 
Attachment: Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement 



Page 1 of 6 

 

Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement 
 
This Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement made and entered into by and between the County of 
Inyo on behalf of its Sheriff’s Department and District Attorney’s Office, the City of Bishop on behalf 
of its Police Department, and Mono County, on behalf of its Sheriff’s Department. 
 
Whereas, the law of the State of California provides that each public entity within the State of California is 
empowered to make and enter into Mutual Aid Agreements with other contiguous public entities within the 
State to more effectively allocate law enforcement and other public safety services during emergency 
situations; 
 
Whereas, the undersigned public entities that are parties to this Mutual Aid Agreement must confront 
numerous threats to public health and safety, including but not limited to natural or manmade disasters; 
 
Whereas, none of the law enforcement agencies party to this Agreement possess all of the necessary 
resources to cope with every possible law enforcement emergency or disaster by themselves, and an 
efficient, effective response can best be achieved by the application and leveraging of the collective 
resources of these law enforcement agencies both through joint training and joint response; 
 
Whereas, the parties to this Agreement have determined that it is in their collective best interest to develop 
and implement comprehensive preparedness plans and conduct joint training exercises in advance of a 
sudden and immediate need to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of their response to any emergency 
or disaster; 
 
Whereas, it is desirable that each of the parties hereto should voluntarily aid and assist each other in the 
event that an emergency situation should occur by the interchange of law enforcement services; and 
 
Whereas, it is necessary and desirable that a Mutual Aid Agreement be executed for the interchange of such 
mutual assistance and training on a local, county, and/or regional basis. 
 
Now, therefore, it is hereby agreed by and between each and all of the parties hereto as follows; 
 
Article I: Definitions 
 
Assisting Agency: A law enforcement agency providing law enforcement manpower, equipment, and 
resources to a law enforcement agency from another jurisdiction which is participating in the regional 
Mutual Aid and that has requested assistance to confront an emergency. 
 
Requesting Agency: A law enforcement agency under an emergency condition that has requested assistance 
from a law enforcement agency participating in the regional Mutual Aid 
 
Emergency: Any occurrence, or threat thereof, whether natural or caused by man, in war or in peace, which 
results or may result in substantial injury or harm to the population, substantial damage to or loss of 
property, or substantial harm to the environment and is beyond the capacity of an individual agency to 
effectively control. 
 
Mutual Aid: A prearranged written agreement and plan whereby assistance is requested and provided 
between two or more jurisdictions during an emergency under the terms of the Agreement. 



Page 2 of 6 

 

 
Staging Area: A location identified outside the immediate emergency area where law enforcement 
equipment and personnel assemble for briefing, assignment, and related matters. 
 
Authorized Representative: The chief executive officer of a participating law enforcement agency, or his or 
her designee, who has authorization to request, offer, or provide assistance under the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
Period of Assistance: The period beginning with the departure of personnel and/or equipment of the 
assisting party from any point for the purpose of traveling to provide assistance exclusively to the requesting 
agency and ending on the return of all the assisting party’s personnel and equipment to their regular place of 
work or assignment, or as otherwise terminated through written or verbal notice of the designated agency 
official by the designated official of the assisting party. 
 
Joint Training Exercise: An event planned by a party or parties to this Agreement for the purpose of 
providing experience and skills to employees or volunteers of their agency potentially involved in the 
provision of mutual aid under this Agreement and in which employees or volunteers of more than one party 
to this Agreement participate.   
 
Article II: Terms of the Agreement 
 

1. Each party agrees that in the event of an emergency, the assisting agency will furnish such 
personnel, equipment, facilities, or services as are available, provided that such actions would not 
unreasonably diminish its capacity to provide basic law enforcement services to its own 
jurisdiction. (See Exhibit 1) 

 
2. Each party shall designate the appropriate official within its jurisdiction who has the legal 

authority to bind its jurisdiction to this Agreement and who shall sign this Agreement. 
 

3. To invoke assistance under the provisions of this Agreement, the designated official from the 
requesting agency shall be required to contact the designated official of the assisting agency in 
person, by telephone, in writing, or e-mail. The assisting agency may request such information 
from the requesting agency as is necessary to confirm the emergency and to assess the types and 
amounts of assistance that shall be provided. 

 
4. During an emergency, all personnel from assisting agencies shall report to and work under the 

direction of the designated incident commander. Personnel from either the requesting or the 
assisting agency may receive supervision from any command personnel from the combined 
participating localities if authorized by the incident commander or his or her designee in the 
incident command structure, depending on identified needs and available resources deemed most 
qualified to meet mission goals and objectives. Tactical teams (e.g., bomb disposal, canine teams, 
special weapons, and tactics units) shall operate under the direction of their tactical commander 
once they are authorized to undertake assignments. 

 
5. Personnel responding to a call for assistance outside their appointed jurisdiction shall have those 

law enforcement powers provided for by state law. 
 



Page 3 of 6 

 

6. In any emergency where the Mutual Aid Agreement has been invoked, radio communications 
should be established between all the parties, where possible, using the local public mutual aid 
radio system or other shared communication system. 

 
7.  Joint training exercises are subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. Worker’s Compensation, Liability, Property Damage 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation Coverage: Each public entity will provide workers’ 

compensation coverage for its employees and is responsible for complying with the State 
of California Workers’ Compensation Act. Coverage under this Act may be obtained (1) 
by a policy with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of California, 
(2) by being a qualified self-insured, or (3) by being a member of a group self-insurance 
association. Each public entity should understand that workers’ compensation coverage 
does not automatically extend to volunteers. Each public entity may obtain accident 
insurance for any volunteer at the locality’s discretion. Workers’ compensation coverage 
for certain volunteers (e.g., volunteer firefighters, volunteer lifesaving or volunteer rescue 
squad members, volunteer law enforcement chaplains, auxiliary or reserve law 
enforcement officers, auxiliary or reserve deputy sheriffs, volunteer emergency medical 
technicians, and members of volunteer search and rescue organizations) may be obtained 
by adding this exposure to the locality’s workers’ compensation coverage. As an 
alternative, the individual volunteer agency may obtain workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage for this exposure.  Each entity shall obtain workers compensation waiver of 
subrogation endorsements in favor of the other entities for all activities (including 
trainings) related to this mutual aid agreement. 
 

b. Automobile Liability Coverage: Each public entity is responsible for its own actions and 
is responsible for complying with the State of California motor vehicle financial 
responsibility laws. Coverage under these laws may be obtained (1) by a policy with an 
insurance company licensed to do business in the State of California, (2) by being a 
qualified self-insured, or (3) by being a member of a group self-insurance association. 
Each public entity agrees to obtain automobile liability coverage with at least $1,000,000 
combined single limit and coverage extended to owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles. It 
is understood that the public entity may include in the emergency response volunteer 
agencies that have motor vehicles titled in the name of the volunteer company. It is the 
responsibility of the public entity to determine if the volunteer company has automobile 
liability coverage as outlined in this section. This provision is met by being a qualified 
self-insured or by being a member of a group self-insurance association. 
 

c. General Liability, Public Officials Liability, and Law Enforcement Liability: To the 
extent permitted by law and without waiving sovereign immunity, each party to this 
Agreement will be responsible for any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, 
and causes of action related to or arising out of or in any way connected with its own 
actions and the actions of its personnel in providing mutual aid assistance rendered or 
performed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Each public entity 
agrees to obtain general liability with at least a $1,000,000 combined single limit. Each 
public entity agrees to obtain public official liability coverage and law enforcement 



Page 4 of 6 

 

liability coverage with at least a $1,000,000 combined single limit. These coverages may 
be obtained (1) by a policy with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State 
of California, (2) by being a qualified self-insured, (3) by being a member of a group self-
insurance association, [or (4) by any insurance plan administered through the Agency’s 
Risk Management.] 

 
9. Each Party shall develop and update on a regular basis a plan providing for the effective 

mobilization of its resources and facilities which may arise from its obligations under this 
agreement. 
 

10. Interagency assistance plans shall be developed and updated on a regular basis by the parties 
hereto and are operative between the parties in accordance with the provisions of such plans. 
 

11. The parties agree to meet on a regular basis to review all interagency assistance plans and the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
12. This agreement shall become effective as to each party when approved and executed by that public 

entity and shall supersede and replace in its entirety any prior Interagency Mutual Assistance 
Agreement entered into among the Inyo County Sheriff’s Department, Inyo County District 
Attorney, Bishop Police Department and Mono County. The Agreement shall remain in effect as 
between each party until participation in this Agreement is terminated by the party in writing. Any 
party to this Agreement may terminate participation in this Agreement upon 30 days’ written 
notice addressed to the designated public official of each of the other signatory public entities that 
are parties to this Agreement. 

 
13. The execution of this Agreement shall not give rise to any liability or responsibility for failure to 

respond to any request for assistance made pursuant to this Agreement. This Agreement shall not 
be construed as or deemed to be an Agreement for the benefit of any third party or parties, and no 
third party or parties shall have any right of action whatsoever hereunder for any cause 
whatsoever. 

 
In witness whereof, this Agreement has been executed and approved and is effective and operative as to 
each of the parties as herein provided. 
 
INYO COUNTY:    MONO COUNTY: 
 
By                                                           By ______________________________                                                          
      Sheriff Jeff R. Hollowell                                       Sheriff Ingrid Braun 
 
Dated: _________________       Dated: ______________                                                   
 
By: ___________________________ 
     District Attorney Tom Hardy 
 
Dated: _______________ 
 
 
By ____________________________  By: _____________________________ 



Page 5 of 6 

 

      Jeff Griffiths, Board Chair           Jennifer Kreitz, Board Chair 
 
Dated: ________________   Dated: ______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form:    Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Marshall Rudolph    Stacey Simon 
County Counsel     County Counsel 
 
Dated: _________________   Dated: _______________                                                     
 
 
 
Approved by Risk Management:   Approved by Risk Management: 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
 
CITY OF BISHOP: 
 
By: ___________________________ 
      Police Chief Josh Ellsworth 
 
Dated: _______________ 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
         Stephen Muchovej, Mayor 
 
Dated: _______________ 
 
Approved as to form:     
 
_______________________________   
Dean J. Pucci     
City Attorney      
 
Dated: _________________ 
                                                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT #1 
 
Mutual Aid Request deployments shall follow the procedures set forth in the Standardized Emergency 
Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident Management System (NIMS), utilizing the Incident 
Command System. 
 
Mutual Aid Request deployments outside of the respective Operational Area for any party to this MOU shall 
follow the California Emergency Services Act, California Government Code Sections 8550 to 8690.7, the 
Interstate Civil Defense and Disaster Compact (1951) (Gov. Code 177 to 178.5), and the Emergency 
Management Assistance Compact (2005) (Gov. Code 179 to 179.9). 
 
Nothing in this agreement shall preclude the Sheriff’s Joint Special Enforcement Detail team from 
responding to a mutual aid request from a neighboring (contiguous) County or Agency. 
 
Actions taken by individual personnel shall be subject to the policies and procedures of their respective 
individual departments, to include the appropriate Use of Force policies. 
 
Specialized units shall meet the standards of training, as recommended by the Commission on Peace Officer 
Standards and Training for such units. 
 

1. Crisis Response Unit 
 

a. Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) Team 
i. Members of the Inyo County SED team shall train with each other and meet the 

standards established by the California Commission on Peace Officer Standards 
and Training for a Level III SWAT Team. 

 
b. Crisis Negation Team (CNT) 

i. Members of the Inyo County Sheriff’s CNT shall train and meet the standards 
established by the California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and 
Training. 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Application for Alcoholic Beverage
License - Mono Inn LLC

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

An application to the State of California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control for Alcoholic Beverage License by Mono
Inn LLC doing business as Mono Inn located at 55620 Highway 395, Lee Vining, CA 93541.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: Queenie Barnard

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5534 / qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Application

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/6/2021 4:50 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/8/2021 1:27 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25723&ItemID=13489




 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Proposed Southern California Edison
Control-Silver Peak Project Notice

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

A notice regarding the proposed Southern California Edison Control-Silver Peak Project. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: Queenie Barnard

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5534 / qbarnard@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Letter

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/13/2021 2:42 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 10:55 AM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:19 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25773&ItemID=13504






 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: CAO
TIME REQUIRED 20 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Christian
Milovich, Assistant County CounselSUBJECT 2021 Supervisorial Redistricting

Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Presentation by staff regarding the 2021 Redistricting Process, including discussion about public outreach, scheduling
public hearings and creation of informational website.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Advise staff to schedule public hearings, create website and implement plan for public outreach. Provide any desired
direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Robert C. Lawton

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5415 / rlawton@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/15/2021 11:44 AM County Counsel Yes

 7/15/2021 12:24 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: CAO, Public Health
TIME REQUIRED 30 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Bryan
Wheeler, Public Health DirectorSUBJECT COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Update on Countywide response and planning related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Discussion of planning for changes to
County operations as the State moves into its "Beyond the Blueprint" stage, including, but not limited to: status of

emergency declarations; returning to in-person County meetings; returning remote employees to work.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None, informational only.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Robert C. Lawton

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5415 / rlawton@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/9/2021 2:21 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/8/2021 12:18 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Finance
TIME REQUIRED 45 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Janet Dutcher, Finance Director

SUBJECT Mono County Audit Reports for FY
2019-20

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the Single Audit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None. Presentation and discussion only.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None. 

CONTACT NAME: Janet Dutcher

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5494 / jdutcher@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff report

 Auditor Communications

 2019-20 Mono County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

 2019-20 Mono County Single Audit Report

 Presentation

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25488&ItemID=13412

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25485&ItemID=13412

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25486&ItemID=13412

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25487&ItemID=13412

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25770&ItemID=13412


 7/9/2021 2:44 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/8/2021 12:57 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
   

Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 
Treasurer -  Tax Collector 

 
 
TO:  Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: Janet Dutcher – Finance Director 
   
DATE:    June 8, 2021 
 
RE:  Mono County Audit Reports for FY 2019-2020 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
Each year, an audit of the County-wide financial statements is required along with a separate 
compliance audit of our Federally funded programs.  In their third year of their contract to audit 
Mono County, Price Paige & Company out of Clovis, CA, completed their fieldwork in October 
2020 and issued their audit opinions on April 9, 2021, based on financial statements prepared by 
the Mono County Finance Department team.  
 
The County has once again received an unmodified opinion (the best kind you can get) from the 
independent audit firm of Price Paige & Company.  This is the auditor’s attestation that the 
financial statements and schedule of federal awards prepared by Finance Department staff are 
presented fairly and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for 
governments. 
 
The single audit part of this engagement tests whether Mono County complied with federal 
compliance requirements applicable to our federally supported programs.   The auditors utilize a 
risk assessment process each year to determine which federal programs to audit.  For FY 2019-
20, the following federal programs were audited: 
 

• CDFA 14.228: Community Development Block Grant 
• CDFA 14.239: Home Investment Partnerships Program 

 
In the prior year, the auditors identified two significant deficiencies in internal controls over 
CFDA 93.959, Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse transactions, a 
program managed by the Mono County Behavioral Health Services Department.  The 
Department corrected the findings by implementing the corrective action plan and this result is 
communicated to stakeholders on pages 13 – 15 in the Single Audit Report where the status 
indicates “implemented.” There were no further findings because of this year’s compliance audit.   
 
 
 



2 
 

Staff will present a summary of the County’s annual audit reports, including financial highlights 
from the reports.  Your Board will have the opportunity to engage in discussion, ask questions 
and request a more in-depth presentation on any element of the financial reports. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None.  Reports have been filed with the California State Controller’s Office. The prior year 
findings status of implemented will ensure the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
and the State Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs will ensure continued funding for the 
Behavioral Health Services Department. Additionally, continuing disclosure requirements for the 
County’s 2018 Certificates of Participation – Civic Center have been met by submitting the audit 
report to the appropriate regulatory agencies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 9, 2021 
 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Mono 
Bridgeport, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Mono, California (the “County”) for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 18, 2020. Professional standards also require 
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the County during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the County’s financial statements were:  

 Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense is based on the useful lives of the capital assets.  
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation expense in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Closure/Post Closure Liability - Management's estimate of the closure and postclosure care 
costs/liability is based on various factors including: 

- Landfill total estimated capacity 
- Cumulative capacity used 
- Estimated costs to close, adjusted annually for inflation 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the closure and postclosure care 
costs/liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 



 

 

 Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferrals is based on actuarial valuations 
which include significant assumptions regarding discount rate, inflation, payroll growth, projected salary 
increases and investment rate of return.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the liability and related deferrals in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 Management’s estimate of the net other postemployment benefit liability and related deferrals is 
determined using terms of various health care plans offered, together with relevant actuarial 
assumptions and health care cost trend rates, projected annual rates and discount rate.  We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the other post-retirement benefit obligation in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  

 The disclosure of the pension plan in Note 7 to the financial statements provides detailed information on 
the pension plan including a description of the plan, benefits provided, contributions, calculations of the 
net pension liability and related deferrals, actuarial assumptions and discount rate used to measure the 
liability. 

 The disclosure of the other postemployment benefit plan in Note 8 to the financial statements provides 
detailed information on the postemployment benefit plan including a description of the plan, benefits 
provided, contributions, calculations of the net other postemployment benefit liability and related 
deferrals, actuarial assumptions and discount rate used to measure the liability. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has 
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. In addition, there were no corrected misstatements noted during our audit for the year ended 
June 30, 2020.  

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated April 9, 2021. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the County’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

  



 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the County’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to required supplementary information, as listed within the table of 
contents of the financial statements, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the 
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  

We were engaged to report on Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements, as listed within the table of 
contents of the financial statements, which accompany the financial statements, and Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards (Supplementary Schedules) but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, 
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves.  

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section nor statistical section, as listed within the table of 
contents of the financial statements, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Supervisors and management of the 
County and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 
 

 

 



Client: COUNTY OF MONO
Engagement: 6‐30‐20 Audit
Current Period: 6/30/2020
Workpaper: Attachment: Uncorrected Audit Differences

Account / Opinion Unit Description Workpaper Reference Debit Credit
Net Income 
Effect

PJE01 O100
Camp Lundy 18‐19 revenue not accrued in prior year

605‐71‐740‐16401 CAMPGROUND FEES 2,589.25            ‐                         
605‐00‐000‐00497 FUND BALANCE AVAILABLE ‐                          2,589.25           
Total 2,589.25           2,589.25           (2,589.25)        

PJE02
To account for Fair Value adjustment in the current year O101

General Fund Cash and investments 136,413             ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     136,413            

Road Fund Cash and investments 6,565                 ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     6,565                

Realignment Fund Cash and investments 107,659             ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     107,659            

Mental Health Services Act Cash and investments 82,205               ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     82,205              

Civic Center Project Cash and investments 31,376               ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     31,376              



Other Governmental Funds Cash and investments 112,318             ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     112,318            

Solid Waste Fund Cash and investments 37,156               ‐                    
Restricted cash in Treasury 44,097               ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     81,253              

Airport Cash and investments 505                    ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     505                   

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Cash and investments 1,776                 ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     1,776                

Internal Service Funds Cash and investments 29,187               ‐                    
Unrestricted investment earnings ‐                     29,187              

Investment Trust Cash and investments 669,390             ‐                    
Investment income ‐                     669,390            

Agency  Cash and investments 60,907               ‐                    
Investment income ‐                     60,907              

Total 1,319,554         1,319,554         1,319,554       



 
 

 

 

COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

 
 

Prepared by the Department of Finance 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  Page(s) 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
Letter of Transmittal ............................................................................................................................................. i-vi 
Organization Chart of Elected and Appointed Officials ......................................................................................... vii 
Directory of Public Officials .................................................................................................................................. viii 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................................................. 1-3 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) ............................................. 7-21 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
   Statement of Net Position ......................................................................................................................... 25 
   Statement of Activities .........................................................................................................................26-27 
 
 Fund Financial Statements: 
   Governmental Funds: 
     Balance Sheet ...................................................................................................................................30-31 
     Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ................................................... 33 
     Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ...........................................34-35 
     Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the 
       Statement of Activities .......................................................................................................................... 37 
   Proprietary Funds: 
     Statement of Fund Net Position.............................................................................................................. 38 
     Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position ................................................. 39 
     Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................................40-41 
   Fiduciary Funds: 
     Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ....................................................................................................... 42 
     Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position .................................................................................... 43 
 
 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ...............................................................................................45-84 
 
Required Supplementary Information: 
 Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios .......................................................87-89 
 Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB and Contributions ..........................................................................90-91 
 Budgetary Comparison Schedule: 
   General Fund ......................................................................................................................................92-94 
   Road Fund ................................................................................................................................................ 95 
   Realignment ............................................................................................................................................. 96 
   Mental Health Services Act ...................................................................................................................... 97 
 Budgetary Basis of Accounting .................................................................................................................. 98 
 
  



 
 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  Page(s) 
Combining and Individual Fund Statements: 
 Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 
   Definition ................................................................................................................................................ 101 
   Combining Balance Sheet ...............................................................................................................102-106 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .......................107-111 
 
 Nonmajor Enterprise Funds: 
   Definition ................................................................................................................................................ 113 
   Combining Statement of Fund Net Position ........................................................................................... 114 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position .............................. 115 
   Combining Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................... 116 
 
 Internal Service Funds: 
   Definition ................................................................................................................................................ 117 
   Combining Statement of Fund Net Position ........................................................................................... 118 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position .............................. 119 
   Combining Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................... 120 
 
 Investment Trust Fund: 
   Definition ................................................................................................................................................ 121 
   Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ..................................................................................... 122 
   Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position .................................................................. 123 
 
STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
 
Assessed Value of Taxable Property .................................................................................................................. 126 
Property Tax Levies and Collections – General Fund Secured Roll ................................................................... 127 
Property Tax Levies and Collections ................................................................................................................... 128 
Property Tax Value Allocation Collection ............................................................................................................ 129 
Property Tax Collections ..................................................................................................................................... 130 
Distribution of Pooled Property Tax .................................................................................................................... 131 
Ten Largest Taxpayers for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 ............................................................................ 132 
Property Tax Rates ............................................................................................................................................. 133 
Transient Occupancy Tax Receipts .................................................................................................................... 134 
Miscellaneous Statistical Information ...........................................................................................................135-136 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



i 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
   

Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 
Treasurer - Tax Collector 

 
 

 
April 9, 2021 
 
To the Board of Supervisors and Citizens of Mono County: 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Mono (County) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, 
is hereby submitted in compliance with Section 25250 and 25253 of the Government Code of the State of California.   
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based 
upon a comprehensive internal control framework established for this purpose.  Because the cost of internal controls should not 
exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements 
are free of any material misstatements. 
 
The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.  Price Paige & Company, a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants, has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the County’s financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a 
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements.  The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and 
should be read in conjunction with it. 
 
PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 
 
Incorporated in 1861, Mono County is a rural county centrally located on the eastern side of the Sierra Nevada Mountains.  The 
County has an area of 3,049 square miles and a total population of 13,464 (as of January 1, 2020, California Department of 
Finance).  Other than Mammoth Lakes, the County’s only incorporated area which boasts a year-round population of 7,859, the 
remainder of the County consists of small communities ranging in population from less than 300 to about 1,200 people.  The 
northern part of the County encompasses the small towns of Topaz, Walker and Coleville.  Bridgeport, the County seat, is 35 
miles south of these small communities. The central part of the County includes the communities of Lee Vining, June Lakes, 
Crowley Lake, the Wheeler Crest communities, and of course, Mammoth Lakes.  In the southeast sector lie Benton and Chalfont.  
During periods of heavy recreational usage, the Town of Mammoth Lakes population approaches 35,000. 
 
Approximately 94 percent of Mono County is public land administered by the U.S. Forest Service, the Bureau of Land 
Management, the State of California, and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. The scenic and recreational 
attributes of this public land help support tourism and recreation as the major industry in the county. Notwithstanding the negative 
economic impacts caused by public health measures associated with the COVID-19 related pandemic, approximately 38.5 
percent of all employment is directly associated with this industry. Typically, more than 1.5 million visitors stay in Mono County 
on average for three days, generating $369.6 million for the local economy and $16 million in local taxes. Most of these visitors 
travel to and through the county on the state highway system. Major attractions include Mammoth and June Mountain ski areas, 
Yosemite National Park, Mono Lake, Devils Postpile National Monument, Bodie State Historic Park, and the many lakes, streams 
and backcountry attractions accessed through Mono County communities.  Mammoth Lakes, together with June Lake, is Mono 
County’s most visited destination and is home to one of the largest ski resorts in North America. 
 



 
 

ii 
 

The County government functions as a local government body to serve the needs of its residents.  As geographical and political 
subdivisions of the state, counties serve a dual role; providing municipal services in the unincorporated areas and acting as 
administrative agents for state and federal government programs and services for all eligible residents County-wide.  As a 
general-law county, Mono County is bound by state law as to the number and duties of County elected officials.  The County 
has five districts that are approximately equal in population with boundaries adjusted every ten years following the federal 
census.  Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the County Board of Supervisors (the Board).  The Board provides 
overall direction to the County and its responsibilities include adopting the budget, approving contracts, setting policies and 
passing ordinances.  Board members are elected to four-year staggered terms, and each member represents one of the 
County’s five districts.  The County has three elected department heads: Assessor, District Attorney, and Sheriff-Coroner.  The 
County Administrative Officer (CAO) appoints other department heads except for the position of County Counsel where the 
Board of Supervisors is the appointing authority. 
 
The County employed 315 full-time equivalent employees in FY 2019-2020 to provide a full range of services to its residents.  
The County’s principal functions include seven major areas: general government, public protection, public ways and facilities, 
health and sanitation, public assistance, education and recreation and cultural services.  The State and Federal governments 
mandate certain minimum levels of services in the public assistance and health areas.  The majority of services performed by 
the County are provided for all residents, regardless of whether those residents live in the County’s one incorporated town or in 
the unincorporated areas.  Every County resident directly or indirectly benefits from these services. 
 
Included in operations are various component units, which provide specific services County-wide or to distinct geographic areas 
within the County.  The governmental reporting entity consists of the County and its component units.  Component units are 
legally separate organizations for which the Board is financially accountable.  Financial accountability is defined as the 
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s governing board, and either (i) the County’s ability to impose its will on 
the organization or (ii) the potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the 
County.  The following five component units, although legally separate entities, are considered to be part of the primary 
government for financial reporting purposes: Community Service Area #1 – Crowley, Community Service Area #5 – Bridgeport, 
Community Service Area #2 – Benton, the County of Mono Economic Development Corporation, and the Housing Authority of 
the County of Mono. 

The County is required by State law to adopt a balanced budget by October 2 of each fiscal year.  This annual budget serves 
as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and control.  Budgets are adopted for most governmental and proprietary 
funds.  The County maintains budgetary controls to assure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated 
budget approved by the Board.  Unencumbered annual appropriations lapse at year-end.  The legal level of control for 
appropriations is exercised at the budget unit level within each fund.  Appropriations beyond that level may only be adjusted 
during the year with approval of the Board.  Management may make adjustments at their discretion below that level.  Such 
adjustments by the Board and management are reflected in the revised budgetary data presented in the financial statements.  
Prior to adoption of the budgets, a public hearing is held to receive comments. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Mono County Finance Department, P.O. Box 556, Bridgeport, California 93517. 

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS 
 
State Government 
 
The County is a political subdivision of the State of California and as such, its government is subject to State subventions and 
regulations. Therefore, the County’s financial health is closely tied to the financial condition of the State government. The County 
cannot predict whether the State will encounter budgetary difficulties in the current or future fiscal years. The County also cannot 
predict the impact future budgets will have on the County’s finances and operations. Current and future State budgets will be 
affected by national and State economic conditions and other factors outside the County’s control.  



 
 

iii 
 

Mono County Economy 
 
The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, which began in March 2020, caused significant negative economic effects starting in 
the fourth quarter.  The Governor’s shelter-in-place orders mitigated threats to public health and safety emanating from the 
spread of the disease, and more importantly, lessened the concerning utilization of scarce hospital beds to treat those individuals 
hospitalized with illness.  While critical public health efforts worked to keep citizens and communities safe from the potentially 
deadly virus, the fiscal impact of these public health policy decisions result in significant losses of transient occupancy taxes 
and sales tax revenues.  Prior to this, Mono County’s economy had been stable and experiencing slow but steady growth.   
 

Unemployment 
 
As of June 2020, the County’s unemployment rate was 
24.7% after posting near-full employment at June 2019 
with an unemployment rate of 3.8%.  During the fiscal 
year and starting in April 2020, the month after the World 
Health Organization announced the onset of the COVID-
19 pandemic, the unemployment rate in Mono County 
reached a high of 29.3%. This rate was higher than the 
national rate which reached 14.4% that same month and 
the rate in California which at the time was 16.2%. 
 

 
Property Tax Revenues 
 
Property tax sourced revenue sustained steep reductions through the economic 
downturn and its aftermath, declining $1.9 million, or 10.7%, from its peak.  
Since that time, assessed values now exceeds pre-2008 levels.  Property and 
real property transfer taxes since fiscal year 2012-2013 have increased at rates 
between 1.96% and 5.86%.  This growth continues into fiscal year 2019-2020 
and 2020-2021, with assessed values being 5.86% and 4.95%, respectively, 
above the previous year.   
 
 

Property Tax Delinquencies 
 
The delinquency rate associated with current secured property tax collections is at 
its lowest in history, dropping from 11.1% at June 30, 2010 to 0.79% at June 30, 
2019 and increasing slightly to .87% at June 30, 2020, primarily because for fiscal 
hardships brought about by the pandemic public health measures. 
 
  

 
Sales Tax Revenues 
 
Sales tax collections decreased 5.88% in 2020 but are forecast to return to pre-
pandemic levels in the following fiscal year. Prior to the start of the pandemic, 
sales taxes were steadily increasing, with growth of 15.7% experienced in 2019. 
 
   

 Transient Occupancy Taxes 
 



 
 

iv 
 

Tourism is a major economic sector in Mono County 
and represents an important revenue stream.  The 
County also saw continued growth in transient 
occupancy tax (TOT) through 2018 with revenues 
leveling off in 2019 at 3.5 million, an increase of 
42% since the beginning of the great recession in 
2008.  Starting late in the third quarter and into the 
fourth quarter of FY 2019-20, Mono County 
experienced a loss of 11.36% of revenue from this 
economic sector caused by the COVID-19 shelter-
in-place order and significant travel restrictions put 
in place, especially for those who normally would 
visit from international destinations.  

 
 
Program revenues essential to departments’ ability to maintain public services continues to hold steady, increasing 1.6% for FY 
2019-20.  There were 98 building permits issued in 2020, valued at approximately $4.8 million.  Building permit trends over the 
past 15 years show improvement since the development “bubble” in 2006-2008 when more than 350 permits were issued 
followed by the market crash that began in 2008 and into 2009.  The County’s housing market has yet to reach pre-recession 
levels.   Yet, affordability of housing continues to be a major concern.  The median price of existing single family homes in Mono 
County was $720,000 as of June 2020, dropping Mono County down to the twelfth most expensive county in California and 20% 
less than June of the previous year.  

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The County completed several initiatives in FY 2019-2020 while maintaining core services during the year.  The following 
highlights represent a partial list of the many accomplishments and on-going initiatives of the Mono County organization in FY 
2019-2020: 

 Total property tax collections remained steady at 99.13, slightly down from 99.21% in FY 2018-19, of total amounts 
billed in FY 2019-2020.     

 Construction was completed on the new Civic Center located in the Town of Mammoth and housing 12 departments 
in a total of 33,000 square feet.  The Board of Supervisors approved issuing $19,940,000 of Certificates of 
Participation, Series 2018, which were competitively sold on the market at a total premium of $2,266,116 and 
generating cash proceeds of $22,206,117 to pay for the project. As of June 30, 2020, all but $1.9 million of proceeds 
had been disbursed with the remaining amount held pending released of retention amounts to the construction 
contractor. 

 Successfully negotiated a new five-year contract with the Mono County Public Employees (MCPE). 
 Completed the first of another three-year grant cycle for a Community Development Block Grant to fund a childcare 

program operated by the Mono County First-Five Commission.   
 Renewed our issuer rating of AA3 from Moody’s and the credit rating of AA- long-term rating on the County’s series 

2018A certificates of participation with an outlook of stable. 
 Continued using SB 1 gas tax funding towards execution of the 5-year road capital improvement plan, with several 

projects getting initiated and started during the fiscal year. 
 In March 2020, initiated the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) along with the Town of Mammoth Lakes and the 

Mammoth Lakes Fire Protection District to coordinate efforts in responding to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency. The objectives of the EOC, in cooperation with Mono County Public Health, is provide for public and 
response workforce safety, mitigate the speed of COVID-19 spread, deliver timely, accurate, and transparent 
information about COVID-19 and how it is being managed to citizens and the public, mitigate phobia about the 
disease with facts, and conduct economic recovery based on epidemiologic risk factors. 



 
 

v 
 

 After adoption of the state budget for FY 2020-21, the County received a total of $1,373,000 in CARES Act funding 
passed through the State from the Federal Government.  This funding allowed for reimbursement of COVID-19 
related expenditures retroactive back to March 1, 2020.  During FY 2019-20, the County used $313,891 of this 
funding to cover eligible expenditures incurred during the fiscal year. 

ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY POLICIES 
 
The County maintains accounting controls, which are designed to safeguard assets, and the reliability of financial records for 
financial statement presentation.  These controls include systems of authorization and approval, separation of duties, physical 
control and custody over assets. 
 
Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of 
assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements 
and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be delivered and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments of 
management. All internal control evaluations occur within this framework.  We believe that the County’s internal accounting 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 
 
The County’s budget must balance expenditure appropriations with resources. Any deviation from a balanced budget is not 
permitted by the California State Government Code, which states: “In the recommended, adopted and final budgets the funding 
sources shall equal the financing uses” (Government Code 29009).  The County establishes a general reserve account striving 
to maintain a balance at 5% to 15% of annual general fund expenditures.  The general reserve is available upon adoption of a 
resolution by the Board of Supervisors for spending related to natural disasters, public health crisis, destruction of public facilities 
and other calamities.  With the fiscal year 2016-17, the County established an economic stabilization reserve within the General 
Fund balance for the purpose of accumulating resources to offset future revenue losses during the next recession.  The balance 
of the reserve at June 30, 2020, is $2,723,348.  A contingency appropriation of 1% of General Fund appropriations is included 
in each year’s budget to accommodate unexpected increases in expenditures, which could not have reasonably been anticipated 
at the time the budget was developed. 
 
The objectives of the County’s debt policy include using debt when appropriate and at levels the County can afford.  Long-term 
debt is not to be used to finance ongoing operational costs.  Before considering debt financing, other sources of funding such 
as pay as you go or grant funding is explored.  The County uses self-supporting debt first before considering general fund 
obligated debt.  Annual debt service, excluding self-supporting debt, is limited to 7% of annual general fund discretionary 
revenue.  Efforts are undertaken to maintain and improve the County’s bond ratings so borrowing costs are minimized and 
access to credit is preserved.   
 
Cash temporarily idle during the fiscal year was invested with the County Treasury pooled cash.  This investment pool is 
composed of deposits and investments allowed by California Government Code and the Mono County investment policy.  The 
pooled investment concept allows the various funds within the County Treasury to earn interest based on their average daily 
cash balance.  The County, pursuant to the adopted investment policy, invested in United States Government Agency 
Obligations, California Municipalities, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD), Corporate Bonds and the State Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF).  
 

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 
 
Mono County continues to balance moderate increases in tax revenues against keeping up with the costs of providing services.  
The annual growth in property values since 2014 has averaged 3.41% increase.  Federal and State revenues have begun to 
rebound, even more so during the later stages of FY 2019-20 in response to the pandemic and the resulting recession caused 
by it.  However, budget challenges are ahead.  The County expects increases in personnel costs resulting from salary alignment 
with the market, health care premium increases and escalation of required pension retirement contributions.   



 
 

vi 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
The preparation of this CAFR was achieved through the combined efforts of numerous individuals.  We are especially grateful 
to the Finance Department staff for their outstanding efforts and many hours, which helped us further our objectives of timely 
and accurate financial reporting.  We would also like to thank all the County departments who participated in its preparation and 
the Board for its leadership, responsibility, and action that ensure the general fiscal health and integrity of the County.   
 
Respectfully submitted this 9th day of April, 2021, 
 
 
 
 
JANET DUTCHER, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Finance Director 
County of Mono, CA 
 



 

vii 
 

Mono County Organization Chart 
Elected and Appointed Officials 

 

 



 

viii 
 

COUNTY OF MONO 
DIRECTORY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

As of April 9, 2021 
 

DEPARTMENT  DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL 
   

ELECTED OFFICIALS   

Assessor  Barry Beck 

Board of Supervisors:   

 District #1  Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 

 District #2  Rhonda Duggan 

 District #3  Bob Gardner, Vice-Chair 

 District #4  John Peters 

 District #5  Stacy Corless 
 

District Attorney 
 

 Tim Kendall 

Sheriff-Coroner 
 
Combined Court 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 

 Ingrid Braun 
 
Mark G. Magit 
 
Stacey Adler 

   

APPOINTED OFFICIALS   

County Administrative Officer  Robert Lawton 

County Counsel  Stacey Simon 

Behavioral Health Director  Robin Roberts 

Clerk-Recorder/Clerk of the Board  Shannon Kendall 

EMS Chief  Chris Mokracek 

Finance Director  Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 

Health Officer  Vacant 

Probation Chief  Karin Humiston 

Public Health Director  Bryan Wheeler 

Public Works Director  Anthony Dublino 

Social Services Director  Kathy Peterson 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
of the County of Mono 
Bridgeport, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information  of the County of Mono, California (the 
“County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

  

1



 

 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 7-21, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios – agent 
multiple employer plan on page 87, schedule of pension plan contributions – agent multiple employer plan on 
page 88, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability and related ratios as of the measurement 
date and schedule of contributions – cost sharing multiple employer plan on page 89,  schedule of changes in net 
OPEB liability and related rations on page 90, and budgetary comparison information on pages 92-98 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.  

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

  

2



 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 9, 2021, on our 
consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

Clovis, California  
April 9, 2021 

3



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
  

4



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
  

5



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

The management of the County of Mono (County) offers readers of the County’s annual financial report this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  It should be read in conjunction 
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s basic financial statements following this section. 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The County’s net position was $24,008,345 at June 30, 2020 and increased from the prior year by $615,263, or 2.63%.  

This increase represents the degree to which revenues exceeded expenses, an indication that the County’s position is 
improving. 

 The County’s overall assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $24,008,345 (net position).  
Of this amount, $42,201,981 is invested in capital assets net of related debt.  These capital assets are used to provide 
services to citizens and are not available for future spending. Restricted net position of $30,998,887 is subject to external 
restrictions on their use and are available to meet the County’s ongoing obligations related to programs having external 
restrictions.  This leaves an unrestricted net deficit of $49,192,523.   

 As of June 30, 2020, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $43,288,139, a decrease 
of $14,311,068, or 24.85%, in comparison with the prior year. Most of this decrease results from the spending of bond 
proceeds restricted to the construction of the County’s new civic center facility located in the Town of Mammoth Lakes.  At 
June 30, 2020, construction of the facility was complete with County departments moving into the new space in July 2020.        

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the governmental type funds was $7,218,214, or 16.67% 
of total governmental fund balance, a 10.86% increase in unassigned fund balance from last year. 

 The total long-term debt for the current fiscal year increased by $5,740,323, or 5.61%.  Long-term debt balances increased 
by $4,057,051 from pensions and $2,299,387 from the obligation to provide for closure and post-closure of County landfills, 
while the County’s obligation to pay retiree post-employment health benefits decreased by $2,026,441. Of the total increase 
in debt, $1,566,052 of this increase results from errors affecting the calculating of the capacity of the County’s landfills from 
prior years.  This portion of the debt increase is reported as a restatement of beginning balances (see footnote 9 in the 
notes to the basic financial statements). Additional information is provided in the long-term debt section of this discussion. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s 
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial 
statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements.  Required supplementary information is included in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, 
using accounting methods similar to those of a private-sector business, that is, using the accrual basis of accounting.  The 
financial statements demonstrate Mono County’s accountability by showing the extent to which it has met operating objectives 
efficiently and effectively, using all resources available, and whether it can continue to do so.  These statements provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the County’s overall financial status.  
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the County’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of 
resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

7



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

 
The Statement of Activities presents information on expenses and revenues to show how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues are reported as soon as earned and expenses 
are reported as soon as incurred even though the related cash flows may not take place until future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion 
of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general 
government, public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education and recreation.  
The business-type activities include the solid waste program, airports, cemeteries and campgrounds.  The County has four 
internal service funds: insurance, motor pool, copier pool and computer replacement.  These internal service funds are 
considered governmental activities.   
 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a narrower view of the County’s finance.  Fund accounting is utilized to evidence 
accountability by demonstrating compliance with finance related legal requirements, including budgetary decisions and grant 
requirements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or purposes stipulated by laws, regulations or policies.  The funds of the County are divided 
into three categories:  governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented, for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s 
near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities.   
 
The County maintains 262 individual funds, including 173 fiduciary funds, organized according to type (governmental, fiduciary, 
or proprietary).  On the financial statements for governmental funds, information is presented separately for five major funds: 
General Fund, the Road Fund, the Realignment Fund, the Mental Health Services Act Fund, and the Mono County Civic Center 
Project.  Data from the other non-major governmental funds are aggregated into a single column.  However, data for each of 
these non-major governmental funds is provided in the combining statements located in the Other Supplementary Information 
section of this report. 
 
The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its operating funds. A budgetary comparison schedule is provided for the 
County’s General Fund and each of its major special revenue funds to demonstrate compliance against this budget.  
  
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The 
County maintains two different types of proprietary funds:  enterprise funds and internal service funds.  
  

8



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

Enterprise funds are included in the government-wide financial statements as business-type.  The County uses enterprise funds 
to account for its solid waste program, airports, cemeteries and campground funds.   
 
Internal service funds are included in the government-wide financial statements under governmental activities as they 
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions.  These funds are used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the County’s various internal functions.  The County uses internal service funds to account for its motor 
pool, copier pool, insurance pool, and tech refresh (computer replacement) pool.   
 
Proprietary fund statements provide separate information for its major enterprise funds, which include solid waste and airports.  
The non-major enterprise funds, cemeteries and campgrounds, are aggregated into a single column.  All internal service funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  Individual fund data for the 
non-major enterprise funds and all the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 
 
Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the county government such as special districts 
and schools.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds 
are not available to support the County’s programs.  In the fiduciary fund category, the County maintains several agencies’ 
funds.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds is like that used for proprietary funds. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required supplementary 
information (RSI) that includes budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and the major special revenue funds. The schedule 
of changes in net pension liability, schedule of the County’s retirement plan contributions, schedule of changes in net OPEB 
liability, and schedule of the County’s OPEB contributions are also presented as RSI. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, non-major enterprise funds, 
internal service funds and the investment trust fund are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.   
 
Following the combining statements, an unaudited statistical section is presented for the benefit of the readers of the 
comprehensive annual financial report.  The objectives of the statistical section information are to provide financial statement 
users with additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the financial statements, notes 
to the financial statements, and required supplementary information to understand and assess a government’s economic 
condition. 

  

9



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.  Prior year assets 
and liabilities are shown below for the purpose of providing comparative data on a government-wide level.   

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets 58,526,687$           72,541,290$         7,604,821$           7,173,097$          66,131,508$           79,714,387$         
Capital assets 59,111,984           40,051,955          5,755,367            6,024,655          64,867,351           46,076,610          

Total Assets 117,638,671         112,593,245        13,360,188          13,197,752        130,998,859         125,790,997        

Deferred outflows of resources 14,235,193           15,172,361          194,641               150,969             14,429,834           15,323,330          

Current and other liabilities 6,231,344             7,213,231            248,822               120,579             6,480,166             7,333,810            
Long term liabilities 93,302,787           91,471,771          14,675,839          10,766,532        107,978,626         102,238,303        

Total Liabilities 99,534,131           98,685,002          14,924,661          10,887,111        114,458,792         109,572,113        

Deferred inflows of resources 6,937,869             8,124,182            23,687                 24,950               6,961,556             8,149,132            

Net investment in capital assets 36,446,614           34,011,735          5,755,367            6,024,655          42,201,981           40,036,390          
Restricted 30,994,239           26,868,032          4,648                   4,648                 30,998,887           26,872,680          
Unrestricted (42,038,989)          (39,923,345)         (7,153,534)           (3,592,643)         (49,192,523)          (43,515,988)         

Total Net Position 25,401,864$           20,956,422$         (1,393,519)$          2,436,660$          24,008,345$           23,393,082$         

 
The County’s net position was $24,008,345 as of June 30, 2020, an increase of $615,263, or 2.63%, during the fiscal year.    
 
Investment in capital assets net of related debt of $42,201,981 reflects the County’s investment in capital assets (i.e. its land, 
structures and improvements, infrastructure and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  
The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities.     
 
Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The County’s 
restricted net position of $30,998,887 is comprised of the following resources: 
 

10



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, restricted net position increased $4,126,207 or 15.35%.  A portion of this increase, 
$1,857,244, represents notes receivable held by the County and funded by restricted HOME and CDBG programs.  These 
amounts were previously reported as nonspendable, but were reclassified in the current year as restricted.  The remainder of 
the increase in restricted net position results from the accumulation of restricted intergovernmental resources with the spending 
of those proceeds not occurring for several of the following years.  In many cases such as for road related projects, the County 
waits to accumulate enough revenue resources before initiating a large project in a subsequent year.   
 
Unrestricted net position (deficit) is ($49,192,523) or (205%) of total net position.  Primarily, the deficit is due to the financial 
reporting of liabilities associated with pensions and other postemployment benefits.  Together, these liabilities totaled $65.1 
million at June 30, 2020, representing 49.7% of total assets and 60.3% of total outstanding debt. 
      
The following table presents the activities that accounted for the changes in net position for governmental and business-type 
activities.  The Primary Government (Governmental and Business-type activities) reported an increase in net position of 
$615,263, or 2.63%, to $24,008,345 for the year ended June 30, 2020.  Of this increase, $2,063,861 results from current year 
activities and ($1,448,598) results from restatements to prior year activites. 

Road projects
6%

Health and social 
services
38% County service areas

7%

Community 
development

10%

Various grant 
programs

39%

Cemetery 
endowment

0%

Restricted Purposes

11



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Program revenues:

Fees, Fines & Charges for Services 7,227,289$             7,063,224$           3,101,344$         3,106,124$          10,328,633$         10,169,348$         
Operating grants 24,848,563           23,325,492          40,000              50,000               24,888,563           23,375,492           
Capital grants 1,329,921             --                         --                       --                        1,329,921             --                           

General revenues:
Property taxes 23,792,574             21,244,687           --                        --                         23,792,574           21,244,687           
Sales and use taxes 650,259                  690,854                --                        --                         650,259                690,854                
Other taxes 3,152,004               3,524,952             --                        --                         3,152,004             3,524,952             
Interest/Investment earnings 1,273,549               1,094,325             166,527              143,106               1,440,076             1,237,431             

Total Revenues 62,274,159             56,943,534           3,307,871           3,299,230            65,582,030           60,242,764           

Expenses:
General government 12,620,362             12,256,336           --                        --                         12,620,362           12,256,336           
Public protection 22,075,151             19,584,630           --                        --                         22,075,151           19,584,630           
Public ways and facilities 4,581,122               6,012,093             --                        --                         4,581,122             6,012,093             
Health and Sanitation 11,402,916             10,541,045           --                        --                         11,402,916           10,541,045           
Public assistance 6,221,445               5,562,735             --                        --                         6,221,445             5,562,735             
Education 38,008                    29,635                  --                        --                         38,008                  29,635                  
Recreation and culture 148,197                  97,588                  --                        --                         148,197                97,588                  
Interest and fiscal charges 891,482                  820,757                --                        --                         891,482                820,757                
Solid Waste Landfill --                            --                           5,136,771           2,465,938            5,136,771             2,465,938             
Airport --                            --                           354,966              357,755               354,966                357,755                
Campgrounds --                            --                           25,543                32,336                 25,543                  32,336                  
Cemeteries --                            --                           22,206                14,397                 22,206                  14,397                  

Total Expenses 57,978,683             54,904,819           5,539,486           2,870,426            63,518,169           57,775,245           

Change in net position before transfers 4,295,476               2,038,715             (2,231,615)         428,804               2,063,861             2,467,519             
Transfers 32,512                    54,634                  (32,512)              (54,634)               --                           --                           
Change in net position 4,327,988               2,093,349             (2,264,127)         374,170               2,063,861             2,467,519             

Net position - beginning 20,956,422             18,863,073           2,436,660           2,062,490            23,393,082           20,925,563           
Prior period adjustment 117,454                  --                           (1,566,052)         --                         (1,448,598)            --                           
Net position - beginning, as restated 21,073,876             18,863,073           870,608              2,062,490            21,944,484           20,925,563           
Net position, ending 25,401,864$           20,956,422$         (1,393,519)$       2,436,660$          24,008,345$         23,393,082$         

Statement of Activities

TotalBusiness-Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

 
 

Analysis of Governmental Activities 

Governmental Activities increased the County’s net position by $4,295,476 before transfers and prior period restatements, an 
increase of $2,256,761 over the prior year.  Business-type activities contributed to a decrease in net position of $2,231,615 
before transfers and prior period restatements, compared to the prior year which results were an increase in net position of 
$428,804. Of the decrease in net position for business-type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, closure-post 
closure costs associated with the County landfills accounts for 77% of this decrease.   

Revenues:  Revenues for the County’s governmental activities had an overall increase from the prior year of $5,330,625, or 
9.36%, to $62,274,159.  Revenues are divided into two categories:  Program Revenues and General Revenues. 

Program Revenues includes revenues such as fees, fines, and charges for services as well as operating and capital grants.  
Program revenues increased overall by $3,017,057, or 9.93%, from the prior year to $33,405,773.           

General Revenues include property taxes, sales and use taxes, other taxes/revenues, and interest/investment earnings.  
General revenues increased by $2,313,568, or 8.71%, from the prior year to $28,868,386.  

12



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

 

      

Expenses:  Governmental activities spending increased by $3,073,864, or 5.60%.  Nearly all of this increase, $2,912,000, is 
the result of increases in salaries and benefits. 

 

Analysis of Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities change in net position before transfers and prior period restatements was a deficit of $2,231,615 as of 
June 30, 2020.  Changes in revenues for the County’s Business-Type Activities were relatively flat, with a small increase from 
the prior year of $8,641 before transfers, to $3,307,871.  Expenses increased over the prior year by $2,669,060, or 92.98%, to 
$5,539,486, attributable mainly to an increase in closure and postclosure expenses in the Solid Waste program. 

Fees, Fines & Charges for Services

Grants (Operating and Capital)

Property taxes

Sales and use taxes

Other taxes

Interest/Investment earnings

Revenue by Source ‐ Governmental Activities

FY 2020 FY 2019

 $‐  $5,000,000  $10,000,000  $15,000,000  $20,000,000  $25,000,000

General government

Public protection

Public ways and facilities

Health and sanitation

Public assistance

Education

Recreation and culture

Interest

Program Expense ‐ Governmental Activities

FY 2020 FY 2019

13



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with budgetary and legal 
requirements. 

Governmental funds   
 
The County’s general governmental functions are contained in the General Fund, Special Revenue, Capital Project and Debt 
Service Funds.  The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.  In particular, 
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 

Net Change in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

FY 2020 FY 2019 $ Change % Change
Fund balance, beginning of year 57,599,207$          38,235,330$          19,363,877$          50.64%
Revenues 61,266,563            57,175,019            4,091,544              7.16%
Expenditures (74,934,796)           (59,771,893)           (15,162,903)           25.37%
Other financing sources and uses (760,289)                21,960,751            (22,721,040)           -103.46%
Prior period adjustment 117,454                 -                             117,454                 n/a
Fund balance, end of year 43,288,139$          57,599,207$          (14,311,068)$         -24.85%
Unrestricted fund balance (includes committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance) 12,505,677$          12,265,600$          240,077$               1.96%
% of fund balance which is unrestricted 28.89% 21.29%  
 
At June 30, 2020, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $43,288,139, a decrease of 
$14,428,522, or 25.05%, in comparison with the prior year (for more information see Note 9 – Net Position/Fund Balances).     
 
Unrestricted fund balance represents 28.89% (an increase over last year) of the total governmental fund balance, which may 
be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  Of this amount, $201,007 is committed by resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors, $5,086,456 is assigned to various purposes, leaving $7,218,214 unassigned at June 30, 2020 and 
represents the residual classification for the General Fund and negative amounts from other government funds, if any.  The 
restricted fund balance, $30,156,312, consists of amounts with constraints put in place by externally imposed creditors, grantors, 
laws, regulations, or enabling legislation.  The remainder of fund balance, $626,150, is not in spendable form, such as 
inventories, prepaid expenses, and advances made to other funds. 
 
The following table presents the amount of governmental fund revenues, by type, and showing increases and decreases from 
the prior year. 

14



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

FY 2020 FY 2019 Increase (Decrease)
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Change

Taxes 27,594,837$     45.04% 25,460,493$     44.53% 2,134,344$       8.38%
Licenses and permits 651,088            1.06% 652,175            1.14% (1,087)               -0.17%
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 808,019            1.32% 917,840            1.61% (109,821)           -11.97%
Use of money and property 1,268,948         2.07% 1,102,571         1.93% 166,377            15.09%
Intergovernmental 25,806,849       42.12% 23,930,755       41.86% 1,876,094         7.84%
Charges for services 4,754,494         7.76% 4,640,465         8.12% 114,029            2.46%
Other revenues 382,328            0.62% 470,720            0.82% (88,392)             -18.78%

61,266,563$     100.00% 57,175,019$     100.00% 4,091,544$       7.16%

 
 
Reasons for changes in specific revenue sources for government funds is summarized below: 

 Property tax collections (excluding excess ERAF) increased by $1,363,195, or 7.17% from the prior year 
 Excess ERAF of $1,103,211 was received in FY 2020 after $0 was received in the prior year. 
 Transient occupancy taxes decreased $400,389, or 11.36%.  This is because of the COVID-19 measures to shelter-

in-place during the last quarter of FY 2019-20 and resulting in temporary local lodging establishments and a substantial 
decrease in visitors. 

 During the current year, the County realized $1,329,921 as reimbursement from the State SIP – Aid for Construction 
related to road improvements completed during the fiscal year. 

 In the prior year, a delay in filing the 3rd and 4th quarter reports for the substance abuse and prevention treatment 
program delayed recognition of revenues into the current fiscal year, resulting in an increase of $512,934 in revenues 
for the program. Other programs funded with reimbursement grants also experienced a delay in the receipt of 4th quarter 
receipts and these prior year revenues were recognized in the current fiscal year. 

 Overall, court fine collections decreased in the current fiscal year, primarily for the last quarter of FY 2019-20 because 
of COVID-19 measures to shelter-in-place. 

 
The following table presents the amount of governmental fund expenditures, by function, and showing increases and decreases 
from the prior year. 
 

FY 2020 FY 2019 Increase (Decrease)
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Change

General government 12,004,967$     16.02% 12,172,003$     20.36% (167,036)$         -1.37%
Public protection 20,922,079       27.92% 19,734,926       33.02% 1,187,153         6.02%
Public ways and facilities 7,307,108         9.75% 5,288,869         8.85% 2,018,239         38.16%
Health and sanitation 11,023,061       14.71% 10,645,147       17.81% 377,914            3.55%
Public assistance 6,145,959         8.20% 5,590,564         9.35% 555,395            9.93%
Education 38,008              0.05% 29,635              0.05% 8,373                28.25%
Debt service 1,256,071         1.68% 852,060            1.43% 404,011            47.42%
Capital outlay 16,237,543       21.67% 5,458,689         9.13% 10,778,854       197.46%

74,934,796$     100.00% 59,771,893$     100.00% 15,162,903$     25.37%

 
 
Reasons for changes in specific spending purposes for governmental funds is summarized below: 

 Salaries and other compensation increased by $1,799,851, or 9.58% from the prior year.  Increases are the result of 
filling vacant positions and scheduled cost of living increases according to negotiated union and employment contracts. 

 Health care and pension costs increased by $803,356, or 8.08% from the prior year. 
 As a result of recent updated actuarial valuations of the County’s other post-employment benefits plan, prefunding of 

retiree health costs was discontinued resulting in a decrease in expenditures of $1,000,000. 

15



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

 2018 Certificates of Participation were issued to finance the construction of the County’s new civic center facility, 
resulting in increased debt service of $676,260, and additional capital outlay of $10,250,239. 

 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the County.  At June 30, 2020, unassigned fund balance of the general fund 
was $7,620,328 while total fund balance was $13,331,125.  As measures of this fund’s liquidity, it is useful to note that 
unassigned fund balance represents 22.16% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 38.77% of 
that same amount. 
 
Other Major Governmental Funds 
 
As compared with the prior year, the total fund balances of the remaining governmental funds decreased by 33.33%, or 
$14,974,305, to $29,957,014, with the following significant changes:   
 

 The Mono County Civic Center Project kicked off in December 2018, with the issuance of the 2018 Certificates of 
Participation in the amount of $19,940,000 of par value and $2,266,117 of premium generated upon the sale of the 
certificates.  At June 30, 2020, the capital project closed the fiscal year with fund balance of $312,952, and had spent 
all but $1,947,554, or 91.23% of the original debt proceeds of $22,206,117. 

 The Realignment Fund had a fund balance of $9,704,777 which was all restricted. This was a $1.325 million increase 
over the prior year. 

 The Mental Health Services Act Fund had a fund balance of $7,318,877 of which $7,316,887 was restricted and 
represents an increase of $199,081 over the prior year. 

 The Road Fund had a fund balance of $2,183,369, of which $257,838 was not spendable because it represents 
inventory, and the remainder was restricted.  Fund balance decreased by $391,480, primarily because of lower gas 
tax revenues and a postponement of most road related activities.  This is because of the COVID-19 measures to shelt-
in place and control the spread of the disease in the community.   

 The other governmental funds unassigned fund balance of negative $402,114 reflects delays in funding reimbursement 
for expenditure driven programs once the expenditures have been made.  The general fund covers this deficit while 
waiting for reimbursement. 

 
Proprietary Funds 

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in 
more detail.  Enterprise funds include the solid waste program, airport fund, cemetery fund and campground fund. Additionally, 
there are four internal service funds that are presented in aggregate: Motor Pool, Copier Pool, Tech Refresh Pool and Insurance 
Pool.  Factors affecting the financial results of these funds were discussed earlier in the business-type activities of Mono County. 
 

 The total net position of County enterprise funds decreased by $2,264,127 after transfers but not including the prior 
period restatement of $1,566,052 which decreased the beginning balance of net position.  The solid waste enterprise 
fund decreased their net position by $1,975,322, increasing their deficit net position from the prior fiscal year.  The 
airport enterprise fund decreased their net position from the prior fiscal year by $328,588, primarily because of annual 
depreciation on its capital assets. 

 
 The total net position of internal service funds increased by $1,048,411 from $6,271,021 to $7,319,432 primarily due 

to an increase in charges for services that resulted from rate recalculations, which includes a component to fund 
replacement of capital assets in the future.       
 

 

16



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The Board adopted the County’s budget on July 16, 2019, just after the start of the fiscal year following the required public 
hearings.  A temporary budget was adopted on June 18, 2019, pending adoption of the final budget in the following month.  After    

This initial adopted budget allowed for revenues of $38,488,288 and expenditures of $39,451,041, for a budget deficit of 
$962,753.  The gap was met through use of prior year fund balance.  A mid-year budget review occurred in February 2020 that 
resulted in an overall decrease to fund balance in the General Fund of $289,934.  As of June 30, 2020, the final budget for 
general fund revenues was $39,019,576 and expenditures, $40,272,263.  The overall budget changes throughout the fiscal year 
for the general fund resulted in an increase of $531,288 in revenues and an increase in expenditures of $821,222.            

CAPITAL ASETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The County’s investment in capital assets for its Governmental Activities, as of June 30, 2020, totals $59,111,984 (net of 
accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, structures and improvements, equipment, 
infrastructure and construction in progress.  The total increase in the County’s governmental net investment in capital assets for 
the current period was $19,060,029, or 47.59% (net of accumulated depreciation).  Current depreciation for governmental type 
funds is $2,567,675.  Business-type function assets had a decrease of $269,288, or 4.47%.  Current depreciation for business-
type activities is $357,455, and total assets net of depreciation is $5,755,367. 
 
The county both purchases and constructs capital assets throughout the year.  When a capital project will be completed in a 
subsequent fiscal year, related current year expenditures are recorded as construction in progress (CIP).  In the year of 
completion, a project’s CIP is allocated to the appropriate capital asset classification(s).  As of June 30, 2020, total CIP increased 
by $18,240,630, consisting of $20,112,389 of new project costs added (of which the new County Civic Center represents 
$16,301,985, or 81.05% of all CIP additions) offset by $1,871,759 of completed projects transferred to the appropriate capital 
asset classification.  More detailed discussion can be found in Note 4 in the Notes to the Financial Statements section in this 
report.   
 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land 6,793,617$          6,793,617$         328,423$          328,423$           7,122,040$          7,122,040$          
Construction in progress 23,677,525          5,375,895           --                      61,000               23,677,525          5,436,895            
Infrastructure 97,317,459          95,850,756         545,141            545,141             97,862,600          96,395,897          
Structures & improvements 19,749,275          19,819,380         7,730,944         7,730,944          27,480,219          27,550,324          
Equipment 21,305,308          20,164,074         1,681,630         1,532,463          22,986,938          21,696,537          
Intangibles 1,554,476            1,524,560           --                      --                       1,554,476            1,524,560            
Accumulated Depreciation (111,285,676)       (109,476,327)      (4,530,771)       (4,173,316)        (115,816,447)       (113,649,643)       

Total 59,111,984$        40,051,955$       5,755,367$       6,024,655$        64,867,351$        46,076,610$        

 
The County elected to report its general infrastructure assets beginning July 1, 2003 and hired a consultant to value the 
infrastructure.  The County has maintained and updated is initial valuation as necessary to keep current.  It is important to note, 
assets are valued at their acquisition cost and not as a market value or replacement cost.  

17



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2020, the County had total long-term liabilities outstanding of $106,412,574: 
 

Long Term Liabilities
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019* 2020 2018
Pension obligation bonds 453,100$             580,300$            --$                      --$                      453,100$             580,300$             
Certificates of Participation 19,940,000          19,940,000         --                        --                        19,940,000          19,940,000          
Unamortized premium 2,152,811            2,228,348           --                        --                        2,152,811            2,228,348            
Notes payable --                          159,697              --                        --                        --                          159,697               
Compensated absences 3,210,995            3,150,222           57,728                65,859                3,268,723            3,216,081            
Net pension liability 54,857,739          51,106,087         1,213,271           907,872              56,071,010          52,013,959          
Net OPEB liability 9,038,821            11,065,262         --                        --                        9,038,821            11,065,262          
Claims liability 3,649,321            3,241,855           --                        --                        3,649,321            3,241,855            
Refunded certificates of participation --                          --                        1,447,300           1,700,700           1,447,300            1,700,700            
Landfill postlcosure cost --                          --                        11,957,540         9,658,153           11,957,540          9,658,153            

Total 93,302,787$        91,471,771$       14,675,839$       12,332,584$       107,978,626$      103,804,355$      
* restated to correct errors calculating capacity  of the landfills that increased the closure/postclosure liability  by  41,566,052.  See footnote 9.

 
 

 
 
Total governmental long-term liabilities increased by $1,831,016, or 2.00%, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 largely 
because of increases to pension, other postemployment, and compensated absence obligations reduced by scheduled principal 
payments.  Total business-type long-term liabilities increased by $2,343,255, or 21.76%.  Most of this increase is the result of 
the increase in the County’s obligation for future closure and postclosure costs on its landfills.    
 
Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
included in this annual report. 

  

Pension Obligation 
bonds
1% Certificates of 

Participation
22%

Compensated 
Absences

3%

Net Pension Liability
53%

Net OPEB Liability
9%

Claims Liability
1%

Landfill Postclosure 
Costs
11%

Long‐term Debt Components
As of June 30, 2020

18



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 

 The County’s Net Position increased by $2,181,316, from 2018-19 to 2019-20. 

 The unemployment rate for Mono County until April 2020 averaged 3.8%, at which time the rate spiked to 29.3% within two 
months and ended the fiscal year at 24.7%.  After eight months the unemployment rate leveled off at 8.9%.  The State’s 
unemployment rate as of June 2020 was 14.9%.  Mono County’s scenic and recreational attributes help support tourism 
and recreation which is the major industry and directly affects the employment rate.  The lodging and restaurant 
establishments in the County were hardest hit by the COVID-19 shelter-in-place public health orders and the resulting rise 
in the unemployment rate. 

 Property tax values have stabilized and are expected to increase at a moderate pace of about 2 to 4% annually.  The 
Assessor continues to monitor Prop 8 values and the delinquency rate continues to decrease as properties affected by the 
economic downturn are continuing to recover.  Total assessed valuations in Mono County increased 4.61% from the 2019 
to the 2020 total roll value.  However, expectations are that delinquency rates are likely to increase because of the COVID-
19 pandemic’s fiscal hardship impacts. 

 Through early 2020, certain MOU negotiations result in salary adjustments (increases), such as pay increases, COLAs and 
step-increases, but also included employee cost incentives to move to a less expensive health care plan that is projected 
to save the County just over $1 million per year starting in fiscal year 2020-21.  A portion of these cost savings are passed 
on to the workforce in the form of base pay increases.  COLAs negotiated with all employee groups and effective for the 
FY 2020-21, range from 3.25% to 2%.  These increases were incorporated into next year’s adopted budget.        

 For 2020-21, the employer’s annual payment towards the PERS unfunded liability will increase by $411,946, or 10.58% 
from the previous year.  The lump sum payment due in 2020-21 for the unfunded liability is $4,306,603, excluding the share 
allocable to the Mono County Superior Courts who are participants in the County’s Miscellaneous Plan.   

 For revenue projections:  

o Transient occupancy tax (TOT) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is $400,389, or 11.36%, less than the previous 
year’s $3.5 million and forecasts indicate a shortfall of $637,000, or 24%, in the next budget cycle.  Significant 
reductions in tourism activities including the cancellation of all scheduled gathers, are contributing factors.   

o COVID-19 has brought retail sales activity to a standstill.  Sales tax revenues are forecast to be 27% less in FY 2020-
21.   

o The cost-of-living adjustment for property taxes effective January 1, 2020 is set at 2% and slightly more than 1% 
effective January 1, 2021, reflecting the significant economic downturn over the past eighteen months.   This is despite 
the real estate market continuing to show strong economic growth, both in home values and in volume of sales.       

These factors plus others were considered in preparing the County’s budget for the 2020-21 fiscal year.  The County anticipates 
experiencing significant financial impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic measures into the next two fiscal years.  Losses of key 
discretionary revenues such as transient occupancy and sales taxes are key concerns.  Recovery is expected by the middle of 
FY 2021-22, depending on the County’s ability to move forward with opening up its tourist-based economy without causing 
increased spread of COVID-19 illness among the local population. 
 
The 2020-21 adopted budget is $121.3 million and is the result of collaborative efforts with the CAO, Finance, Department 
Leaders and Board members.  The County Board of Supervisors set fiscal resiliency as a strategic focus area and priority, and 
the County’s leadership team has embraced the challenge of implementing this part of the vision.  Although the General Fund 
adopted budget for fiscal year 2020-21 is not structurally balanced, it is adopted at a chosen target level of a deficit of $3 million 

19



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

which is a 20% reduction over the FY 2019-2020 amended budget deficit of $3,000,000 and 51.3% reduction over the FY 2018-
19 deficit of $6,153,944. 
 
The 2020-21 adopted budget is sufficient to: 
 

 Provide core services including public safety, public health, community safety net services, road and infrastructure 
repairs and improvements, community and economic development services, and governance and administration. 

 Funding for all positions with recruitment efforts underway as well as opportunities for staff promotions. 
 Implements a six-month plan for filling all General Fund position vacancies and achieves maximum budgetary 

savings. 
 An appropriation of $150,000 for hiring a consultant firm(s) to prepare multi-year fiscal projections and conduct a 

countywide fee study. 
 Continue EMS expansion in the Tri-Valley region at $252,000. 
 Contribution of $395,000 towards the replacement of heavy equipment/vehicles under CARB regulations. 
 Transfer of $707,137 from General Fund carryover to the Criminal Justice Facility Capital Projects fund (new jail).  

With this transfer, the County has accumulated the $1,494,000 required local match to receive SB 844 $25 million of 
state bond proceeds. 

 Continue GF contribution to First Five Commission, this year at $1078,573, for the home visiting program. 
 Hiring a new position, the permanent recreation coordinator.  In accordance with our MOU, the County will receive 

partial reimbursement from the Town of Mammoth Lakes with the remainder of the funding coming from geothermal 
royalties. 

 Hiring a housing manager or director funded partially with the Whole Persons Care Grant but ultimately will be a GF 
obligation when funding runs out unless other grant resources are identified.  The local rental subsidy program of 
$155,000 is also included, also funded with the Whole Persons Care grant.  

 Collection of Civic Center rents from departments residing in the newly finished Civic Center and appropriations of 
$1,266,675 to make the County’s first year of debt service on the 2019 Civic Center Certificates of Participation 
obligation. 

 CARES Act funding of $1,373,000. 
 Continued funding the COVID-19 EOC operations funded with 75% FEMA revenues with the other 25% paid for with 

a transfer from the County’s general reserve.  The joint EOC operations was opened in mid-March to respond to the 
pandemic emergency which continues into the next fiscal year. 

 
County budgets require give and take and there is never enough money to go around.  With the strategic priority of fiscal 
resiliency, any additional, even critical, expenditures that enhance County fiscal health, fulfill mandates or satisfy stakeholder 
funding requests need to be postponed until new funding is identified.  To highlight a few items, while still noteworthy, this 
adopted budget does not include: 
 

 Additional contributions to General Fund contingency reserves that include the general reserve, economic 
stabilization, and unassigned carryover balance to reach the Government Finance Officers Association 
recommendation of $10 million (33% of General Fund annual appropriations). 

 Funding above the base line amount of $150,000 to pay for upgrades to the radio infrastructure system. 
 Resources to subsidize an affordable housing plan, beyond its current accumulated balance, which is likely to be 

depleted within three years. 
 Funding for future investment beyond a pay as you go approach in the County’s CARB compliant equipment 

replacement program. 
 Does not address setting aside additional resources to pay down the County’s unfunded pension liability of 

approximately $56.1 million. 
 

20



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2020 
 

 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to demonstrate accountability by the Mono County government by providing both a long-term 
and near-term views of the County’s finances.  Questions or comments regarding any of the information presented in this report 
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
 

Director of Finance 
County of Mono 

P.O. Box 556 
Bridgeport, CA 93517-0556 

(760) 932-5490 

21



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
  

22



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
GOVERNMENT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  

23



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

24



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Cash and investments 42,250,207$     3,482,883$      45,733,090$     
Cash with fiscal agent 2,480,996         -                       2,480,996         
Restricted cash -                        3,894,435        3,894,435         
Accounts receivable 394,377            288,884           683,261            
Due from other governments 4,662,948         -                       4,662,948         
Taxes receivable 800,263            -                       800,263            
Deposits with others 5,282,162         -                       5,282,162         
Prepaid expense 193,033            -                       193,033            
Inventories 288,511            13,619             302,130            
Loans receivable 2,099,190         -                       2,099,190         
Internal balances 75,000              (75,000)            -                        
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 30,471,142       328,423           30,799,565       
Depreciable, net 28,640,842       5,426,944        34,067,786       

Total Assets 117,638,671     13,360,188      130,998,859     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 10,648,617       194,641           10,843,258       
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 3,586,576         -                       3,586,576         

14,235,193       194,641           14,429,834       
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,728,769         214,470           4,943,239         
Salaries and benefits payable 1,265,032         24,004             1,289,036         
Interest payable 236,743            10,348             247,091            
Deposits from others 800                   -                       800                   
Long-term liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year 5,974,614         308,874           6,283,488         
Portion due or payable after one year 87,328,173       14,366,965      101,695,138     

Total Liabilities 99,534,131       14,924,661      114,458,792     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,845,878         23,687             1,869,565         
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 5,091,991         -                       5,091,991         

6,937,869         23,687             6,961,556         

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 36,446,614       5,755,367        42,201,981       
Restricted 30,994,239       4,648               30,998,887       
Unrestricted (42,038,989)      (7,153,534)       (49,192,523)      

Total Net Position 25,401,864$     (1,393,519)$     24,008,345$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
25



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Revenues
Fees, Fines and Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

FUNCTION / PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
General government 12,620,362$     3,513,065$       1,698,240$       -$                      
Public protection 22,075,151       1,582,210         5,543,804         -                        
Public ways and facilities 4,581,122         224,886            4,146,355         1,329,921         
Health and sanitation 11,402,916       1,736,166         7,390,589         -                        
Public assistance 6,221,445         170,962            6,068,573         -                        
Education 38,008              -                        1,002                -                        
Recreation and culture 148,197            -                        -                        -                        
Interest on long-term debt 891,482            -                        -                        -                        

Total Governmental Activities 57,978,683       7,227,289         24,848,563       1,329,921         

Business-Type Activities
Solid Waste 5,136,771         3,039,023         20,000              -                        
Airport 354,966            5,365                20,000              -                        
Campgrounds 25,543              41,056              -                        -                        
Cemeteries 22,206              15,900              -                        -                        

Total Business-type Activities 5,539,486         3,101,344         40,000              -                        

Total Primary Government 63,518,169$     10,328,633$     24,888,563$     1,329,921$       

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Taxes:

Property
Sales and use
Transient occupancy
Other

Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers

Total General Revenues

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
26



Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Business-
Governmental Type

Activities Activities Total
FUNCTION / PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
(7,409,057)$       -$                    (7,409,057)$     General government

(14,949,137)       -                      (14,949,137)     Public protection
1,120,040          -                      1,120,040        Public ways and facilities

(2,276,161)         -                      (2,276,161)       Health and sanitation
18,090               -                      18,090             Public assistance

(37,006)              -                      (37,006)            Education
(148,197)            -                      (148,197)          Recreation and culture
(891,482)            -                      (891,482)          Interest on long-term debt

(24,572,910)       -                      (24,572,910)     Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
-                         (2,077,748)      (2,077,748)       Solid Waste
-                         (329,601)         (329,601)          Airport
-                         15,513            15,513             Campgrounds
-                         (6,306)             (6,306)              Cemeteries
-                         (2,398,142)      (2,398,142)       Total Business-type Activities

(24,572,910)       (2,398,142)      (26,971,052)     Total Primary Government

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS
Taxes:

23,792,574        -                      23,792,574      Property
650,259             -                      650,259           Sales and use

3,123,154          -                      3,123,154        Transient occupancy
28,850               -                      28,850             Other

1,273,549          166,527          1,440,076        Unrestricted investment earnings
32,512               (32,512)           -                       Transfers

28,900,898        134,015          29,034,913      Total General Revenues

4,327,988          (2,264,127)      2,063,861        CHANGES IN NET POSITION
21,073,876        870,608          21,944,484      Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated

25,401,864$      (1,393,519)$    24,008,345$    NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
27



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

28



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

29



COUNTY OF MONO
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Mental Health
General Road Realignment Services Act

ASSETS
Cash and investments 12,047,322$    579,811$      9,507,872$     7,259,923$     
Accounts receivable 313,654           55,364          -                      -                      
Due from other governments 978,962           1,443,326     342,564          153,703          
Taxes receivable 800,263           -                    -                      -                      
Due from other funds 139,394           -                    -                      -                      
Advances to other funds 174,013           -                    -                      -                      
Prepaid expenses 161,184           -                    -                      1,990              
Inventories 1,266               257,838        -                      -                      
Loans receivable 887,327           -                    -                      -                      

Total Assets 15,503,385$    2,336,339$   9,850,436$     7,415,616$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 439,492$         95,329$        145,659$        63,135$          
Salaries and benefits payable 905,015           57,641          -                      33,604            
Due to other funds -                       -                    -                      -                      
Advances from other funds -                       -                    -                      -                      
Deposits from others 800                  -                    -                      -                      

Total Liabilities 1,345,307        152,970        145,659          96,739            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues 826,953           -                    -                      -                      

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 336,463           257,838        -                      1,990              
Restricted 1,287,923        1,925,531     9,704,777       7,316,887       
Committed -                       -                    -                      -                      
Assigned 4,086,411        -                    -                      -                      
Unassigned 7,620,328        -                    -                      -                      

Total Fund Balances 13,331,125      2,183,369     9,704,777       7,318,877       
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
  of Resources and Fund Balances 15,503,385$    2,336,339$   9,850,436$     7,415,616$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
30



Mono County
Civic Center Other

Project Governmental Total
ASSETS

2,770,952$         9,919,331$         42,085,211$    Cash and investments
-                          4,696                  373,714           Accounts receivable

62,114                1,682,279           4,662,948        Due from other governments
-                          -                          800,263           Taxes receivable
-                          167,450              306,844           Due from other funds
-                          -                          174,013           Advances to other funds
-                          29,859                193,033           Prepaid expenses
-                          -                          259,104           Inventories
-                          1,211,863           2,099,190        Loans receivable

2,833,066$         13,015,478$       50,954,320$    Total Assets

LIABILITIES
2,520,114$         1,155,874$         4,419,603$      Accounts payable

-                          252,906              1,249,166        Salaries and benefits payable
-                          306,844              306,844           Due to other funds
-                          99,013                99,013             Advances from other funds
-                          -                          800                  Deposits from others

2,520,114           1,814,637           6,075,426        Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
-                          763,802              1,590,755        Unavailable revenues

FUND BALANCES
-                          29,859                626,150           Nonspendable
-                          9,921,194           30,156,312      Restricted
-                          201,007              201,007           Committed

312,952              687,093              5,086,456        Assigned
-                          (402,114)             7,218,214        Unassigned

312,952              10,437,039         43,288,139      Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

2,833,066$         13,015,478$       50,954,320$      of Resources and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
31



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

32



COUNTY OF MONO
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds and Activities
June 30, 2020

Fund balance - total governmental funds 43,288,139$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different 
because:

Certain amounts are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, 
are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred outflow amounts related to pensions 10,561,290        
Deferred outflow amounts related to OPEB 3,586,576          
Deferred inflow amounts related to pensions (1,835,250)         
Deferred inflow amounts related to OPEB (5,091,991)         

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in the governmental funds 55,328,778        

Unavailable revenues represent amounts that are not available to fund current 
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,590,755          

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of motor pool, copier 
pool, insurance and other activities to individual funds.  The assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of the internal service funds are included in governmental 
activities in the statement of net position. 7,319,432          

Long-term liabilities, including capital leases, are not due and payable in the current 
period, and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Bonds payable (22,545,911)       
Compensated absences (3,210,995)         
Net pension liability (54,313,395)       
Net OPEB liability (9,038,821)         
Interest payable (236,743)            

Net position of governmental activities 25,401,864$      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
33



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Mental Health
General Road Realignment Services Act

REVENUES
Taxes 27,352,313$   -$                  -$                     -$                       
Licenses and permits 327,578          8,448            -                       -                         
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 696,598          48,657          -                       -                         
Use of money and property 439,959          38,409          209,591           161,328             
Intergovernmental 4,921,756       5,476,276     3,491,636        1,499,589          
Charges for services 3,431,433       648,194        -                       -                         
Other revenues 61,905            -                    -                       -                         

Total Revenues 37,231,542     6,219,984     3,701,227        1,660,917          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 11,797,072     -                    -                       -                         
Public protection 17,997,964     -                    640,313           -                         
Public ways and facilities -                      7,307,108     -                       -                         
Health and sanitation 4,102,514       -                    148,060           1,461,836          
Public assistance 291,895          -                    -                       -                         
Education 38,008            -                    -                       -                         

Debt service:
Principal 159,697          -                    -                       -                         
Interest and other related costs 1,996              -                    -                       -                         

Capital outlay -                      -                    -                       -                         
Total Expenditures 34,389,146     7,307,108     788,373           1,461,836          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
 (Under) Expenditures 2,842,396       (1,087,124)    2,912,854        199,081             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 159,188          73,611          -                       -                         
Transfers in 1,185,687       622,033        -                       -                         
Transfers out (3,524,034)      -                    (1,863,478)       -                         

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (2,179,159)      695,644        (1,863,478)       -                         

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 663,237          (391,480)       1,049,376        199,081             
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, Restated 12,667,888     2,574,849     8,655,401        7,119,796          
FUND BALANCE, END OF THE YEAR 13,331,125$   2,183,369$   9,704,777$      7,318,877$        

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
34



Mono County
Civic Center Other

Project Governmental Total
REVENUES

-$                    242,524$         27,594,837$    Taxes
-                      315,062           651,088           Licenses and permits
-                      62,764             808,019           Fines, forfeitures and penalties

233,330           186,331           1,268,948        Use of money and property
-                      10,417,592      25,806,849      Intergovernmental
-                      674,867           4,754,494        Charges for services
-                      320,423           382,328           Other revenues

233,330           12,219,563      61,266,563      Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

-                      207,895           12,004,967      General government
-                      2,283,802        20,922,079      Public protection
-                      -                      7,307,108        Public ways and facilities
-                      5,310,651        11,023,061      Health and sanitation
-                      5,854,064        6,145,959        Public assistance
-                      -                      38,008             Education

Debt service:
-                      127,200           286,897           Principal

941,175           26,003             969,174           Interest and other related costs
16,089,088      148,455           16,237,543      Capital outlay
17,030,263      13,958,070      74,934,796      Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(16,796,933)    (1,738,507)      (13,668,233)      (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
-                      -                      232,799           Proceeds from sale of capital assets

565,000           2,860,391        5,233,111        Transfers in
-                      (838,687)         (6,226,199)       Transfers out

565,000           2,021,704        (760,289)          
Total Other Financing Sources and 
(Uses)

(16,231,933)    283,197           (14,428,522)     NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
16,544,885      10,153,842      57,716,661      Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, Restated

312,952$         10,437,039$    43,288,139$    FUND BALANCE, END OF THE YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
35



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

36



COUNTY OF MONO
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds and Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Net change to fund balances - total governmental funds (14,428,522)$       
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other related capital 
assets adjustments 19,985,923           
Less: current year depreciation (1,828,010)           18,157,913           

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
not reported as revenues in the governmental funds (unavailable revenues).  In the 
statement of activities, revenues have been reduced by the amounts that were 
unavailable at the beginning of the year and increased by the amounts that were 
unavailable at the end of the year. 371,635                

Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date is an expenditure in 
the governmental funds, but reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the statement 
of net position. 6,376,241             

Long-term debt proceeds provide current resources to governmental funds, but issuing 
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.  Repayment of debt 
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Principal repayments 286,897                

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental 
funds.

Change in compensated absences (60,773)                
Change in accrued interest 2,154                    
Change in unamortized premium 75,537                  16,918                  

Changes to the net OPEB liability and OPEB related deferred outflows or inflows of 
resources do not provide or require the use of current financial resources and therefore 
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 1,862,939             

Changes to the net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows or inflows of 
resources do not provide or require the use of current financial resources and therefore 
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (9,364,444)           

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to 
individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds activities is 
reported with governmental activities. 1,048,411             

Change in net position of governmental activities 4,327,988$           

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
37



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds Governmental 
June 30, 2020 Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal 
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments 3,281,388$        44,634$             156,861$           3,482,883$        2,577,637$        
Cash with fiscal agent -                         -                         -                         -                         68,355               
Accounts receivable 284,189             -                         4,695                 288,884             20,663               
Deposits with others -                         -                         -                         -                         5,282,162          
Inventory 11,507               2,112                 -                         13,619               29,407               

Total Current Assets 3,577,084          46,746               161,556             3,785,386          7,978,224          

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash in Treasury 3,894,435          -                         -                         3,894,435          -                         
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 52,800               275,623             -                         328,423             47,051               
Depreciable, net 921,987             4,504,957          -                         5,426,944          3,736,155          

Total Noncurrent Assets 4,869,222          4,780,580          -                         9,649,802          3,783,206          
Total Assets 8,446,306          4,827,326          161,556             13,435,188        11,761,430        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred amounts related to pensions 194,641             -                         -                         194,641             87,327               

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 210,507             216                    3,747                 214,470             309,166             
Salaries and benefits payable 24,004               -                         -                         24,004               15,866               
Interest payable 10,348               -                         -                         10,348               -                         
Advances from other funds 75,000               -                         -                         75,000               -                         
Refunded certificates of participation 266,400             -                         -                         266,400             -                         
Compensated absences 42,474               -                         -                         42,474               -                         
Claims liability -                         -                         -                         -                         3,649,321          

Total Current Liabilities 628,733             216                    3,747                 632,696             3,974,353          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Refunded certificates of participation 1,180,900          -                         -                         1,180,900          -                         
Compensated absences 15,254               -                         -                         15,254               -                         
Closure and post closure liability 11,957,540        -                         -                         11,957,540        -                         
Net pension liability 1,213,271          -                         -                         1,213,271          544,344             

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 14,366,965        -                         -                         14,366,965        544,344             
Total Liabilities 14,995,698        216                    3,747                 14,999,661        4,518,697          

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred amounts related to pensions 23,687               -                         -                         23,687               10,628               

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 974,787             4,780,580          -                         5,755,367          3,783,206          
Restricted -                         -                         4,648                 4,648                 -                         
Unrestricted (7,353,225)         46,530               153,161             (7,153,534)         3,536,226          

Total Net Position (6,378,438)$       4,827,110$        157,809$           (1,393,519)$       7,319,432$        

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
38



Governmental 
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal 
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 3,031,781$     4,165$            56,956$          3,092,902$     4,555,712$     

Total Operating Revenues 3,031,781       4,165              56,956            3,092,902       4,555,712       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 1,203,893       -                      -                      1,203,893       854,830          
Services and supplies 1,525,992       33,862            47,749            1,607,603       3,056,489       
Closure and post closure costs 2,299,387       -                      -                      2,299,387       -                      
Depreciation 36,351            321,104          -                      357,455          739,665          

Total Operating Expenses 5,065,623       354,966          47,749            5,468,338       4,650,984       

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (2,033,842)      (350,801)         9,207              (2,375,436)      (95,272)           

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 162,426          2,213              3,088              167,727          56,943            
Interest expense (71,148)           -                      -                      (71,148)           -                      
Operating grants 20,000            20,000            -                      40,000            -                      
Miscellaneous 5,556              -                      -                      5,556              43,344            
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 1,686              -                      -                      1,686              17,796            

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 118,520          22,213            3,088              143,821          118,083          

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers (1,915,322)      (328,588)         12,295            (2,231,615)      22,811            

Transfers in -                      -                      27,488            27,488            1,025,600       
Transfers out (60,000)           -                      -                      (60,000)           -                      

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,975,322)      (328,588)         39,783            (2,264,127)      1,048,411       

Net Position, Beginning of Year, Restated (4,403,116)      5,155,698       118,026          870,608          6,271,021       

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR (6,378,438)$    4,827,110$     157,809$        (1,393,519)$    7,319,432$     

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
39



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental 
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal 
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers 3,107,014$       4,165$              52,933$            3,164,112$       -$                       
Cash receipts from internal fund services provided -                        -                        -                        -                    4,535,049          
Cash paid to employees for services (952,053)           -                        -                        (952,053)           (500,701)            
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (1,392,720)        (33,880)             (50,482)             (1,477,082)        (3,493,227)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 762,241            (29,715)             2,451                734,977            541,121             

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment on advances from other funds (195,000)           -                        -                        (195,000)           -                         
Miscellaneous receipts 5,556                -                        -                        5,556                43,344               
Operating grants 20,000              40,000              -                        60,000              -                         
Net transfers from (to) other funds -                        -                        27,488              27,488              -                         
Repayment of debt not attributable to capital purposes (253,400)           -                        -                        (253,400)           -                         
Interest paid (72,960)             -                        -                        (72,960)             -                         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing
Activities (495,804)           40,000              27,488              (428,316)           43,344               

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Net transfers from (to) other funds (60,000)             -                        -                        (60,000)             1,025,600          
Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets (88,167)             -                        -                        (88,167)             (1,783,725)         
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 1,686                -                        -                        1,686                45,272               

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities (146,481)           -                        -                        (146,481)           (712,853)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 162,426            2,213                3,088                167,727            56,943               

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 162,426            2,213                3,088                167,727            56,943               

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 282,382            12,498              33,027              327,907            (71,445)              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 6,893,441         32,136              123,834            7,049,411         2,717,437          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 7,175,823$       44,634$            156,861$          7,377,318$       2,645,992$        

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
to the Statement of Fund Net Position

Cash and investments 3,281,388$       44,634$            156,861$          3,482,883$       2,577,637$        
Cash with fiscal agent -                        -                        -                        -                        68,355               
Restricted cash in Treasury 3,894,435         -                        -                        3,894,435         -                         

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,175,823$       44,634$            156,861$          7,377,318$       2,645,992$        

continued

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
40



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental 
Activities

Nonmajor Total Internal 
Solid Enterprise Enterprise Service
Waste Airport Funds Funds Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (2,033,842)$      (350,801)$         9,207$              (2,375,436)$      (95,272)$            

Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities

Depreciation 36,351              321,104            -                        357,455            739,665             
Changes in assets and liabilities

Receivables 75,233              -                        (4,023)               71,210              (20,663)              
Prepaid expenses -                        -                        -                        -                    3,300                 
Deposits with others -                        -                        -                        -                    (791,555)            
Inventory (27)                    -                        -                        (27)                    (29,407)              
Deferred outflows (43,672)             -                        -                        (43,672)             (64,766)              
Accounts payable 133,299            (18)                    (2,733)               130,548            (26,542)              
Accrued salaries and benefits (493)                  -                        -                        (493)                  3,326                 
Claims liability -                        -                        -                        -                    407,466             
Closure and postclosure liability, adjusted for restatement 2,299,387         -                        -                        2,299,387         -                         
Liability for compensated absences (8,131)               -                        -                        (8,131)               -                         
Net pension liability 305,399            -                        -                        305,399            408,669             
Deferred inflows (1,263)               -                        -                        (1,263)               6,900                 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 762,241$          (29,715)$           2,451$              734,977$          541,121$           

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
41



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

Investment
Trust Agency

ASSETS
Pooled Cash and investments 59,194,745$      5,386,018$        

Total Assets 59,194,745        5,386,018          

LIABILITIES
Agency funds held for others -                         5,386,018          

Total Liabilities -                         5,386,018          

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for investment pool participants 59,194,745        -                         

Total Net Position 59,194,745$      -$                       

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
42



COUNTY OF MONO
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Investment
Trust

ADDITIONS
Contributions 78,462,341$      
Investment income 1,330,651          

Total Additions 79,792,992        

DEDUCTIONS
Distributions 78,388,615        

Total Deductions 78,388,615        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,404,377          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 57,790,368        

NET POSITION, END OF THE YEAR 59,194,745$      

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
43



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

44



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The notes provided in the financial section of this report are considered an integral and essential part of adequate 
disclosure and fair presentation of this report.  The notes include a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for the 
County and other necessary disclosure of pertinent matters relating to the financial position of the County.  The notes 
provide significant insight to the financial statements and are conjunctive to understanding the rational for presentation 
of the financial statement and information contained in this document.   
 

45



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  

46



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the County of Mono (the County) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applicable to governmental entities.  The more significant of the County’s accounting 
policies are described below. 

The Reporting Entity 

The County is a legal subdivision of the State of California whereby it can exercise the powers specified by the 
constitution and statutes of the State of California.  The County operates under an Administrator-Board of Supervisors 
form of government with legislative and executive control held by an elected five-member Board of Supervisors.  Major 
services provided by the County to its citizens include public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, 
public assistance, education, culture and recreation, and general services.  In addition, the County administers various 
special districts governed by the Board and provides services to other special districts governed by independent local 
boards.  These special districts are located within the boundaries of the County and were established under various 
sections of the California Government Code.  The County provides fiscal agent and accounting services to many of 
these districts. 

These financial statements present the County (the primary government) and its component units, entities for which 
the government considers itself financially accountable. Reporting for component units on the County’s financial 
statements is either blended or discretely presented. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are 
in substance, part of the government’s operations because the County’s Board generally is their governing body.  
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements 
to emphasize they are legally separate from the County. Each component unit has a June 30th year end. 

Blended Component Units 

There are five entities which meet the criteria of a blended component unit. These dependent entities are Community 
Service Districts whose Advisory Boards are governed by the Board of Supervisors. The affected districts include 
Community Service Area #1 – Crowley; Community Service Area #5 – Bridgeport; and Community Service Area #2 – 
Benton.  The County of Mono Economic Development Corporation and the Housing Authority of the County of Mono 
are also blended component units.  The governing bodies of the Corporation and the Authority are the County’s 
governing body.  The Corporation was formed to assist with financing public improvements of the County.  The Authority 
was formed to transact business and exercise powers as defined by the Housing Authorities law. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

There are no entities which meet the criteria of a discretely presented component unit. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the primary government (the County) 
and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary 
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements 
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities, which 

47



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment 
of the business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities.  Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to 
a particular function.  Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead 
as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary funds and blended 
component units.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary and fiduciary – are 
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed 
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as 
nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for goods or services are provided by the fund as part of its 
principal activity and result from exchange transactions.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives 
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from 
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.  Operating expenses include the costs of providing services and 
delivering goods.  All other expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

 The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund and is used to account for all revenues and expenditures 
necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the County that are not accounted for through other funds. 
For the County, the General Fund includes such activities as public protection, public ways and facilities, health 
and sanitation, public assistance, education, recreation and cultural services and general administration. 

 The Road Fund provides for maintenance and construction of roadways.  Revenues consist primarily of the 
County’s share of state highway users tax supplemented by federal and state funds. 

 The Realignment Fund accounts for State realigned revenues generated from sales taxes and vehicle license 
fees that are restricted to expenditure for specific social, health, mental health and public safety programs.. 

 The Mental Health Services Act Fund accounts for Proposition 63 funding passed in 2004 to expand and further 
develop mental health services in the County.  It uses state funding to provide services such as wellness center 
programs, school programs, community garden projects and community social events. 

 The Mono County Civic Center Project is a capital projects fund accounting for resources used to construct the 
County’s new Civic Center Administrative facility located within the Town of Mammoth Lakes.  The primary funding 
source is debt proceeds from the issuance of the $19,940,000, 2019 Certificates of Participation, Series A.   

  

48



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

The County reports the following major enterprise funds: 

 The Solid Waste Fund accounts for revenues and expenses incurred in providing waste collection services at 
transfer stations throughout the County and waste disposal services at three County landfills.  Operations includes 
the permitting, monitoring and maintenance of the County’s three active landfills, as well as three closed landfills, 
and implementation of recycling programs throughout the County in an effort to maintain and enhance diversion 
efforts.  

 The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the County’s two airports that include Bryant 
Field and Lee Vining Airport.  Airport operations include applying for and administering grants to complete Airport 
Capital Improvement Programs and administration of leases and sub-leases on airport property. 

The County reports the following additional fund types: 

 Internal Service Funds account for financing of goods or services provided by one department to other County 
departments on a cost reimbursement basis.  Activities include the County’s copier pool which purchases and 
maintains copy machines, technology refresh pool which accounts for the replacement of county desktop 
computers, laptops, servers, certain licensing of installed software applications, and other technology items, self-
insurance programs, and the County’s motor pool which purchases and maintains vehicles.  Department user fees 
include a capital replacement charge, if applicable, to provide financing for replacing internally utilized assets at 
the end of their respective useful lives. 

 The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities, which invest in the County 
Treasurer’s investment pool.  These entities include school districts, other special districts governed by local 
boards, regional boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for the County’s one 
incorporated town.  These funds represent the assets, primarily cash and investments, and the related liability of 
the County to disburse these monies on demand. 

 Agency Funds account for assets held by the County as an agent for various individuals or other local 
governments.  These funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results or operations.  Such 
funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future time. 

Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary and investment trust fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal 
value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue 
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales taxes are 
recognized when the underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Sales taxes, 
interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within ninety 
days after the end of the accounting period so as to be measurable and available. Property taxes are recognized in the 
current year if they are collected within sixty days after the end of the fiscal year.  Licenses, permits, fines, forfeitures, 
and other revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until 

49



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

actually received.  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Agency funds apply the accrual basis of accounting but do not have a measurement focus. 

Cash and Investments 

The County follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds with the County Treasurer except for cash 
and investments managed by fiscal agents under separate agreements.  Interest earned on bank balances and 
investments is allocated to the various funds on a quarterly basis using each fund’s average daily cash balances for 
those funds entitled to receive interest with all remaining interest deposited in the County’s General Fund.   

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External 
Investment Pools” and GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application”, investments generally are 
stated at fair value in the statement of net position and balance sheet and the corresponding changes in the fair value 
of investments are recognized as investment earnings in the year in which the change occurred. The fair value of 
investments is determined annually.   

The County Treasurer’s Pool values participants’ shares on an amortized cost basis meaning the Pool distributes 
income to participants based on their relative participation during the period.  Actual daily activity is transacted on a 
dollar-for-dollar basis and only a withdrawal from the pool of a size that jeopardizes pool participants would result in a 
withdrawal at fair value.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the County has not provided or obtained any 
legally binding guarantees to support the value of pool shares. 

The investment pool includes both voluntary and involuntary participation from external entities. The State of California 
statutes require certain special districts and other governmental entities to maintain their cash surplus with the County 
Treasurer. 

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less and pooled cash and investments to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash and Investments 

Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent cash and investments held to finance closure and postclosure costs 
as required by state and federal laws and regulations. 

Inventory 

Inventories consist of materials and supplies held for consumption and are valued at cost. Inventory consists of 
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items 
are consumed. Inventories in the governmental funds are equally offset by a corresponding nonspendable fund balance 
amount, which indicates that inventories do not represent expendable available resources.   

Receivables, Unavailable Revenue and Unearned Revenue 

The County uses a 90-day time period for recognizing accruals in the governmental funds, except that property tax 
revenues are recognized if receipts occur within sixty days.  Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts.  

50



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Total uncollectible amounts are related to delinquent property taxes in the amount of $75,415 and is recorded in the 
General Fund. Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables not considered available 
within the 90-day period (or 60-days if from property taxes).  Governmental and enterprise funds report unearned 
revenue in connection with resources received, but eligibility requirements have not been satisfied.  

Certain grant revenues are recognized when specific related expenditures have been incurred. In other grant programs, 
monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are only revocable for failure to comply with 
prescribed compliance requirements. These revenues are recognized at the time of receipt, or earlier if susceptible to 
accrual criteria is met. Cash received prior to incurrence of the related expenditure is recorded as unearned revenue. 

Notes Receivable 

The notes receivable balances in the General Fund and the Housing Fund balance sheet consist of loans made with 
funds provided to the County under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs, primarily the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME).  The loans are 
made to carry out activities for affordable housing and are reported at the outstanding principle balance. 

Generally, notes are deferred with all principal and interest due on the earlier of the due date of the note or sale or 
transfer of the property.  Any repayment of principal or interest applicable to the CDBG and HOME programs is treated 
as program revenue.   A loan committee approves the loans and deferral of payments. 

Prepaid Expenses/Items and Deposits 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
expenses in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.  Payments made in advance of the receipt of 
goods or property is recorded as deposits.  The cost of prepaid expense is recorded an expense when consumed 
rather than when purchased.  Prepaid expenses and deposits in the governmental fund financial statements are equally 
offset by a corresponding nonspendable fund balance amount, which indicates that prepaid expenses and deposits do 
not represent expendable available resources. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure 
(e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets (e.g. land easements and computer software).  
Assets that are purchased or constructed are reported at historical costs or at estimated historical cost is actual cost is 
not available.  Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date of donation. 

Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred.  Betterments and major improvements that 
significantly increase values, change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized.  Upon sale or retirement of capital 
assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting 
gain or loss is included in the results of operations. 

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and as additions to capital assets in the 
proprietary and the government-wide financial statements, in accordance with the County’s capitalization policy.  The 
County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life 
in excess of one year. Capital assets used in operations are depreciated or amortized (assets under capital leases) in 
the government-wide statements and proprietary funds using the straight-line method over the lesser of the capital 
lease period or their estimated useful lives. 

51



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 Infrastructure 20 to 50 years 
 Structures and improvements 20 to 50 years 
 Equipment 3 to 15 years 
 

The County has four networks of infrastructure assets – roads, lighting, drainage, and flood control. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

The County recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources.  A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a 
consumption of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred inflow of resources is defined as 
an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  The County has recorded deferred outflows 
and inflows or resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB), which are discussed in more 
detail in footnotes 7 and 8, respectively. 

Long-term Debt 

In the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or proprietary funds statement of net position.  Bond 
premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bond and issuance costs are expensed in the year incurred. 

In the governmental funds financial statements, bond premiums, discounts, and issuance costs are recognized in the 
period issued.  Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources net of the applicable premium or discount.  
Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  
Interest is reported as an expenditure in the period in which the related payment is made. 

Net Position/Fund Balance 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is 
categorized as follows: 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one 
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category. 
 

 Restricted Net Position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors 
or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents net position of the County, not restricted for any project or 

other purpose. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the County considers restricted net position to have 
been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following categories based primarily on 
the extent to which the county is bound to honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent: 

52



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

 Nonspendable fund balance – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or are 
legally or contractually required to remain intact.   

 Restricted fund balance – Amounts with constraints placed on their use that are externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments.  Constraints may also be imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.   

 Committed fund balance – Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of 
the Board of Supervisors and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner.  The underlying action that 
imposed the limitation needs to occur prior to the end of the reporting period.  The amount subject to the constraint 
may be determined in the subsequent period. 

 Assigned fund balance – Amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to use resources for specific 
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the Board of Supervisors or by an official or body designated for that 
purpose.  This is also the classification for residual fund balance in all governmental funds other than the General 
Fund. 

 Unassigned fund balance – The residual classification for the County’s General Fund that includes all amounts 
not contained in the other classifications.  In other funds, the unassigned classification is used only if the 
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those 
purposes (i.e., deficit fund balance). 

The Board of Supervisors establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution or 
an ordinance, each resulting in equally binding constraints.   

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, followed by the committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed. 

Property Tax Revenue 

Property taxes, including tax rates, are regulated by the State and are administered locally by the County.  The County 
is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with state law.  The County’s 
property taxes are levied on July 1 (unsecured roll) and October 1 (secured roll) on assessed values established on 
the lien date of the previous January 1 for all taxable property located within the County.  Taxes are due in one 
installment (unsecured roll) by July 1 and are subject to late payment penalties if paid after August 31, or two 
installments (secured roll) due November 1 and February 1, and again subject to late payment penalties if paid after 
December 10 and April 10, respectively.  Additionally, supplemental property taxes are levied on a pro rata basis when 
changes in assessed valuation occur due to sales transactions or the completion of construction. 

All general property taxes are allocated to the various taxing entities per the legislation implementing Article XIII of the 
California Constitution (commonly referred to as Proposition 13).  Property is reappraised from the 1975-76 base year 
value to current full value upon either (1) a change in ownership or (2) new construction, as of the date of such 
transaction or completion of construction (only the newly constructed portion of the property is reappraised).  General 
property taxes are based on a flat one percent rate applied to the property’s assessed value.  Absence the change in 
valuation described above, taxable values on properties can rise at a maximum rate of two percent per year.  The 
method of allocation used by the County is subject to review by the State of California.  The County recognizes property 
tax revenues in the period for which the taxes are levied subject to the availability criteria in the governmental funds 
financial statements. 

53



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Interfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported 
as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as either 
“due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the 
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Advances 
between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a nonspendable fund balance amount in the 
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial 
resources. 

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost 
as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or 
proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation. 

Compensated Absences 

Under the terms of union contracts, the County grants employees vacation and sick leave in varying amounts 
depending upon their respective bargaining unit. Vacation pay is subject to certain maximum accumulations and is 
payable upon termination.  Sick leave may be accumulated without limitation and is payable upon termination at varying 
amounts depending on bargaining unit and length of service.   

Because vacation, sick leave and other compensated absence balances do not require the use of current financial 
resources, no liability is recorded within the governmental funds.  However, this liability is reflected in the government-
wide statement of net position.  In proprietary funds, the liability for compensated absences is recorded in the period 
that the benefits accrue to employees.   

Pensions 

In the government-wide financial statements, pensions are recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of 
accounting regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
The County recognizes a net pension liability for each qualified pension plan in which it participated, which represents 
the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the qualified pension plan, measured as of the 
County’s fiscal year-end or the County’s proportionate share thereof in the case of a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
plan. 
 
Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows or 
outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred.  Those changes in net pension 
liability that are recorded as deferred inflows or outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions 
or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the weighted average 
remaining service life of all participants including retires, in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a 
component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they arose. 
 
Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pension expense.  
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows or outflows of resources 
and amortized as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period 
in which the difference occurred. 
 

54



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County’s OPEB Plan (OPEB 
Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Future Pronouncements 

The County is currently analyzing its accounting and financial reporting practices to determine the potential impact on 
the financial statements of the following GASB Statements:  

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019 (FY 2020/21). The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of 
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 

 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020 (FY 
2021/22). The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users 
by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements 
between governments; and also enhancing the relevance, reliability (representational faithfulness), and 
consistency of information about the leasing activities of governments. 

 
GASB Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period is 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (FY 2020/21). The objectives of this statement are 
(a) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing 
for a reporting period and (b) to simplify accounting for certain interest costs.  

 
GASB Statement No. 90 – Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61 
is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (FY 2020/21). The objectives of this 
Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity 
interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for 
certain component units. 

 
GASB Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations is effective for reporting periods after December 15, 
2021 (FY 2022/23).  The primary objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting 
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended 
by issuers, arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations and related note disclosures. 
 
GASB Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020 is effective for reporting periods after June 15, 2021 (FY 2021/22).  
The objectives of this statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 
improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified 
during implementation and application of certain GASB statements. 

55



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

GASB Statement No. 93 – Replacement of interbank offered rates is effective for reporting periods after June 
15, 2021 (FY 2021/22). The objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial 
reporting implications that result from the replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR). 
 
GASB Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 (FY 2022/23).  The primary 
objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and 
public-public partnership arrangements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2022 (FY 2022/23). The objective of this statement is to provide guidance on 
the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 97 – Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2021 (FY 2021/22), except that portions of this statement related to GASB Statement No. 84 are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (FY 2020/21).  The primary objectives of 
this statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the fiduciary component units in 
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated 
with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 
benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the 
relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan 
and for benefits provided through those plans. 

 
NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Total County cash and investments at June 30, 2020 were as follows: 

Imprest cash 770$                         
Deposits in bank 2,427,089                
Deposits held by fiscal agents external to the pool 2,324,474                

4,752,333                
Investments:

In Treasurer's pool 111,780,429            
Held by fiscal agents external to the pool 156,522                   

Total Cash and Investments 116,689,284$           

 
Cash and investments were presented in the County’s financial statements as follows: 
 
Primary government 52,108,521$             

Investment trust fund 59,194,745              

Agency funds 5,386,018                
116,689,284$           

 

56



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Investments 
 
The County’s cash and investments are invested by the County Treasurer, in accordance with investment policy 
guidelines, bond indenture agreements and California Government Code. The objectives of the policy, in order of 
priority, include safety of principal, liquidity and yield.  The policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in 
which the County will deposit funds, types of investment instruments permitted by the California Government Code, 
and the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in certain instruments.  A copy of the county investment policy 
or the bond indenture agreements are available upon request from the Mono County Treasurer at P.O Box 556, 
Bridgeport CA 93517-0556.   The Treasury Oversight Committee has oversight for all monies deposited into the 
Treasury Pool.  The Committee requires an annual audit to ensure the County’s Investment Portfolio complies with its 
policy and California Government Code Section 53601. 

The Board of Supervisors reviews and approves the investment policy annually. The County Treasurer prepares and 
submits a comprehensive investment report to the Board of Supervisors every quarter. The report covers the type of 
investments in the pool, maturity dates, par value, actual costs and fair value. 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the County by the California Government Code 
or the County’s investment policy, where more restrictive. The table also identifies certain provisions of the County’s 
investment policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration risk.  Not addressed in the table are 
investments with fiscal agents external to the pool.  A separate investment policy governs, namely the bond indenture 
agreement, these investments.  
 

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Federal Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Bills 5 years None None
Local Agency Bonds and Obligations 5 years None None
State of California Notes & Bonds 5 years None None
Notes & Bonds of Other 49 States 5 years None None
Supranational Bonds 5 years 30% None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 days 40% 10%
Commercial or Savings Bank and Credit Union N/A 30% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
California Asset Management Program N/A 20% None

 
  

57



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

At June 30, 2020, the County had the following investments: 

Fair WAM
Interest Rates Maturities Par Value (Years)

Investments in Investment Pool
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 0.68%-3.25% 11/30/20-6/30/25 16,995,000    17,004,705     2.65
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 1.875%-3.5% 11/3/20-2/12/25 9,500,000      9,543,589       2.69
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1%-3.6% 7/17/20-4/30/25 28,614,000    28,617,319     2.88
Municipal Bonds 1.544%-6.091% 8/1/20-8/1/24 8,880,000      9,087,169       2.70
Treasury Loans 3.3%-3.3% 7/15/23-7/15/23 71,685           71,685            3.04
LAIF Variable On-Demand 47,455,962    47,455,962     0.00

Total investments in investment pool 111,516,647$   111,780,429$   1.59

Investments outside investment pool
Cash held with fiscal agent

U.S. Treasuries 1.375% 9/30/20 157,000$          156,522$          0.25

 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  The 
general rule is the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates.  The County manages its exposure to declines in fair values by purchasing a combination of shorter term 
and longer-term investments and by timing maturities to provide the necessary cash flow and liquidity needed for 
operations.  The benchmark used by the County is to limit the weighted average maturity (WAM) of its investment 
portfolio to two years or less in accordance with its investment policy.   

Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  State law and 
the County’s Investment Policy limit investments in commercial paper to the rating of A1 by Standards & Poor’s or P-1 
by Moody’s Investors Service. State law and the County’s Investment Policy also limit investments in corporate bonds 
to the rating of A by Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service. The County does not impose credit limits on 
government agency securities. 

  

58



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk by investment type as a 
percentage of pooled investments at June 30, 2020.  

%  of

Quality Rating Range Portfolio

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon Aaa to Aa1 15.21%

Medium Term Corporate Bonds Aaa to A3 8.54%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Unrated 25.60%

Municipal Bonds Aaa to A1 8.13%

Treasury Loans Unrated 0.06%

LAIF Unrated 42.46%

Total 100.00%

 
The County investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code.  Investments in any one issuer (Other than U.S. Treasury securities, 
mutual funds or external investment pools) that represent 5 percent or more of the total County pooled investments 
are as follows: 

Issuer Investment Type
Percentage 

Holdings Amount

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Obligations 6.27% 7,008,024$      
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Obligations 5.83% 6,516,490        

 

Custodial Credit Risk  

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the County 
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party.  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state 
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under 
state law.  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal to at least 110% of the total 
amount deposited by the public agencies.   

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, 
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code and the County’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments.   

The County considered none of its deposits or investments at June 30, 2020, unnecessarily exposed to custodial credit 
risk. 

  

59



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Local Agency Investment Fund 

The County Treasurer’s Pool maintains an investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 
LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), an investment pool consisting of funds held by the state 
in addition to those deposited in LAIF. All PMIA funds are managed by the Investment Division of the State Treasurer’s 
Office. This fund is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company, but is 
required to invest according to California Government Code. Participants in the pool include voluntary and involuntary 
participants, such as special districts and school districts for which there are legal provisions regarding their 
investments. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists 
of five members as designated by State Statute. 
 
The County’s total investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), managed by the Treasurer for the State of 
California was $47,455,962.  The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF at June 30, 2020, was $101.1 
billion, the majority of which is invested in non-derivative financial products.  The average maturity of PMIA investments 
was 191 days as of June 30, 2020.  The value of pool shares in LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an 
amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the pooled treasury’s portion in the pool. 
 
County Investment Pool Condensed Financial Statements 
 
The following represents a condensed statement of net position and changes in net position for the Treasurer’s 
investment pool as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020: 
 
Statement of Net Position

Net position held for pool participants 114,208,288$         

Equity of external pool participants 59,194,745$           
Equity of internal pool participants 55,013,543

Total net position 114,208,288$         

Statement of Changes in Net Position

Net position at July 1, 2019 112,022,151$         
Net change in investments by pool participants 2,186,137               
Net position at June 30, 2020 114,208,288$         

 

Fair Value Measurements 

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles.  These principles recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure the fair value of the asset, as follows: 

 Level 1:  Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets for identical assets. 

60



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

 Level 2:  Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either directly or indirectly, 
which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. 

 Level 3:  Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources which reflect the County’s own 
assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset.  Unobservable inputs are 
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances and may include the County’s own 
data. 

The County’s investments measured at fair value as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets (Level 
1)

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable Inputs 

(Level 3)

Investments in Investment Pool
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 17,004,705$      -$                                17,004,705$             -$                                   
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 9,543,589          -                                  9,543,589                 -                                     
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 28,617,319        -                                  28,617,319               -                                     
Municipal Bonds 9,087,169          -                                  9,087,169                 -                                     

Total investments measured at fair value 64,252,782        -$                                64,252,782$             -$                                   
Investments measured at amortized cost:

Treasury Loans 71,685               
LAIF 47,455,962        

Total investments in Investment Pool 111,780,429$    

Fair Value Measurements Using

   

NOTE 3: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2020, is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 139,394$           
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 167,450            

306,844$           

 

The above balances reflect temporary loans to cover cash deficits at June 30.  

Advances to/from other funds: 

Advances to/from other funds represent interfund loans not anticipated to be paid within the subsequent year. 

61



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 99,013$            
Solid Waste Fund 75,000              

174,013$          
 

In 2019, the County’s General Fund advanced $99,013 to complete funding of the County’s Revolving Loan Fund at 
the maximum amount of $300,000, as authorized by Resolution 15-81.  The Revolving Loan Fund is established to 
purchase deed-restricted properties and thereby preserve affordable housing units.  Of the maximum of $300,000 
established for the program, $200,987 is funded from the County’s Housing Mitigation Fund, and the remaining $99,013 
is advanced by the County’s General Fund.  The advance is to be repaid upon termination of the Revolving Loan Fund 
program. 

The Solid Waste advances from the County’s General Fund represent an interest-free loan provided. The Board of 
Supervisors approved a during the 2011-12 budget year for $750,000.  Repayment term is amortized over ten (10) 
years, with zero percent (0%) interest and a repayment amount of $18,750 quarterly, or $75,000 annually.  Final 
payment is scheduled for June 30, 2021.  

Transfers: 

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, debt service, subsidies of various County operations and re-
allocations of special revenues.  

Transfer from Transfer to Amount
General Fund Road 622,033$          

Mono County Civic Center Project 565,000             
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,348,913          
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 22,488               
Internal Service Funds 965,600             

3,524,034          
Realignment Fund General Fund 644,369             

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,219,109          
1,863,478          

Nonmajor Governmental General Fund 541,318             
  Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 292,369             

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 5,000                 
838,687             

Solid Waste Internal Service Funds 60,000               
Total 6,286,199$        

 

  

62



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

Balance Transfers & Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Adjustments Retirements June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities .
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 6,793,617$          --$                      --$                        --$                       6,793,617$             
Construction in progress 5,375,895            20,112,389         (1,810,759)           --                         23,677,525            

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 12,169,512          20,112,389         (1,810,759)           --                         30,471,142             

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 95,850,756          --                        1,466,703            --                         97,317,459            
Structures and improvements 19,819,380          --                        308,895               (379,000)             19,749,275            
Equipment 20,164,074          1,755,288           5,245                   (619,299)             21,305,308            
Intangibles 1,524,560            --                        29,916                 --                         1,554,476              

Total capital assets, being depreciated 137,358,770        1,755,288           1,810,759            (998,299)             139,926,518           

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (82,808,352)         (915,854)             --                          --                         (83,724,206)          
Structures and improvements (9,891,317)           (549,184)             --                          166,505              (10,273,996)          
Equipment (15,637,543)         (1,026,942)          --                          591,821              (16,072,664)          
Intangibles (1,139,115)           (75,695)               --                          --                         (1,214,810)            

Total accumulated depreciation (109,476,327)       (2,567,675)          --                          758,326              (111,285,676)          

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 27,882,443          (812,387)             1,810,759            (239,973)             28,640,842             

Governmental activities capital assets, net 40,051,955$        19,300,002$       --$                        (239,973)$           59,111,984$           

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 328,423$             --$                      --$                        --$                       328,423$                
Construction in progress 61,000                --                        (61,000)               --                         --                           

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 389,423               --                        (61,000)                --                         328,423                  

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 545,141               --                        --                          --                         545,141                 
Structures and improvements 7,730,944            --                        --                          --                         7,730,944              
Equipment 1,532,463            88,167                61,000                 --                         1,681,630              

Total capital assets, being depreciated 9,808,548            88,167                61,000                 --                         9,957,715               

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (48,227)                (24,797)               --                          --                         (73,024)                 
Structures and improvements (2,602,088)           (328,762)             --                          --                         (2,930,850)            
Equipment (1,523,001)           (3,896)                 --                          --                         (1,526,897)            

Total accumulated depreciation (4,173,316)           (357,455)             --                          --                         (4,530,771)              

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,635,232            (269,288)             61,000                 --                         5,426,944               

Business-type activities capital assets, net 6,024,655$          (269,288)$           --$                        --$                       5,755,367$             

 
  

63



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
 

Depreciation 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

General government 268,729$                
Public protection 134,502                
Public ways and facilities 1,230,322             
Health and sanitation 45,041                  
Public assistance 1,219                    
Recreation and culture 148,197                
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are
  charged to the various functions based on their usage of the asset 739,665                

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Functions 2,567,675$             

 

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type functions as follows: 

Solid Waste 36,351$                 
Airport 321,104                

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Functions 357,455$                

 

NOTE 5:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Operating Leases 
 
The County has commitments under long-term operating lease agreements for office space. Total rent expense under 
operating lease agreements during the year ended June 30, 2020 was $1,085,226.   
 
Future minimum lease payments required under these operating leases at June 30, 2020, is as follows: 
 

Year Ending Governmental

June 30: Activities

2021 101,905$            

2022 83,500                

2023 56,242                

241,647$            

 

64



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Balance
(Restated*)
July 1, 2019 Additions Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2020

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
Pension obligation bonds 580,300$              -$                    (127,200)$        453,100$              138,800$       
Certificates of Participation 19,940,000           -                      -                       19,940,000           330,000         

Premium 2,228,348             -                      (75,537)            2,152,811             75,537           
Notes payable 159,697                -                      (159,697)          -                            -                    
Compensated absences 3,150,222             1,826,413       (1,765,640)       3,210,995             1,780,956      
Net pension liability 51,106,087           9,368,901       (5,617,249)       54,857,739           -                    
Net OPEB liability 11,065,262           2,207,225       (4,233,666)       9,038,821             -                    
Claims liability 3,241,855             802,634          (395,168)          3,649,321             3,649,321      
Total Governmental Activities
 Long-term liabilities 91,471,771$         14,205,173$   (12,374,157)$   93,302,787$         5,974,614$    

Business-type Activities
Refunded certificates of participation 1,700,700$           -$                    (253,400)$        1,447,300$           266,400$       
Net pension liability 907,872                451,898          (146,499)          1,213,271             -                    
Compensated absences 65,859                  43,707            (51,838)            57,728                  42,474           
Landfill postclosure cost 9,658,153             2,299,387       -                       11,957,540           -                    
Total Business-type Activities
 Long-term liabilities 12,332,584$         2,794,992$     (451,737)$        14,675,839$         308,874$       

* See prior period restatement described in footnote 9.
 

 
Claims and judgments are paid from the self-insurance fund held by a third-party administrator and County funds are 
charged directly for their appropriate insurance cost. In the Governmental activities, the liabilities for compensated 
absences, net pension liability, and net OPEB liability are primarily liquidated by the County’s general fund and several 
special revenue funds. 
 
  

65



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
As of June 30, 2020, annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Governmental Activities
Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 138,800$     19,390$       330,000$        936,675$        
2022 151,100       12,823         345,000          926,475          
2023 163,200       6,628           360,000          910,575          
2024 -                   -                   375,000          892,200          
2025 -                   -                   395,000          872,950          

2026-2030 -                   -                   1,795,000       3,278,675       
2031-2035 -                   -                   2,815,000       3,528,500       
2036-2040 -                   -                   3,505,000       2,839,769       
2041-2045 -                   -                   4,405,000       1,934,656       
2046-2049 -                   -                   5,615,000       729,875          

453,100$     38,841$       19,940,000$   16,850,350$   

Bonds Payable Certificates of Participation

Business-Type Activities
Year Ending Certificates of Participation

June 30 Principal Interest

2021 266,400$                62,089$                  
2022 279,100                  50,661                    
2023 286,700                  38,687                    
2024 299,000                  26,388                    
2025 316,100                  13,561                    

1,447,300$             191,386$                

 

  

66



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Long-term debt at June 30, 2020, consisted of the following: 

Annual Original

Date of Date of Interest Principal Issue Outstanding

Issue Maturity Rates Installments Amount at June 30, 2020

Governmental activities

Direct borrowings and direct placements:

2012 PERS Side Fund Refunding 02/12 02/18 - 02/23 4.36% $116,300 - $762,900 4,612,900$        453,100$              

Other borrowings:

2018 Certificates of Participation 12/18 10/20 - 10/48 3.9956% $330,000 - $1,240,000 19,940,000$      19,940,000$         

Business-type activities

Direct borrowings and direct placements:

2011 Refunding of COPS 2001A 03/11 05/11 - 05/25 4.29% $189,000 - $316,100 3,609,000$        1,447,300$           

On February 28, 2012, the County issued bonds to refund the PERS Side Funds of certain public safely tier plans.  Expenses associated 
with the refunding totaled $89,244 for a total refunding bond issuance of $4,612,900. Principal remaining at June 30, 2019, is for 1st Tier 
Fire (EMS) refunded at 4.63% with semi‐annual payments and the final payment due on February 28, 2023.  The Bonds are secured by a 
pledge of all of the the County's revenues not encumbered for a special purpose.  The borrowing contains an event of default that 
changes the timing of repayment of the outstanding amounts to become immediatel due if the County is unable to make payment.

On December 20, 2018, the County issued $19,940,000 of Certificates of Participation, Series 2018 A for the purpose of financing construction of a Mno County Civic Center loaced 
within the Town of Mammoth Lakes.  The certificates were issued at a permium of $2,266,117, for a total net proceeeds of $20,500,000, net of costs of issuance and capitalized 
interest to fund interest payments on the debt for 21 months during construction.  Debt repayment terms include a 30-year repayment term beginning October 1, 2020 andending 
October 1, 204, with interest accruing at an average annual rate of 3.9956%, resulting in average annual debt service of $1,275,800.  The Economic Development Corporation 
pledges certain lease revenues subject to ground lease of the constructed Civic Center facility.  The borrowing contains an event of default that changes the timing of repayment of the 
outstanding amounts to become immediatel due if the County is unable to make payment.

In March 2011, the County refunded its 2001 Series A Certificates o Participation in the amount of $3,770,000.  The new certificates of participation bear interst at 4.29% and are due 
in biannual installments ranging from $230,493 to $322,881 through May 1, 2025.  The certificates of participation were  issued to finance the closure of certain County landfillls.  The 
Economic Development Corporation pledges certain lease revenues subject to ground lease of the County property pledged as collateral.  The borrowing contains an event of default 
that changes the timing of repayment of the outstanding amounts to become immediatel due if the County is unable to make payment.

 

 

NOTE 6: CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE LIABILITY 

The County of Mono has six landfill sites. State and federal laws and regulations require the County to perform certain 
closure and postclosure maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure 
and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date the landfills stop accepting waste, the County reports 
a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an expenditure in each year based on landfill capacity used 
as of each balance sheet date. The $11,957,540 reported as closure and postclosure liability in the Solid Waste Fund 
at June 30, 2020, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the following estimated percentages of 
capacity applied to the estimated closure and postclosure care costs: 

Estimated Estimated Estimated Landfill
Total Remaining Capacity Percentage of Closure and

Estimated Estimated Total Capacity Capacity Used Capacity Used Postclosure
Closure Postclosure Estimated (Cubic (Cubic (Cubic through Liability at

Landfill Site Costs Costs Cost Yards) Yards) Yards) June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020

Benton Crossing $       5,157,845 $         3,293,025 $         8,450,870        2,617,900          640,217       1,977,683 75.54% $          6,384,179 
Pumice Valley          2,293,700            2,292,000            4,585,700           741,360          512,829          228,531 30.83%             1,413,584 
Walker          1,530,908            1,738,260            3,269,168           340,716          110,940          229,776 67.44%             2,204,704 
Benton*                       --               637,347               637,347                     --                    --                     -- 100.00%                637,347 
Bridgeport*                       --               849,744               849,744                     --                    --                     -- 100.00%                849,744 
Chalfant*                       --               467,982               467,982                     --                    --                     -- 100.00%                467,982 

Total $       8,982,453 $         9,278,358 $       18,260,811        3,699,976       1,263,986       2,435,990 65.84% $        11,957,540 

* Landfills are closed and tracking of statistics is no longer required or useful.  Total estimated costs for closed landfills is the unamortized cost.  

67



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $6.303.271 as the remaining 
estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure 
care in 2020.  Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, change in technology, or changes in regulations. 

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust or pledge 
future revenues to finance closure and postclosure costs.  At June 30, 2020, cash and investments of $3,894,435 were 
held as restricted cash for these purposes. The County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest 
earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional postclosure care 
requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example) these costs 
may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenues. The County has elected to 
utilize the Pledge of Revenue financial assurance mechanism. 

NOTE 7: EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN 

Plan Description 
 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees of Mono County and Mono County Superior Court (non-judicial 
employees) are eligible to participate in the County’s separate Safety (sheriff, emergency medical services and certain 
district attorney members) or Miscellaneous (all others) Plans. The County’s Safety Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan while the Miscellaneous Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
The County’s Safety and Miscellaneous Plans are part of the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS), a public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and other requirements are established by 
State statute and County resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the 
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the 
CalPERS website. 
 
The County’s Miscellaneous plan includes the local Court employees.  In accordance with the Trial Court Fund Act, 
Court employees are no longer employees of the County, but of the State instead.  The Public Employees Retirement 
Law (PERL) provides that in counties contracting with CalPERS Board, the trial court and County participate in 
CalPERS by a joint contract.  California law requires the combining of assets and liabilities of a county and a trial court 
contracting with CalPERS for purposes of setting the employer contribution rates for both the county and the trial court.  
Additionally, the County and the trial court provide a single benefit package to eligible employees.  Accordingly, the 
Court’s proportion of the collective pension amounts have been excluded from the County’s net pension liability and 
related deferred inflows and outflows of resources. 

 
  

68



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERs provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to 
plan members upon retirement, disability or death of members.  Retirement benefits are based on years of service, 
final average compensation, and retirement age. Employees terminating before accruing five years of retirement 
service credit forfeit the right to receive retirement benefits unless they establish reciprocity with another public agency 
within a prescribed period. Non-vested employees who terminate service are entitled to withdraw their accumulated 
contributions plus accrued interest. Employees who terminate service after earning five years of retirement service 
credit may leave their contributions on deposit and elect to take a deferred retirement. Differences between expected 
and actual experience for vested and non-vested benefits may result in an increase or decrease to pension expense 
and net pension liability. 
 
Service related disability benefits are provided to safety members and are based on final compensation. Non-service 
related disability benefits are provided to both safety and miscellaneous members. The benefit is based on final 
compensation, multiplied by service, which is determined as follows: 

 service is CalPERS credited service, for members with less than 10 years of service or greater than 18.518 
years of service; or 

 service is CalPERS credited service plus the additional number of years that the member would have worked 
until age 60, for members with at least 10 years but not more than 18.518 years of service. 

 
Death benefits are based upon a variety of factors including whether the participant was retired or not.   
 
Annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) after retirement are provided in all plans. COLAs are granted to retired 
members each May based upon the Bureau of Labor Statistics Average Consumer Price Index for All Urban 
Consumers for the previous calendar year and is subject to a maximum of 2% per annum. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:  
 

Miscellaneous
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Hire Date
Prior to 

June 1, 2012
On or after 

June 1, 2012 
On or after 

Jan. 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @55 2.5% @55 2% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as %  of eligible compensation 2.00% -2.50% 2.00% -2.75% 1.00% -2.50%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 8% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 11.099% 11.099% 11.099%
Status Open Open Open

 
 

69



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Safety

Peace Officer Peace Officer Sheriff Sheriff Fire
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 1

Hire Date Prior to July 1, 2004 Prior to Jan. 1, 2013
Prior to

Jan. 1, 2013
On or after

Dec. 27, 2012 
Prior to

July 1, 2007
Benefit formula 3%@50 3%@50 3%@50 3%@55 3%@50
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50 50 55 50
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible 
compensation 3.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Required employee contribution rates 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Required employer contribution rates 21.927% 21.927% 21.927% 18.928% 21.927%
Status Open Open Open Open Open

Fire Peace Officer Sherif Fire
Tier II Pepra - Tier 3 Pepra - Tier 3 Pepra - Tier 3

Hire Date

On or after
July 1, 2007/

Prior to
Jan. 1, 2013

On or after
Jan 1. 2013

On or after
Jan 1. 2013

On or after
Jan 1. 2013

Benefit formula 2%@50 2.7%@57 2.7%@57 2.7%@57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 57 57 57
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible 
compensation 2.00% 2.70% 2.70% 2.70%
Required employee contribution rates 9.00% 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%
Required employer contribution rates 17.684% 13.034% 13.034% 13.034%
Status Open Open Open Open

 
Employees Covered 
 
At June 30, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Miscellaneous Plan.  The 
corresponding data is not available for employees included in the Safety Plan as the plan is a cost-sharing multiple 
employer plan: 
 

Miscellaneous
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benef 329                                 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 203                                 
Active employees 204                                 

736                                 

 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires the employer contribution rates for all 
public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice 
of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for all Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 
by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The County is 
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 

70



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the plan were as follows: 
 

Total Miscellaneous Safety
Governmental activities:

Governmental funds 5,601,782$     3,487,201$     2,114,581$     
Motor Pool Internal Service fund 15,467             15,467             -                        

Total governmental activities 5,617,249       3,502,668       2,114,581       

Business type activities
Solid Waste fund 103,498           103,498           -                        

5,720,747$     3,606,166$     2,114,581$     

Employer Contributions

 
Pension Liabilities 
 
As of June 30, 2020, the County reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension liability 
of each Plan as follows: 
 

Total Miscellaneous Safety
Governmental Activities:

Governmental funds 54,313,395$          32,209,806$          22,103,589$          
Motor Pool ISF 544,344                  544,344                  -                               

Total governmental activities 54,857,739            32,754,150            22,103,589            

Business type activities
Solid Waste fund 1,213,271              1,213,271              -                               

Total Mono County 56,071,010            33,967,421$          22,103,589$          
Courts 2,031,337              

58,102,347$          
 

 
The County’s net pension liability for the Miscellaneous Plan is the plan’s liability accounted for separately from all 
other CalPERS plans.  The County’s net pension liability for the Safety Plan is the Plan’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability.  The net pension liability of each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2019, using an 
annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update procedures.   
 
For the Safety Plan (a cost-sharing plan), the County’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection 
of the County’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. The County’s net pension liability and related Plan proportion for the 
Safety Plan is as follows: 
 

71



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Plan

Plan's Proportion to 
Total Pool @ June 30, 

2018

Plan's Proportion to 
Total Pool @ June 30, 

2019

Change in 
Proportionate Share
Increase (Decrease)

Safety 0.34735% 0.35408% 0.00673%  
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions: 
 

Miscellaneous Safety

Valuation Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018

Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 2.75% 2.75%

Projected Salary Increase

Investment Rate of Return 7.375%    7.375%(1)

Mortality

(1)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

Varies by entry age and service

Derived using CalPERS' Membership 

Data for All Funds

 
 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were 
based on the results of the 2010 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011.  Further details of the 
Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for each Plan. This rate is the same as the  
previous year and reflects the CalPERS Board of Administration decision on December 21, 2016, to lower the discount 
rate.  To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, 
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially 
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans ran out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15 
percent discount rate is adequate, and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term 
expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). 
The cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required 
contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years.  The stress test results are presented in a detailed report 
that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 
 

72



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction for 
pension plan administrative expense. The 7.375 percent investment return assumption used in this accounting 
valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment 
return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.525 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted 
in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the 
difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.   
 
The long-term expected rate of return includes both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as 
the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers 
will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric)returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and 
the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term 
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as 
the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to 
the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using 
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 

Asset Class
Strategic 
Allocation

Real Return 

Years 1-10 (1)

Real Return Years 

11-60 (2)

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

(1) An expected inflation rate of 2.0%  used for this period
(2) An expected inflation rate of 2.92%  used for this period

  

73



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the County’s Miscellaneous Plan for the measurement period ended June 
30, 2019 and reported for the year ended June 30, 2020 follows: 
 
 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2018 109,731,213$        78,098,359$          31,632,854$          
Changes in the year:

Service cost 2,299,573              -                         2,299,573              
Interest on total pension liability 7,851,094              -                         7,851,094              
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 1,754,367              -                         1,754,367              
Contributions from the employer -                         3,542,029              (3,542,029)             
Contributions from employees -                         952,830                 (952,830)                
Net Investment Income -                         5,166,440              (5,166,440)             
Benefit payments, including 
  refunds of employee contributions (5,904,075)             (5,904,075)             -                         
Administrative expense -                         (55,794)                  55,794                   
Other miscellaneous income -                         182                        (182)                       
Proportional differences between County 
Courts shares 122,177                 86,957                   35,220                   

    Net Changes 6,123,136              3,788,569              2,334,567              
Balance at June 30, 2019 115,854,349$        81,886,928$          33,967,421$          

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
The County’s share of the Miscellaneous Plan determined at June 30, 2020 is 94.3572 percent of the Plan’s total 
pension liability and fiduciary net position.  The remaining 5.6428 percent of the Plan’s total pension liability and 
fiduciary net position represents the Mono County Superior Court’s share. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Change in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the County for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each 
Plan, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Miscellaneous Safety Total
6.15% 6.15% 6.15%

Net Pension Liability 48,464,029$           33,138,896$           81,602,925$           
Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15% 7.15%
Net Pension Liability 33,967,423$           22,103,589$           56,071,012$           
1% Increase 8.15% 8.15% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability 21,912,958$           13,056,366$           34,969,324$           

1% Decrease

 
 
  

74



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 
financial reports. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $10,187,937. Pension expense 
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for the deferred recognition 
of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits.   
 
At June 30, 2020 the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 6,588,468$                 -$                         
Changes in assumptions 905,988                      376,162                  
Differences between actual and expected experiences 2,790,981                   -                           

Adjustment due to differences in proportions 557,821                      679,238                  

Change in employer's proportion -                               46,296                     

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments -                               767,869                  

Total 10,843,258$              1,869,565$             

 
The deferred outflows of resources of $6,588,468 results from pension contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the next fiscal year.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows:  
 

Year Ending June 30,

2021 2,421,452$                     

2022 (263,654)                         

2023 94,976                             

2024 132,451                          

2,385,225$                     

 
NOTE 8: OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description 

The County administers a postemployment healthcare plan, a single-employer defined benefit post employment 
healthcare plan. The County established a post employment health benefit (OPEB) trust with the Public Agency 
Retirement Services (PARS) which is used to accumulate resources to fund future benefits, however it does not 
represent the activities of the plan. The Plan provides medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees. 

The County provides full post-retirement health care benefits (also called enhanced benefits), in accordance with 
County employment contracts, to all employees who retire, on a tiered basis. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2002, 
who have attained the age of 55 and have accrued a minimum of 20 years of service, are entitled to full lifetime post-

75



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
retirement health care benefits. (In this category, age and time are tiered between age 50 and 55 with between 5 and 
20 years of service depending upon the date of hire). Employees hired after January 1, 2002, are not eligible for post-
retirement health care benefits. Instead, employees hired after this date are eligible to receive County contributions 
into an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) Plan established by the County.  

Those retiring with County provided retirement benefits under the CalPERS plan but ineligible for those enhanced 
benefits as described above are nevertheless eligible to participate in the County’s healthcare plan provided through 
CalPERS.  For this group, retirees pay for the full cost of their healthcare premium less the Public Employees’ Medical 
and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum required employer contribution ($139 per month in 2020) which the County 
provides towards the retiree monthly premium for eligible retirees participating in PEMHCA. 

At June 30, 2019, the measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the plan: 

 Enhanced Benefits 

 Ineligible for 

Enhanced Benefits 

(PEMHCA 

Minimum 

Coverage)  Total 

Retirees and beneficiaries 

receiving benefits 155                            36                              191                            

Terminated plan members entitled 

to but not yet receiving benefits -                                 -                                 -                                 

Active plan members 29                              209                            238                            

184                            245                            429                            
    

The Enhanced Benefits group is a closed group with no new members added or eligible.   

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established and may be amended by the 
County. The County prefunds all or a portion of the plan through the PARS irrevocable trust.  Employees are not 
required to contribute to the plan.  The contribution is based on the difference between what the County paid directly 
to or on behalf of eligible employees and the full value of the annual required contributions (ARC). During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020, the County contributed $2,010,358 to the OPEB plan.  Of this amount, $1,656,302 was 
paid for healthcare insurance benefits for eligible retirees during the year and $354,056 was an implicit rate subsidy. 

Net OPEB Liability 

The County reported a net OPEB liability of $9,038,821 at June 30, 2020.  The County’s net OPEB liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. 

  

76



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Actuarial assumptions – The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation date June 30, 2018
Measurement date June 30, 2019
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 6.00%
Inflation 2.75%
Investment rate of return 6.00%
Salary increases 3.25%

Mortaility

Based on the 2017 CalPERS experience study using data from 1997 to 2015, 
except for a different basis used to project future mortality improvements.  The 
representative mortality rates were those published by CalPERS adjusted to back out 
15 years of Scale MP 2016 to central year 2015.  The mortality improvement is 
estimated using the MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 applied generationally from 2015.

Active employees:  100%  are assumed to cntinue their current plan election in 
retirement, if eligible for benefits greater than the PEMHCA minimum.  If eligble only 
for the PEMHCA minimum beneit, it is assumed 50%  will elect coverage in retirement. 
If not currently enrolled, it is assumed the employee would elect coverage in the 
PERS Choice Other Northern CA region plan at or before retirement.
Retired participants:  Existing medical plan elections are assumed to be continued 
until the retiree's death.

Medical plan premiums and claims costs by age are assumed to increase once each 
year.
Increases over the prior year's levels are assumed as follows: 2020, 7% ; 2021, 
6.50%; 2022, 6.0% ; 2023, 5.50% ; 2024 & later, 5.00%.
The PEMHCA minimum employer contribution and dental and  vision premiums are 
all assumed to increase by 4.0%  per year.

Participation rate

Healthcare cost trends

 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.   

Non-imbedded fees were estimated to reduce the expected yield above by 50 basis points (0.50%), reducing the net 
expected return on trust assets to 6.03% per year.  The County used 6.0% as the discount rate to determine the OPEB 
liability in the plan. 

  

77



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation
Expected Real Rate of 

Return

Equities 60.00%
Large Cap Core 32.00% 6.70%
Mid Cap Core 6.00% 7.00%
Small Cap Core 9.00% 7.90%
Real Estate 2.00% 5.70%
International 7.00% 7.30%
Emerging Markets 4.00% 9.70%

Fixed income 35.00%
Short Term Bond 6.75% 3.80%
Intermediate Term Bond 27.00% 4.60%
High Yield 1.25% 6.00%

Cash 5.00% 2.10%
100.00%

Overal Expected Real Rate of Return 6.53%  

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed that the County contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined 
contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
OPEB liability. 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

 Total OPEB Liability 
 Fiduciary Net 

Position  Net OPEB Liability 

Balances at June 30, 2019 30,855,507$          19,790,245$          11,065,262$          
Changes in the year:

Service cost 392,584                 -                             392,584                 
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,814,641              -                             1,814,641              
Benefit payments (2,008,149)             (2,008,149)             -                             
Contributions from employer                              -                3,008,149 (3,008,149)             
Net investment income                              -                1,225,517 (1,225,517)             
Net changes                   199,076                2,225,517              (2,026,441)

Balances at June 30, 2020  $          31,054,583  $          22,015,762  $            9,038,821 

 

 

 

78



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate for measurement period ended June 30, 
2019: 

 1%  Decrease  Discount Rate  1%  Increase 
(5.00%) (6.00% ) (7.00% )

Net OPEB liability 12,651,657$          9,038,821$            6,027,039$            

 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend 
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

 1%  Decrease  Current  1%  Increase 
 in Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate 
 Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate 
 in Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate 

Net OPEB liability 5,766,032$            9,038,821$            13,336,932$          

 

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized OPEB expense of $147,419.  As of June 30, 2020, 
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 

 Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

 Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date 2,010,358$            -$                           
Changes in assumptions 1,576,218              -                             
Differences between expected and actual experience -                             4,610,085              
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB 
plan investments -                             481,906                 

3,586,576$            5,091,991$            

 

The $2,010,358 reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to OPEB contributions subsequent to the June 30, 
2019 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2021.   

  

79



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30,
2021 (842,391)$              
2022 (842,390)                
2023 (660,585)                
2024 (623,316)                
2025 (547,091)                
Thereafter -                             

(3,515,773)$           

 

NOTE 9: NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 

Fund balances at June 30, 2020 were classified as follows: 
Mono County Other

General Road Realignment Mental Health Civic Cener Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Services Act Project Funds Total

Nonspendable:
Advances to other funds 174,013$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   174,013$       
Prepaids and inventory 162,450         257,838         -                     1,990             -                     29,859           452,137         

Total Nonspendable 336,463         257,838         -                     1,990             -                     29,859           626,150         

Restricted for:
Road projects -                     1,925,531      -                     -                     -                     -                     1,925,531      
Health and social services -                     -                     -                     7,316,887      -                     3,820,505      11,137,392    
County service areas -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     2,291,933      2,291,933      
Community development 1,285,961      -                     -                     -                     -                     1,633,157      2,919,118      
Grant programs 1,962             -                     9,704,777      -                     -                     2,175,599      11,882,338    

Total Restricted 1,287,923      1,925,531      9,704,777      7,316,887      -                     9,921,194      30,156,312    

Committed:
Revolving loan fund -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     201,007         201,007         

Total Committed -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     201,007         201,007         

Assigned:
Eliminate projected FY 20/21 
budgetary deficit 3,126,363      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     3,126,363      
Capital projects -                     -                     -                     -                     312,952         494,224         807,176         
Debt service -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     192,869         192,869         
Affordable housing 537,638         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     537,638         
Workforce development 164,356         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     164,356         
Fish enhancement 55,521           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     55,521           
Tourism 202,533         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     202,533         

Total Assigned 4,086,411      -                     -                     -                     312,952         687,093         5,086,456      
Unassigned 7,620,328      -                     -                     -                     -                     (402,114)        7,218,214      
Total Fund Balance 13,331,125$  2,183,369$    9,704,777$    7,318,877$    312,952$       10,437,039$  43,288,139$  

 

During this year’s budget process, the County Board of Supervisors re-established a general reserve of $2,689,364 in 
the General Fund.  This general reserve is subject to the provisions of Government Code sections 29085, 29086 and 
29127, whereby appropriation from the general reserve may be used only in cases of certain emergency situations.  
Because this stabilization arrangement does not meet the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, to be reported within the restricted or committed fund balance 
categories, it has been classified as unassigned in these statements.   

  

80



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Net Position from governmental activities as of June 30, 2020 was restricted for the following purposes: 

Road projects 1,925,531$      
Health and social services 11,774,270      
County service areas 2,291,933        
Community development 2,919,118        
Grant programs 12,083,387      

30,994,239$    
 

Net position from business-type activities as of June 30, 2020 was restricted for future cemetery maintenance in the 
amount of $4,648. 

Restatements of Fund Balance / Net Position 

Adjustments resulting from errors or a change to comply with provisions of the accounting standards are treated as 
adjustments to prior periods.  Accordingly, the County reports these changes as restatements of beginning fund 
balance / net position.  Restatements as of the beginning of the fiscal year were made to reclassify the District 
Attorney Asset Forfeiture fund from agency to special revenue and to correct for an error discovered estimating the 
capacity of landfills for the purpose of reporting the prior year liability for closure / postclosure costs. 

 Governmental 
Funds 

 Enterprise
Funds 

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type
Activities 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 
 Solid
Waste 

Fund balance / net position, June 30, 2019, 
as reported 20,956,422$          2,436,660$      10,036,388$    (2,837,064)$    

Corrections:
Reclassify the DA Asset Forfeiture Fund 
from Agency to Special Revenue 117,454                 -                      117,454           -                      
Correct capacity estimate affecting the 
closure / postclosure liability -                            (1,566,052)      -                      (1,566,052)      

Total adjustments 117,454                 (1,566,052)      117,454           (1,566,052)      

Fund balance / net position, July 1, 2019, as 
restated 21,073,876$          870,608$         10,153,842$    (4,403,116)$    

 Government-Wide Statements 

 

 

  

81



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
Deficit Fund Equity 

The following funds had deficit fund balances/net position at June 30, 2020, as follows: 
 

Fund Deficit Management's Plan(s)
Special Revenue Funds:

Disaster Assistance Fund 206,012$               

This fund accounts for expenditures incurred 
to respond to mitigation efforts in controlling 
the spread of COVID-19.  The deficit results 
from delayed recognition of revenues 
collected after the measurement period of 90 
days.  The deficit will be eliminat

Bioterrorism 138,056                 

The deficit results from delayed recognition 
of revenues collected after the measurement 
period of 90 days.  The deficit will be 
eliminated in the following year when 
revenues are collected and recognized.

Tobacco 58,046                   

The deficit results from delayed recognition 
of revenues collected after the measurement 
period of 90 days.  The deficit will be 
eliminated in the following year when 
revenues are collected and recognized.

Enterprise Funds:

Solid Waste 4,812,386              

The deficit in the Solid Waste Fund results 
from accelerated closure and postclosure 
costs that exceed current user fees.  The 
deficit will be eliminated through the 
collection of future user fees.  

 
 

 
 
 
  

82



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors 
and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The County has established an internal service fund (ISF) 
to account for and finance risks for general liability and workers’ compensation. The County retains the risk of loss up 
to a maximum of $125,000 for each workers’ compensation claim and $25,000 for each general liability claim, up to 
four claims per year.  

The County is a member of the Trindel Insurance Fund, a joint powers agency, established to provide coverage for 
workers’ compensation and general liability exposures and to pay for the administration of the program.  The agreement 
for the formation of Trindel provides that the system will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure 
through a commercial company for claims in excess of self-insured retention.  Trindel retains a self-insured retention 
of $125,000 for workers’ compensation and $100,000 for general liability.  Excess insurance coverage is provided for 
risk of loss above the self-insured retention.  Trindel Insurance Fund is classified as a claims-servicing or account pool, 
wherein the County retains the risk of loss and is considered self-insured with regard to liability coverage for general 
and property liability and workers’ compensation.  

The County holds a deposit with Trindel Insurance from which claims are paid.  At June 30, 2020, the balance of the 
deposit was $5,282,162.  Each member of Trindel pays an annual premium to the insurance system that is evaluated 
each year based on the number of personnel, estimated payroll and an experience factor. 

The County is a member of the California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSACEIA), a joint 
powers authority. CSACEIA, along with other commercial carriers, increases the coverage for general liability to $15 
million. In addition, CSACEIA, along with other commercial carriers, covers replacement cost on property up to $600 
million with a $1,000 deductible per occurrence. CSACEIA is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common 
risk management and insurance program. The County pays an annual premium to the Authority for excess insurance 
coverage. Should actual losses among participants be greater than anticipated, the County will be assessed its pro 
rata share of the deficiency. Conversely, if the actual losses are less than anticipated, the County will be refunded its 
pro rata share of the excess. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years. 

Complete audited financial statements for CSACEIA can be obtained from the Authority’s Office at 3017 Gold Canal 
Drive, Suite 300, Rancho Cordova California 95670. 

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insurance internal service fund based 
on historical cost and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims and to allow 
accrual of estimated incurred but not reported claims.  The total historical and actuarially determined claims liability at 
June 30, 2020 is $3,649,321. 

Changes in the County’s claims liability amount for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 

Current Year

Fiscal Balance at Claims and Balance at

Year Beginning of Changes in Claims End of

Ended Fiscal Year Estimates Payments Fiscal Year

2019 3,164,755$     564,658$        (487,558)$     3,241,855$     

2020 3,241,855       802,634          (395,168)       3,649,321       

  

83



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 
NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Tax Abatements 

The County provides property tax abatements through the Williamson Act Lands Program.  The Williamson Act Lands 
Program enrolls land in Williamson Act contracts whereby the land is restricted to agricultural, open space, or 
recreational uses in exchange for reduced property tax assessments.  Participation in the program is voluntary. 

Under the provisions of these contracts, land parcels are assessed for property tax purposes at a rate consistent with 
their actual use, rather than potential market value of the property.  The minimum contract is ten years and automatically 
renews until a nonrenewal or cancellation process is initiated.  Under the nonrenewal process, the annual tax 
assessment increases over a defined period of time until the assessment reflects the market value of the property.  
Under the cancellation process, a significant one-time cancellation fee is assessed based upon a certain percentage 
of the unrestricted, current fair market value of the property. 

No other commitments were made by the County as part of the Williamson Act contracts.  For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020, the Williamson Act Lands Program tax abatements were approximately $65,527.   

Litigation 

The County is involved in several lawsuits. Due to the nature of the cases, County Counsel is unable to estimate at 
this time the probability of favorable or unfavorable outcomes. Therefore, no provision has been made in the financial 
statements for a loss contingency. 

COVID-19 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic.  In 
response, the State of California issued a shelter in-place order and the temporary closure of all businesses deemed 
to be nonessential.  Accordingly, there has been a contraction of the national, state and County’s economy, which will 
has resulted in, and continues to results in, a reduction and/or delay of the receipt of tax revenues, as well as hinder 
certain other revenue generating operations of the County.  Additionally, it may negatively impact the ability of the 
County to collect on certain balances due from others.  While the County expects there to potentially be a negative 
financial impact, since the duration and impact is unknown, management is unable to reasonably quantify the effect on 
future financial statements. 
 
NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On November 17, 2020, the Mountain View Fire entered Mono County, where erratic and high velocity winds quickly 
spread the fire into the surrounding residential neighborhood of the community of Walker.  The fire burned over 20,000 
acres and destroyed more than 143 structures, including at least 96 homes, the Toiyabe Indian Health Clinic, the 
County’s landfill transfer station, and some of the road infrastructure in the area. The Board of Supervisors declared 
the existence of a major disaster, as did the Governor of California.  California Disaster Assistance (CDAA) funding 
was authorized by CalOES to help defray the cost of debris removal and replacement of public facilities and 
infrastructure lost in the fire.  It is known that the County will bear some portion of the cost of clean-up and recovery 
efforts as the local share portion under the CDAA, the amount of which cannot be estimated at this time. 
 

 

84



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

  

85



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

86



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Schedule of Changes in net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

Miscellaneous Plan – Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

(June 30, 2019) (June 30, 2018) (June 30, 2017) (June 30, 2016) (June 30, 2015) (June 30, 2014)

Total Pension Liability

Serv ice cost 2,299,573$    2,314,586$    2,205,881$    2,051,985$   2,249,307$   2,502,844$   

Interest on total pension liability 7,851,094      7,427,207      7,115,841      7,049,937    6,751,199    6,656,474    

Changes of assumptions -                   (768,096)        5,573,635      -                 (1,548,943)   -                 

ex perience 1,754,367      847,661         (2,310,234)     (546,942)      (1,521,848)   -                 

Proportional differences betw een County  and Court 

shares 122,177         181,603         (88,346)         (1,025,139)   (481,953)      -                 

Benefit pay ments, including refunds of employ ee 

contributions (5,904,075)     (5,460,616)     (5,104,325)     (4,871,095)   (4,719,903)   (4,502,141)   

Net change in total pension liability 6,123,136      4,542,345      7,392,452      2,658,746    727,859       4,657,177    

Total pension liability, beginning 109,731,213   105,188,868   97,796,416    95,137,670   94,409,811   89,752,634   

Total pension liability, ending 115,854,349$ 109,731,213$ 105,188,868$ 97,796,416$ 95,137,670$ 94,409,811$ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employ er 3,542,029$    3,148,673$    2,775,636$    2,484,077$   2,408,009$   2,568,003$   

Contributions - employ ee 952,830         929,945         886,827         853,869       904,733       1,305,551    

Net inv estment income 5,166,622      6,249,581      7,484,204      356,637       1,518,061    10,459,289   

Benefit pay ments, including refunds of employ ee 

contributions (5,904,075)     (5,460,616)     (5,104,325)     (4,871,095)   (4,719,903)   (4,502,141)   

Proportional differences betw een County  and Court 

shares 86,957          126,782         (61,027)         (1,118,338)   -                 -                 

Administrativ e ex pense (55,794)         (332,501)        (99,651)         (41,913)        (77,107)        -                 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,788,569      4,661,864      5,881,664      (2,336,763)   33,793         9,830,702    

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 78,098,359    73,436,495    67,554,831    69,891,594   69,857,801   60,027,099   

Plan fiduciary net position, ending 81,886,928$   78,098,359$   73,436,495$   67,554,831$ 69,891,594$ 69,857,801$ 

Net pension liability , ending 33,967,421$   31,632,854$   31,752,373$   30,241,585$ 25,246,076$ 24,552,010$ 

Plan fiduciary  net percentage as a percentage of 

the total pension liability 70.68% 71.17% 69.81% 69.08% 73.46% 73.99%

Cov ered pay roll 12,601,579$   12,601,848$   11,475,219$   11,631,908$ 12,381,959$ 12,796,381$ 

Net pension liability  as a percentage of cov ered 

pay roll 269.55% 251.02% 276.70% 259.99% 203.89% 191.87%

*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 

Additional years will be presented as they become 

Miscellaneous Plan

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 

 

  

87



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions 

Miscellaneous Plan – Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Last 10 Fiscal Years* (June 30, 2019) (June 30, 2018) (June 30, 2017) (June 30, 2016) (June 30, 2015) (June 30, 2014)

Actuarially determined contribution 3,606,166$      3,149,367$      2,779,024$      1,941,710$      2,408,009$      2,568,003$      
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 3,606,166        3,149,367        2,779,024        1,941,710        2,408,009        2,568,003        
Contributions deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Covered payroll 12,601,579$    12,601,848$    11,475,219$    12,381,959$    12,381,959$    12,796,381$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 28.62% 24.99% 24.22% 15.68% 19.45% 20.07%
*Fiscal year 2015 (measurement date June 30, 2014) was the first year of implementation.

Miscellaneous Plans

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 

Notes to Schedule: 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions as of June 30 two years 
prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.   

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method/period For details, see June 30, 2015 Funding Valuation Report

Asset valuation method Market value of assets.  See the June 30, 2015 report for details.

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Payroll growth 2.75%

Investment rate of return
7.375% Net of pension plan investment and administrative expense; 

includes inflation.

Retirement age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience 

Study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience 

Study for the period from 1997 to 2011.  Pre-retirement and post-retirement 

mortality rates include 20 years of projected mortality improvement using 

Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.

 

88



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability / (Asset) and Related Ratios as of the 
Measurement Date 

Safety Plans – Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Last 10 years* (June 30, 2019) (June 30, 2018) (June 30, 2017) (June 30, 2016) (June 30, 2015**) (June 30, 2014**)

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.34350% 0.34647% 0.33626% 0.33674% 0.32974% 0.18612%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 22,103,589$     20,381,105$     20,092,166$     17,440,742$     13,586,740$     11,581,122$     

Covered payroll 5,805,223$       5,542,687$       5,079,832$       4,741,246$       5,575,424$       5,969,340$       

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 380.75% 367.71% 395.53% 367.85% 243.69% 194.01%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 72.55% 73.33% 72.44% 73.60% 78.39% 81.26%

was the first year of implementation.

available.

**As restated.

Safety Plans

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

 

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions 

Safety Plans – Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

Last 10 fiscal y ears* June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Actuarially  determined contribution 2,487,001$  2,114,581$  1,741,323$  1,562,910$  1,414,648$  1,451,026$  

Contributions related to the actuarially  

determined contribution 2,487,001   2,114,581   1,741,323   1,562,910   1,414,648   1,451,026   

Contribution deficiency  (ex cess) -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

County 's cov ered pay roll 5,805,223$  5,542,687$  5,079,832$  4,741,246$  5,575,424$  5,969,340$  

Contributions as a percentage of cov ered 

pay roll 42.84% 38.15% 34.28% 32.96% 25.37% 24.31%

30, 2014) was the first year of 

Additional years will be presented as they 

**Restated.

Safety  Plans

Reporting Fiscal Year

 

89



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

 2020  2019  2018(1) 
Total OPEB liability

Service cost 392,584$               349,637$               338,631$               
Interest 1,814,641              2,117,566              2,085,442              
Changes in benefit terms -                             (14,836)                  -                             
Differences between expected and actual experience -                             (6,499,465)             -                             
Changes in assumptions -                             2,222,210              -                             
Benefit payments (2,008,149)             (1,702,041)             (2,108,215)             
Net change in total OPEB liability                   199,076              (3,526,929)                   315,858 
Total OPEB liability - beginning              30,855,507              34,382,436              34,066,578 
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)  $          31,054,583  $          30,855,507  $          34,382,436 

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer  $            3,008,149  $            2,702,041  $            3,108,215 
Net investment income                1,225,517                1,310,117                1,853,936 
Benefit payments (2,008,149)             (1,702,041)             (2,108,215)             
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,225,517              2,310,117              2,853,936              
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 19,790,245            17,480,128            14,626,192            
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 22,015,762$          19,790,245$          17,480,128$          

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 9,038,821$            11,065,262$          16,902,308$          

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 70.89% 64.14% 50.84%
Covered payroll 20,672,220$          19,639,908$          18,365,669$          
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 43.72% 56.34% 92.03%

 

(1) Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation of GASB 75; therefore, only one year is shown. 

 

Schedule of the County’s OPEB Contributions 

 2020  2019  2018(1) 
Actuarially determined contribution 1,241,911$            1,380,860$            2,064,918$            
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 2,010,358              3,008,149              2,702,041              
Contribution deficiency (excess) (768,447)                (1,627,289)             (637,123)                
Covered payroll 20,672,220$          19,814,600$          19,639,908$          
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 9.7% 15.2% 13.8%

 

(1) Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation of GASB 75: therefore, only one year is shown. 

.

90



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

Notes to OPEB Schedules 

 Valuation date: June 30, 2018 
 Methods and assumptions used to determine 
 Contribution rates: 
  Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
  Amortization method Level dollar basis; closed 30 years 
  Amortization period 29 years remaining 
  Asset valuation method Market value of assets 
  Inflation 2.75% 
  Healthcare cost trend rates 7% in 2020 to 5% in 2024 
    In steps of 0.5%  
  Salary increases 3.25% 
  Investment rate of return 6.00% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including 
    inflation. 
  Mortality 2017 CalPERS experience study 
  Mortality Improvement MW Scale 2018 generationally   

91



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes 25,989,600$   25,989,600$   27,063,304$   1,073,704$         
Licenses and permits 312,400           312,400           324,938           12,538                
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 830,709           830,709           696,598           (134,111)             
Use of money and property 291,092           291,092           295,902           4,810                  
Intergovernmental 4,429,401        4,564,523        4,473,122        (91,401)               
Charges for services 4,541,394        4,803,654        5,036,785        233,131              
Other revenues 14,000             138,585           61,905             (76,680)               
Transfers in 2,079,692        2,089,013        1,185,687        (903,326)             

Total Revenues 38,488,288     39,019,576     39,138,241     118,665              

Expenditures
General government

Board of Supervisors 532,271           538,450           503,371           35,079                
Administrative Officer 1,338,238        1,251,455        1,249,675        1,780                  
Department of Finance 2,022,585        2,042,585        1,949,399        93,186                
General Fund Operating Transfers 2,322,805        2,639,530        2,609,483        30,047                
Assessor 1,361,067        1,361,067        1,164,083        196,984              
County Counsel 1,196,574        1,196,574        1,098,368        98,206                
Election Division 302,492           538,283           363,422           174,861              
Information Technology 1,853,861        1,855,161        1,756,297        98,864                
IT - Radio 446,734           418,947           248,105           170,842              
Public Works 1,016,741        1,025,741        974,320           51,421                
County Facilities 2,731,923        2,876,923        2,883,359        (6,436)                 
Economic Development 591,707           591,707           443,814           147,893              

Total general government 15,716,998     16,336,423     15,243,696     1,092,727           

Public protection 
County MOE 1,034,209        1,040,884        977,107           63,777                
Public Defender 768,500           768,500           663,120           105,380              
Grand Jury 10,000             10,000             5,171               4,829                  
District Attorney - Prosecution 1,743,384        1,748,884        1,739,989        8,895                  
Public Administrator 6,450               6,450               5,242               1,208                  
Sheriff 6,565,796        6,690,863        6,499,635        191,228              
Boating Law Enforcement 137,614           134,949           145,368           (10,419)               
Search and Rescue 48,434             48,434             36,768             11,666                
Court Security 478,003           478,003           443,369           34,634                
Jail 2,841,633        2,841,633        2,740,276        101,357              
Emergency Services -                       127,790           22,161             105,629              
Adult Probation Services 1,521,282        1,521,282        1,454,788        66,494                
Juvenile Probation Services 6,000               6,000               4,069               1,931                  
Agricultural Commissioner 159,935           218,433           218,433           -                          
County Clerk / Recorder 597,973           626,637           622,200           4,437                  
Animal Control 555,995           555,995           472,085           83,910                
Planning & Transportation 1,301,857        1,414,537        1,231,814        182,723              

continued

92



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (continued)
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Expenditures (continued)
Public protection (continued)

Housing Development 27,510             27,510             18,292             9,218                  
Code Enforcement 277,653           281,653           244,307           37,346                
Planning Commission 17,642             17,642             12,497             5,145                  
Building Inspector 469,808           469,808           405,088           64,720                

Total public protection 18,569,678     19,035,887     17,961,779     1,074,108           

Health and sanitation
Paramedic Program 4,391,513        4,393,931        4,255,717        138,214              

Total health and sanitation 4,391,513        4,393,931        4,255,717        138,214              

Public assistance 
Veterans' Services Officer 46,300             51,924             12,981             38,943                
Victim/Witness 287,703           287,703           278,914           8,789                  
Farm Advisor 39,300             39,300             38,008             1,292                  

Total public assistance 373,303           378,927           329,903           49,024                
Contingency 399,549           127,095           -                       127,095              

Total expenditures 39,451,041     40,272,263     37,791,095     2,481,168           

Net Change in Fund Balances (962,753)$       (1,252,687)$    1,347,146        2,599,833$         

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 8,906,893        

Fund Balances - End of Year 10,254,039$   

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary comparison schedule 39,138,241$       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Revenues from sub-funds combined with the General Fund for financial reporting purposes are
  not budgeted as available for appropriation for budgetary purposes 961,315              
A87 cost reimbursement is a budgetary resource but is not current-year revenue for financia
  reporting purposes (1,682,327)          
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financia
  reporting purposes (1,185,687)          

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances - governmental funds 37,231,542$       

continued

93



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (continued)
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)
Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual charges to appropriations from the budgetary comparison schedule above 37,791,095$       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Expenditures from sub-funds combined with the General Fund for financial reporting purposes are
  not budgeted as charges to appropriations for budgetary purposes 579,412              

A87 cost reimbursement reported as a reduction of expenditures for financial reporting purposes but
  is not budgeted as a charge to appropriations for budgetary purposes (1,682,327)          
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures for financia
  reporting purposes (2,299,034)          

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances - governmental fund 34,389,146$       

94



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Road Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Licenses and permits 10,000$          10,000$          8,448$            (1,552)$           
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 60,000            60,000            48,657            (11,343)           
Use of money and property -                      -                      38,409            38,409            
Intergovernmental 6,602,159       6,602,159       5,476,276       (1,125,883)      
Charges for services 430,000          430,000          648,194          218,194          
Other financing sources 7,000              7,000              73,611            66,611            
Transfers in 522,033          622,033          622,033          -                      

Total Revenues 7,631,192       7,731,192       6,915,628       (815,564)         

Expenditures
Public ways and facilities 9,779,542       9,645,034       7,307,108       2,337,926       

Total Expenditures 9,779,542       9,645,034       7,307,108       2,337,926       

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,148,350)$    (1,913,842)$    (391,480)         1,522,362$     

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 2,574,849       

Fund Balances - End of Year 2,183,369$     

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary comparison schedule 6,915,628$     
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financial
  reporting purposes (622,033)         
Other financing sources are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for financial
  reporting purposes (73,611)           

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances - governmental funds 6,219,984$     

95



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Realignment
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Use of money and property 20,539$          30,539$          209,591$        179,052$        
Intergovernmental 3,459,929       3,459,929       3,491,636       31,707            

Total Revenues 3,480,468       3,490,468       3,701,227       210,759          

Expenditures
Public protection 852,471          833,621          640,313          193,308          
Health and Sanitation -                      125,000          148,060          (23,060)           
Transfers out 2,677,531       2,765,031       1,863,478       901,553          

Total Expenditures 3,530,002       3,723,652       2,651,851       1,071,801       

Net Change in Fund Balances (49,534)$         (233,184)$       1,049,376       1,282,560$     

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 8,655,401       

Fund Balances - End of Year 9,704,777$     

Reconciliation of Budgetary Inflows and Outflows to GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual charges to appropriations from the budgetary comparison schedule above 2,651,851$        

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not expenditures for financial

  reporting purposes (1,863,478)        

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances - governmental fund 788,373$           

96



COUNTY OF MONO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Mental Health Services Act
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Use of money and property 30,000$          45,000$          161,328$        116,328$        
Intergovernmental 1,761,009       1,761,009       1,499,589       (261,420)         

Total Revenues 1,791,009       1,806,009       1,660,917       (145,092)         

Expenditures
Health and sanitation 4,091,420       4,327,453       1,461,836       2,865,617       
Contingency 160,000          160,000          -                      160,000          

Total Expenditures 4,251,420       4,487,453       1,461,836       3,025,617       

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,460,411)$    (2,681,444)$    199,081          2,880,525$     

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 7,119,796       

Fund Balances - End of Year 7,318,877$     

97



COUNTY OF MONO 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
 

 

BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 29000 and 29143, inclusive, of the California Government Code and 
other statutory provisions, commonly known as the County Budget Act, the County prepares a budget for each fiscal 
year.  A tentative budget approved no later than June 30, of each year establishes the legal authority for county 
spending in the following fiscal year until a final budget is adopted on or before October 2nd.  Prior to adoption of the 
final budget, a public hearing is held to receive comments prior to adoption. 

From the effective date of the budget, which is adopted and controlled at the department level, the amounts stated 
therein as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various County departments.  However, the legal level 
of control is the fund level.  The Board of Supervisors may amend the budget by a four-fifths majority vote during the 
fiscal year.  Department heads may, upon approval of the Finance Director, make transfers from one object or purpose 
to another within the same budget unit.  All other budget amendments must be approved by the Board.  It is this final 
revised budget that is presented in the required supplementary information section of this financial report.  
Appropriations lapse at year end. 

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund, most special revenue funds, capital project funds and the debt service 
fund.  Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis are materially the same as 
those used to present financial statements in conformity with GAAP, except that transfers are regarded as inflows of 
resources for budgetary purposes and not revenues for GAAP financial statement presentation purposes and transfers 
out are considered outflows of resources for budgetary purposes but not expenditures for GAAP financial statement 
presentation purposes.  Federal payment in lieu of taxes (PILT) revenue is reported in the year received for GAAP 
financial statement presentation purposes but reported in the following year for budgetary purposes. 

 

 

 

98



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS 
  

99



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

100



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted 
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 
 
Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned 
to expenditure for capital outlays, including that acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. 
 
Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 
long-term debt principal and interest. 
 
  

101



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Special Revenue
Community Revolving

Public Behavioral Social Development Loan
Health Health Services Grants Fund

ASSETS
Cash and investments 515,994$      193,969$      2,605,576$   -$                  20$               
Accounts receivable 259               -                    90                 -                    -                    
Due from other governments 319,780        461,118        126,692        137,851        -                    
Due from other funds 167,450        -                    -                    -                    -                    
Prepaid expenses 3,973            3,635            21,903          -                    -                    
Loans receivable -                    -                    -                    911,863        300,000        

Total Assets 1,007,456$   658,722$      2,754,261$   1,049,714$   300,020$      

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable 70,026$        103,845$      298,460$      27,429$        -$                  
Accrued salaries and benefits 69,097          36,623          95,456          -                    -                    
Due to other funds -                    -                    -                    52,368          -                    
Advances from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    99,013          

Total Liabilities 139,123        140,468        393,916        79,797          99,013          

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues 162,181        109,698        51,022          -                    -                    

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 3,973            3,635            21,903          -                    -                    
Restricted 702,179        404,921        2,287,420     969,917        -                    
Committed -                    -                    -                    -                    201,007        
Assigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unassigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Fund Balances 706,152        408,556        2,309,323     969,917        201,007        
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 and Fund Balances 1,007,456$   658,722$      2,754,261$   1,049,714$   300,020$      

continued

102



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Special Revenue
Disaster

Assistance Bio Fish and 
Fund Geothermal Terrorism Game Tobacco

ASSETS
Cash and investments 285,707$      307,816$      -$                  59,354$        -$                  
Accounts receivable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Due from other governments 229,297        15,986          247,378        -                    69,312          
Due from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Prepaid expenses -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Loans receivable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Assets 515,004$      323,802$      247,378$      59,354$        69,312$        

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable 505,323$      15,729$        14,886$        -$                  5,464$          
Accrued salaries and benefits 43,459          -                    4,452            -                    3,058            
Due to other funds -                    -                    204,952        -                    49,524          
Advances from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Liabilities 548,782        15,729          224,290        -                    58,046          

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues 172,234        -                    161,144        -                    69,312          

Fund Balance
Nonspendable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Restricted -                    308,073        -                    59,354          -                    
Committed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Assigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unassigned (206,012)       -                    (138,056)       -                    (58,046)         

Total Fund Balances (206,012)       308,073        (138,056)       59,354          (58,046)         
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 and Fund Balances 515,004$      323,802$      247,378$      59,354$        69,312$        

continued

103



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Special Revenue
Emergency County Various

Medical Mitigation Service Development Restricted
Services Fee Areas Impact Grants

ASSETS
Cash and investments 425,985$      128,629$      2,293,434$   226,538$      1,523,336$   
Accounts receivable -                    -                    528               -                    3,819            
Due from other governments -                    -                    -                    -                    74,865          
Due from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Prepaid expenses -                    -                    -                    -                    348               
Loans receivable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Assets 425,985$      128,629$      2,293,962$   226,538$      1,602,368$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                  -$                  1,268$          -$                  107,427$      
Accrued salaries and benefits -                    -                    761               -                    -                    
Due to other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Advances from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Liabilities -                    -                    2,029            -                    107,427        

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    38,211          

Fund Balance
Nonspendable -                    -                    -                    -                    348               
Restricted 425,985        128,629        2,291,933     226,538        1,456,382     
Committed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Assigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unassigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Fund Balances 425,985        128,629        2,291,933     226,538        1,456,730     
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 and Fund Balances 425,985$      128,629$      2,293,962$   226,538$      1,602,368$   

continued

104



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Capital Projects
Total Miscellaneous Criminal Total

Special Capital Justice Capital
Revenue Improvements Facility Projects

ASSETS
Cash and investments 8,566,358$   500,241$      659,863$      1,160,104$   
Accounts receivable 4,696            -                    -                    -                    
Due from other governments 1,682,279     -                    -                    -                    
Due from other funds 167,450        -                    -                    -                    
Prepaid expenses 29,859          -                    -                    -                    
Loans receivable 1,211,863     -                    -                    -                    

Total Assets 11,662,505$ 500,241$      659,863$      1,160,104$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,149,857$   6,017$          -$                  6,017$          
Accrued salaries and benefits 252,906        -                    -                    -                    
Due to other funds 306,844        -                    -                    -                    
Advances from other funds 99,013          -                    -                    -                    

Total Liabilities 1,808,620     6,017            -                    6,017            

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues 763,802        -                    -                    -                    

Fund Balance
Nonspendable 29,859          -                    -                    -                    
Restricted 9,261,331     -                    659,863        659,863        
Committed 201,007        -                    -                    -                    
Assigned -                    494,224        -                    494,224        
Unassigned (402,114)       -                    -                    -                    

Total Fund Balances 9,090,083     494,224        659,863        1,154,087     
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 and Fund Balances 11,662,505$ 500,241$      659,863$      1,160,104$   

continued

105



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Balance Sheet (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Debt Service
Debt Service

Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments 192,869$      9,919,331$    
Accounts receivable -                    4,696             
Due from other governments -                    1,682,279      
Due from other funds -                    167,450         
Prepaid expenses -                    29,859           
Loans receivable -                    1,211,863      

Total Assets 192,869$      13,015,478$  

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                  1,155,874$    
Accrued salaries and benefits -                    252,906         
Due to other funds -                    306,844         
Advances from other funds -                    99,013           

Total Liabilities -                    1,814,637      

Deferred inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues -                    763,802         

Fund Balance
Nonspendable -                    29,859           
Restricted -                    9,921,194      
Committed -                    201,007         
Assigned 192,869        687,093         
Unassigned -                    (402,114)        

Total Fund Balances 192,869        10,437,039    
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 and Fund Balances 192,869$      13,015,478$  

106



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Revenue

Community Revolving

Public Behavioral Social Development Loan

Health Health Services Grants Fund
REVENUES
Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Licenses and permits 298,721         -                     -                     -                     -                     
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 1,152             8,144             -                     -                     -                     
Use of money and property 13,818           4,571             51,519           (1,732)            -                     
Intergovernmental 2,097,897      1,756,999      3,879,664      471,319         -                     
Charges for services 170,058         187,849         160,388         -                     -                     
Miscellaneous 1,016             150                9,177             -                     -                     

Total Revenues 2,582,662      1,957,713      4,100,748      469,587         -                     

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Public protection -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Health and sanitation 2,473,103      2,087,765      -                     -                     -                     
Public assistance -                     -                     5,431,855      362,331         -                     

Debt service
Principal -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest and issuance cost -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital outlay -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures 2,473,103      2,087,765      5,431,855      362,331         -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 109,559         (130,052)        (1,331,107)     107,256         -                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 17,023           121,480         1,366,197      -                     -                     
Transfers out (84,998)          -                     (37,023)          (6,115)            -                     

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (67,975)          121,480         1,329,174      (6,115)            -                     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 41,584           (8,572)            (1,933)            101,141         -                     

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (restated) 664,568         417,128         2,311,256      868,776         201,007         
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR 706,152$       408,556$       2,309,323$    969,917$       201,007$       

continued

107



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Revenue

Disaster

Assistance Bio Fish and 

Fund Geothermal Terrorism Game Tobacco
REVENUES
Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Licenses and permits -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Fines, forfeitures and penalties -                     -                     -                     10,544           -                     
Use of money and property 19,565           6,876             (4,002)            1,210             (1,311)            
Intergovernmental 83,412           -                     538,254         -                     283,548         
Charges for services -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous -                     226,322         -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 102,977         233,198         534,252         11,754           282,237         

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Public protection 813,401         192,550         86,466           -                     -                     
Health and sanitation -                     -                     453,160         -                     296,623         
Public assistance -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Debt service
Principal -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest and issuance cost -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital outlay -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures 813,401         192,550         539,626         -                     296,623         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (710,424)        40,648           (5,374)            11,754           (14,386)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 500,000         -                     44,759           -                     40,239           
Transfers out (364,470)        (15,000)          -                     -                     -                     

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 135,530         (15,000)          44,759           -                     40,239           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (574,894)        25,648           39,385           11,754           25,853           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (restated) 368,882         282,425         (177,441)        47,600           (83,899)          
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR (206,012)$      308,073$       (138,056)$      59,354$         (58,046)$        

continued

108



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Revenue

Emergency County Various

Medical Mitigation Service Development Restricted

Services Fee Area Impact Grants
REVENUES
Taxes -$                   -$                   242,524$       -$                   -$                   
Licenses and permits -                     -                     -                     -                     16,341           
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 33,924           -                     -                     -                     9,000             
Use of money and property 8,909             2,810             53,160           4,949             25,989           
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                     -                     1,306,499      
Charges for services -                     -                     139,638         -                     16,934           
Miscellaneous -                     -                     11,729           -                     71,749           

Total Revenues 42,833           2,810             447,051         4,949             1,446,512      

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                     -                     207,895         -                     -                     
Public protection -                     -                     -                     -                     1,191,385      
Health and sanitation -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Public assistance -                     -                     -                     -                     59,878           

Debt service
Principal -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest and issuance cost -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital outlay -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                     -                     207,895         -                     1,251,263      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 42,833           2,810             239,156         4,949             195,249         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                     -                     -                     -                     46,473           
Transfers out -                     -                     (152,315)        -                     (78,380)          

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     (152,315)        -                     (31,907)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 42,833           2,810             86,841           4,949             163,342         

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (restated) 383,152         125,819         2,205,092      221,589         1,293,388      
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR 425,985$       128,629$       2,291,933$    226,538$       1,456,730$    

continued

109



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Capital Projects

Total Miscellaneous Criminal Total

Special Capital Justice Capital

Revenue Improvements Facility Projects
REVENUES
Taxes 242,524$       -$                   -$                   -$                   
Licenses and permits 315,062         -                     -                     -                     
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 62,764           -                     -                     -                     
Use of money and property 186,331         -                     -                     -                     
Intergovernmental 10,417,592    -                     -                     -                     
Charges for services 674,867         -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous 320,143         280                -                     280                

Total Revenues 12,219,283    280                -                     280                

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 207,895         -                     -                     -                     
Public protection 2,283,802      -                     -                     -                     
Health and sanitation 5,310,651      -                     -                     -                     
Public assistance 5,854,064      -                     -                     -                     

Debt service
Principal -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest and issuance cost -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital outlay -                     148,455         -                     148,455         
Total Expenditures 13,656,412    148,455         -                     148,455         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,437,129)     (148,175)        -                     (148,175)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,136,171      271,017         300,000         571,017         
Transfers out (738,301)        (100,386)        -                     (100,386)        

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,397,870      170,631         300,000         470,631         

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (39,259)          22,456           300,000         322,456         

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (restated) 9,129,342      471,768         359,863         831,631         
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR 9,090,083$    494,224$       659,863$       1,154,087$    

continued

110



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Debt Services

Debt Service

Fund Total
REVENUES
Taxes -$                   242,524$         
Licenses and permits -                     315,062           
Fines, forfeitures and penalties -                     62,764             
Use of money and property -                     186,331           
Intergovernmental -                     10,417,592      
Charges for services -                     674,867           
Miscellaneous -                     320,423           

Total Revenues -                     12,219,563      

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government -                     207,895           
Public protection -                     2,283,802        
Health and sanitation -                     5,310,651        
Public assistance -                     5,854,064        

Debt service
Principal 127,200         127,200           
Interest and issuance cost 26,003           26,003             

Capital outlay -                     148,455           
Total Expenditures 153,203         13,958,070      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (153,203)        (1,738,507)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 153,203         2,860,391        
Transfers out -                     (838,687)          

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 153,203         2,021,704        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -                     283,197           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (restated) 192,869         10,153,842      
FUND BALANCES, END OF THE YEAR 192,869$       10,437,039$    

111



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

112



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through user charges; or where the County has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 
 
  

113



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2020

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total
ASSETS
Current Assets

Pooled cash and investments 102,345$          54,516$            156,861$          
Accounts receivable 4,695                -                        4,695                

Total Assets 107,040            54,516              161,556            

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 3,747                -                        3,747                

Total Liabilities 3,747                -                        3,747                

NET POSITION
Restricted -                        4,648                4,648                
Unrestricted 103,293            49,868              153,161            

Total Net Position 103,293$          54,516$            157,809$          

114



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 41,056$                   15,900$                   56,956$                   

Total Operating Revenues 41,056                     15,900                     56,956                     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Services and supplies 25,543                     22,206                     47,749                     

Total Operating Expenses 25,543                     22,206                     47,749                     

Operating Income (loss) 15,513                     (6,306)                     9,207                       

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income (expenses) 2,212                       876                          3,088                       

Total Non-Operating Revenues 2,212                       876                          3,088                       

Income (Loss) Before  Transfers 17,725                     (5,430)                     12,295                     

Transfers In -                              27,488                     27,488                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 17,725                     22,058                     39,783                     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 85,568                     32,458                     118,026                   

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 103,293$                 54,516$                   157,809$                 

115



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Campgrounds Cemeteries Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers 37,033$            15,900$            52,933$            
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (28,276)             (22,206)             (50,482)             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 8,757                (6,306)               2,451                

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers received from other funds -                        27,488              27,488              

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing -                        27,488              27,488              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (paid) 2,212                876                   3,088                

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 2,212                876                   3,088                

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
and Cash Equivalents 10,969              22,058              33,027              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 91,376              32,458              123,834            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 102,345$          54,516$            156,861$          

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 15,513$            (6,306)$             9,207$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables (4,023)               -                        (4,023)               
Payables (2,733)               -                        (2,733)               

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities 8,757$              (6,306)$             2,451$              

116



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or 
agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement 
basis. 
 
  

117



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2020

Insurance Tech Refresh
Copier Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total

ASSETS
Current Assets

Pooled cash and investments 87,180$        1,717,201$   622,025$      151,231$      2,577,637$   
Cash with fiscal agent -                    -                    68,355          -                    68,355          
Deposits with others -                    -                    5,282,162     -                    5,282,162     
Accounts receivable -                    20,663          -                    -                    20,663          
Inventory -                    29,407          -                    -                    29,407          

Total Current Assets 87,180          1,767,271     5,972,542     151,231        7,978,224     

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable -                    -                    -                    47,051          47,051          
Depreciable, net 64,661          3,629,742     -                    41,752          3,736,155     

Total Assets 151,841        5,397,013     5,972,542     240,034        11,761,430   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions -                    87,327          -                    -                    87,327          

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 9,901            290,732        170               8,363            309,166        
Salaries and benefits payable -                    10,542          5,324            -                    15,866          
Claims Liability -                    -                    3,649,321     -                    3,649,321     

Total Current Liabilities 9,901            301,274        3,654,815     8,363            3,974,353     

Long-term Liabilities
Net pension liability -                    544,344        -                    -                    544,344        

Total Liabilities 9,901            845,618        3,654,815     8,363            4,518,697     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions -                    10,628          -                    -                    10,628          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 64,661          3,629,742     -                    88,803          3,783,206     
Unrestricted 77,279          998,352        2,317,727     142,868        3,536,226     

Total Net Position 141,940$      4,628,094$   2,317,727$   231,671$      7,319,432$   

118



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Copier Insurance Tech Refresh
Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 104,524       1,151,661      2,968,981     330,546         4,555,712      

Total Operating  Revenues 104,524       1,151,661      2,968,981     330,546         4,555,712      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits -                   713,244         141,586        -                     854,830         
Services and supplies 86,370         249,180         2,367,562     353,377         3,056,489      
Depreciation 26,399         709,403         -                    3,863             739,665         

Total Operating Expenses 112,769       1,671,827      2,509,148     357,240         4,650,984      

Operating Income (Loss) (8,245)          (520,166)        459,833        (26,694)          (95,272)          

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income (expense) 1,255           40,155           14,862          671                56,943           
Sale of capital assets (1,362)          18,640           -                    518                17,796           
Miscellaneous -                   10,502           32,842          -                     43,344           

Total Non-Operating Revenues (107)             69,297           47,704          1,189             118,083         

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (8,352)          (450,869)        507,537        (25,505)          22,811           

Transfers in -                   790,600         -                    235,000         1,025,600      

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (8,352)          339,731         507,537        209,495         1,048,411      

Net Position, Beginning of Year 150,292       4,288,363      1,810,190     22,176           6,271,021      

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 141,940$     4,628,094$    2,317,727$   231,671$       7,319,432$    

119



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 Insurance Tech Refresh

Copier Pool Motor Pool Pool Pool Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from interfund services provided 104,524$        1,130,998$     2,968,981$  330,546$     4,535,049$     
Cash paid to employees for services -                     (361,417)        (139,284)      -                   (500,701)        
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (116,894)        (266,087)        (2,762,278)   (347,968)      (3,493,227)     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (12,370)          503,494          67,419         (17,422)        541,121          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Net transfers in (out) -                     -                     -                   -                   -                     
Other revenues -                     10,502            32,842         -                   43,344            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing -                     10,502            32,842         -                   43,344            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers used to finance capital acquisition -                     790,600          -                   235,000       1,025,600       
Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets -                     (1,706,758)     -                   (76,967)        (1,783,725)     
Sale of capital assets -                     44,754            -                   518              45,272            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities -                     (871,404)        -                   158,551       (712,853)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (paid) 1,255              40,155            14,862         671              56,943            

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,255              40,155            14,862         671              56,943            

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
and Cash Equivalents (11,115)          (317,253)        115,123       141,800       (71,445)          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 98,295            2,034,454       575,257       9,431           2,717,437       
-                     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 87,180$          1,717,201$     690,380$     151,231$     2,645,992$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (8,245)$          (520,166)$      459,833$     (26,694)$      (95,272)$        
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 26,399            709,403          -                   3,863           739,665          
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable -                     (20,663)          -                   -                   (20,663)          
Prepaid expenses -                     -                     -                   3,300           3,300              
Inventory -                     (29,407)          -                   -                   (29,407)          
Deposits with others -                     -                     (791,555)      -                   (791,555)        
Deferred outflows -                     (64,766)          -                   -                   (64,766)          
Claims liability -                     -                     407,466       -                   407,466          
Accrued salaries and benefits -                     1,024              2,302           -                   3,326              
Payables (30,524)          12,500            (10,627)        2,109           (26,542)          
Net Pension liability -                     408,669          -                   -                   408,669          
Deferred inflows -                     6,900              -                   -                   6,900              

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities (12,370)$        503,494$        67,419$       (17,422)$      541,121$        

120



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 
 

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities that deposit cash with the County 
Treasurer.  These entities include school and community college districts, other special districts governed by local 
boards, regional boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for cities.  These funds represent 
the assets, primarily cash and investments, and the related liability of the County to disburse these monies on demand. 
 
  

121



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Investment Trust Fund
June 30, 2020

Local School
Districts Funds Total

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments 25,204,331$     33,990,414$        59,194,745$       

Total Assets 25,204,331$     33,990,414$        59,194,745$       

NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for investment

pool participants 25,204,331$     33,990,414$        59,194,745$       

122



COUNTY OF MONO
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Investment Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Local School 
Districts Districts Total

Additions
Contributions 26,662,872$     51,799,469$     78,462,341$     
Investment income 571,699            758,952            1,330,651         

Total Additions 27,234,571       52,558,421       79,792,992       

Deductions:
Distribution from pooled investment 25,776,654       52,611,961       78,388,615       

Change in Net Position 1,457,917         (53,540)             1,404,377         

Beginning net position held in 
trust for pool participants 23,746,414       34,043,954       57,790,368       

Ending net position held for
pool participants 25,204,331$     33,990,414$     59,194,745$     

123



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  

124



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
  

125



COUNTY OF MONO 

Assessed Value of Taxable Property (In Thousands of Dollars) 
2010-11 through 2019-20 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

Secured 
Roll (1) 

Unsecured Roll 
(2) Exemptions (3) 

Net 
Assessed 
Valuations % Change 

2011 5,255,407 881,140 55,020 6,081,527 (6.43) 
2012 5,129,027 675,957 57,004 5,747,980 (5.48) 
2013 5,072,813 575,835 58,574 5,590,074 (2.75) 
2014 5,128,486 398,473 59,899 5,467,060 (2.20) 
2015 5,241,684 398,352 60,322 5,579,714 2.06 
2016 5,381,852 397,894 62,257 5,717,489 2.47 
2017 5,474,199 401,736 63,206 5,812,729 1.67 
2018 5,624,767 406,262 64,067 5,966,962 2.65 
2019 5,773,194 418,956 66,365 6,125,785 2.66 
2020 6,149,908 500,342 61,299 6,588,951 7.56 

      

(1) Secured property is generally the real property, which is defined as land, mineral, timber, and improvements such 
as buildings, structures, crops, trees and vines.  Also included in secured roll are unitary properties, including 
railroads and utilities, which cross the County and are assessed by the State Board of Equalization. 

(2) Unsecured property is generally personal property, including machinery, equipment, office tools, supplies, mobile 
homes, and aircraft. 

(3) Exempt properties include numerous full and partial exclusions/exemptions provided. 
Source: Mono County Property Tax System. 

 
 

126



Secured & Current Percent
Fiscal Unsecured Taxes Percent Delinquent Total of Levy
Year Tax Levy Collected of Levy Collections Collections Collected

1998-99 6,120,181 5,420,929 88.57% 185,983 5,606,912 91.61%
1999-00 6,420,655 5,699,096 88.77% 166,327 5,865,423 91.35%
2000-01 6,880,850 6,464,711 93.95% 139,088 6,603,799 95.97%
2001-02 7,073,947 6,992,736 98.85% 151,339 7,144,075 100.99%
2002-03 8,271,224 8,307,872 100.44% 250,939 8,558,811 103.48%
2003-04 8,426,505 8,523,576 101.15% 69,133 8,592,709 101.97%
2004-05 9,536,891 9,449,034 99.08% 58,669 9,507,703 99.69%
2005-06 11,362,185 10,892,350 95.86% 85,125 10,977,475 96.61%
2006-07 13,630,827 13,805,122 101.28% 122,857 13,927,980 102.18%
2007-08 15,706,796 16,120,226 102.63% 85,260 16,205,486 103.17%
2008-09 17,388,237 16,726,245 96.19% 145,777 16,872,022 97.03%
2009-10 17,600,670 16,124,835 91.61% 604,423 16,729,257 95.05%
2010-11 16,514,331 14,230,471 86.17% 578,940 14,809,410 89.68%
2011-12 14,392,453 14,296,942 99.34% 505,527 14,802,468 102.85%
2012-13 15,368,593 15,038,334 97.85% 340,237 15,378,571 100.06%
2013-14 15,889,566 14,384,146 90.53% 435,043 14,819,189 93.26%
2014-15 16,152,775 15,713,842 97.28% 205,656 15,919,498 98.56%
2015-16 16,486,505 16,415,898 99.57% 199,666 16,615,564 100.78%
2016-17 16,911,949 16,484,906 97.47% 170,941 16,655,848 98.49%
2017-18 17,334,675 16,920,747 97.61% 363,296 17,284,043 99.71%
2018-19 18,059,302 17,807,051 98.60% 256,713 18,063,763 100.02%
2019-20 19,076,543 19,183,494 100.56% 175,353 19,358,847 101.48%

General Fund only.  Includes all charges, paid and unpaid.  Redeemed delinquent taxes now included in taxes collected section.

Source: Mono County AB8 Calculations and General Ledger.

COUNTY OF MONO

Tax Levies and Collections
General Fund Secured Roll
1998-99 through 2019-20

127



COUNTY OF MONO 

Property Tax Levies and Collections (In Thousands of Dollars) 
2010-11 through 2019-20 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

Taxes Levied 
During the 

Fiscal Year (1) 

Collected within  
the Fiscal Year  
of the Levy (2) 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years (3) 

Total (4) 
Collections to Date 

Amount % of Levy Amount % of Levy 

2011 61,210 54,658 89.30 6,550 61,208 99.99 
2012 58,030 54,847 94.52 3,180 58,027 99.99 
2013 56,893 55,986 98.41 899 56,885 99.98 
2014 54,989 53,288 96.91 1688 54,976 99.97 
2015 56,118 54,051 96.32 2,046 56,097 99.96 
2016 57,736 55,635 96.36 2,077 57,712 99.95 
2017 58,487 56,905 97.30 1,548 58,453 99.94 
2018 60,059 59,698 99.40 296 59,994 99.89 
2019 61,663 61,175 99.21 334 61,509 99.75 
2020 66,705 66,128 99.13 331 66,459 99.63 

 
(1) Includes Secured, Unsecured, and Unitary Taxes levied for the County itself, school districts, cities and special 

districts under the supervision of their own governing boards.  Includes adjustments to the tax rolls from the levy 
date to delinquency date. 

(2) Includes amounts collected by the County on behalf of itself, school districts, cities and special districts under the 
supervision of their own governing boards. 

(3) Includes adjustments to the levy.  Taxes levied less collections to date equal the delinquent taxes receivable. 
(4) Total Collection to date run on 3/4/2021 
Source: Mono County Property Tax System. 

 

128



Real Property Personal
Fiscal Year Inc. HOPTR % Chg Property % Chg Total % Chg

1998-99 $ 1,676,009,395 2.64% 229,640,519 1.92% $ 1,905,649,914 2.55%
1999-00 1,779,593,856 6.18% 229,350,947 -0.13% 2,008,944,803 5.42%
2000-01 1,989,414,352 11.79% 196,039,081 -14.52% 2,185,453,433 8.79%
2001-02 2,215,280,910 11.35% 224,479,974 14.51% 2,439,760,884 11.64%
2002-03 2,430,999,676 9.74% 252,782,477 12.61% 2,683,782,153 10.00%
2003-04 2,762,004,268 13.62% 265,105,692 4.88% 3,027,109,960 12.79%
2004-05 3,085,979,775 11.73% 267,934,406 1.07% 3,353,914,181 10.80%
2005-06 3,550,462,443 15.05% 260,084,308 -2.93% 3,810,546,751 13.61%
2006-07 4,278,126,257 20.49% 281,570,435 8.26% 4,559,696,692 19.66%
2007-08 5,015,813,891 17.24% 302,045,338 7.27% 5,317,859,229 16.63%
2008-09 5,554,102,507 10.73% 318,725,408 5.52% 5,872,827,915 10.44%
2009-10 5,634,656,131 1.45% 282,290,022 -11.43% 5,916,946,153 0.75%
2010-11 5,096,159,613 -9.56% 418,506,072 48.25% 5,514,665,685 -6.80%
2011-12 4,964,600,710 -2.58% 413,444,230 -1.21% 5,378,044,940 -2.48%
2012-13 4,957,878,484 -0.14% 360,781,678 -12.74% 5,318,660,162 -1.10%
2013-14 4,911,028,555 -0.94% 383,101,102 6.19% 5,294,129,657 -0.46%
2014-15 4,990,657,506 1.62% 392,756,377 2.52% 5,383,413,883 1.69%
2015-16 5,106,845,276 2.33% 389,673,020 -0.79% 5,496,518,296 2.10%
2016-17 5,244,471,009 2.69% 394,428,705 1.22% 5,638,899,714 2.59%
2017-18 5,375,320,883 5.26% 401,388,290 3.01% 5,776,709,173 5.10%
2018-19 5,605,296,997 4.28% 415,176,197 3.44% 6,020,473,194 4.22%
2019-20 5,947,266,148 6.10% 425,429,377 2.47% 6,372,695,525 5.85%

Source: Mono County AB8 Calculations.

COUNTY OF MONO

Property Tax Value Allocation Collection
1998-99 through 2019-20
AB-8 VALUES

129



School
Districts and

Fiscal Town of Augmentation Special
Year Secured Unsecured Mammoth Fund Districts Totals

1998-99 5,582,040 731,930 588,337 7,930,027 4,572,566 19,404,900
1999-00 5,778,043 723,824 647,065 8,306,363 4,794,903 20,250,198
2000-01 6,264,163 616,687 782,357 8,817,667 5,238,415 21,719,289
2001-02 7,073,947 695,136 825,121 7,085,768 5,591,710 21,271,682
2002-03 7,534,894 772,978 953,355 11,204,067 6,080,626 26,545,920
2003-04 8,523,576 807,741 1,158,647 12,615,367 6,936,400 30,041,730
2004-05* 9,449,034 706,107 1,348,916 13,642,275 7,916,718 33,063,050
2005-06* 11,455,149 765,220 1,592,687 16,021,241 9,067,830 38,902,127
2006-07* 12,910,660 894,463 2,295,078 18,389,553 11,787,382 46,277,136
2007-08* 14,515,638 870,916 2,624,774 22,147,747 12,860,888 53,019,963
2008-09* 14,933,794 ** 919,168 ** 2,653,891 ** 23,571,923 ** 15,301,520 ** 57,380,296
2009-10* 15,165,933 ** 1,260,670 ** 2,417,595 ** 25,336,531 ** 11,152,009 ** 55,332,738
2010-11* 15,209,742 ** 2,409,465 ** 2,409,465 ** 22,262,705 ** 12,855,279 ** 55,146,657
2011-12* 14,822,535 ** 1,288,349 ** 2,355,391 ** 22,694,146 ** 12,800,764 ** 53,961,185
2012-13* 14,814,123 ** 1,122,030 ** 2,286,660 ** 22,419,290 ** 12,544,531 ** 53,186,634
2013-14* 14,697,811 ** 1,149,583 ** 2,269,698 ** 22,354,923 ** 12,476,495 ** 52,948,509
2014-15* 14,935,887 ** 1,146,281 ** 2,341,781 ** 21,402,568 ** 14,014,837 ** 53,841,353
2015-16* 15,801,348 1,164,420 2,369,745 22,847,929 12,844,465 55,027,908
2016-17 15,725,094 1,177,187 2,424,093 ** 22,859,891 ** 14,200,279 ** 56,386,544
2017-18 16,137,096 1,198,115 2,484,903 ** 24,398,429 ** 13,556,298 ** 57,774,841
2018-19 17,003,707 1,239,919 2,597,454 ** 25,425,629 ** 14,127,324 ** 60,394,034
2019-20 18,350,088 1,366,601 2,775,448 ** 26,882,553 ** 14,997,388 ** 64,372,078

COUNTY OF MONO

Property Tax Collections
1998-99 through 2019-20

The lien or assessment date is the first Monday in January

Taxes may be paid in two installments.  First installment is due November 1, and becomes delinquent on December 10, with 10% penalty added.  
Second installment is due February 1, and becomes delinquent on April 10, with 10% penalty and $10.00 per parcel added for costs.

After June 30, property is transferred to the delinquent roll. Beginning July 1, additional penalties of 1% per month for the first year and 1/2% per
month thereafter until the property is redeemed.  After five years, the property may be sold for taxes due.

General Fund Secured and Unsecured

County General Fund

* Triple-Flip Adjustments not recognized in these figures                                                                                                      

** These figures are based upon the AB-8 Allocation and not actual receipts

130



Town Schools
of Mammoth Library Special

Fiscal Year County Lakes and ERAF Districts Total

1998-99 31.86% 3.06% 41.28% 23.80% 100.00%

1999-00 31.70% 3.19% 41.04% 24.07% 100.00%

2000-01 31.45% 3.58% 40.40% 24.57% 100.00%

2001-02 30.97% 3.64% 40.79% 24.60% 100.00%

2002-03 30.75% 3.74% 40.79% 24.72% 100.00%

2003-04 30.51% 3.89% 40.64% 24.96% 100.00%

2004-05 30.32% 4.00% 40.51% 25.17% 100.00%

2005-06 30.04% 4.17% 42.01% 23.78% 100.00%

2006-07 29.78% 4.29% 41.84% 24.08% 100.00%

2007-08 29.60% 4.43% 40.06% 25.91% 100.00%

2008-09 29.51% 4.50% 40.01% 25.97% 100.00%

2009-10 29.65% 4.46% 40.18% 25.71% 100.00%

2010-11 29.85% 4.37% 40.37% 25.42% 100.00%

2011-12 29.85% 4.36% 42.06% 23.73% 100.00%

2012-13 29.96% 4.30% 40.18% 25.56% 100.00%

2013-14 30.01% 4.29% 42.22% 23.48% 100.00%

2014-15 30.00% 4.30% 40.54% 25.16% 100.00%

2015-16 29.99% 4.30% 42.21% 23.50% 100.00%

2016-17 29.99% 4.30% 42.22% 23.49% 100.00%

2017-18 30.00% 4.30% 42.23% 23.47% 100.00%

2018-19 29.99% 4.31% 42.23% 23.47% 100.00%

2019-20 29.94% 4.35% 42.18% 23.53% 100.00%

Source: Mono County AB8 Calculations.

COUNTY OF MONO

Distribution of Pooled Property Tax
1998-99 through 2019-20

131



COUNTY OF MONO 

Ten Largest Taxpayers for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 
2010-11 through 2019-20 

Taxpayer Type of Business 

Taxable 
Assessed Value 

($’000) Rank 

% of Total 
County 

Assessed 
Value 

City of Los Angeles Government $336,019 1 5.49% 
Southern California Edison Utility 105,444 2 1.72 
Magma Energy Incorporated Utility 84,073 3 1.37 
IW Mammoth Holdings Developer 53,181 4 0.87 
Ormat Utility 36,384 5 0.59 
Mammoth Pacific Utility 28,514 6 0.47 
JPK Mammoth Village Owner Commercial Facilities 28,300 7 0.46 
Snowcreek Investment Company Developer 22,490 8 0.37 
Metric Mammoth, LLC Restaurant Facilities 16,920 9 0.27 
Beacon Mammoth, Inc Developer 15,000 10 0.24 

Total  $726,325  11.85% 
 
Source: Mono County Property Tax Software. 

 
 

132



Distribution:

TAX AREAS:   051-000 THRU 051-013/ 051-019 THRU 051-034 PERCENTAGE

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

ESUSD BOND Current 0.053160
ESUSD BOND Redemption 0.006840

TOTAL 1.060000

TAX AREAS:   051-014 THRU 051-018

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

ESUSD BOND Current 0.053160
ESUSD BOND Redemption 0.006840

TOTAL 1.060000

TAX AREAS:   010-000, 010-002, 010-003,010-004, 010-006, 010-008, 010-011, 010-012

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 Redemption 0.010232

Mammoth Unifed Bond 2018 Series A 0.022054

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.015709
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.022707

TOTAL 1.070702

TAX AREAS:   010-001,010-005,010-007,010-009,010-010

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 Redemption 0.010232

Mammoth Unifed Bond 2018 Series A 0.022054

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.015709
Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.022707

TOTAL 1.070702

TAX AREAS:   010-013, 059-000, 059-005, 059-007, 059-012

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

Mammoth Unified Bond '98, '00 & '01 Redemption 0.010232

Mammoth Unifed Bond 2018 Series A 0.022054

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.015709

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.022707

TOTAL 1.070702

TAX AREAS:   060-000

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

Bishop HS Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.061772

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Redemption 0.015709

Southern Mono Hospital Bond Current 0.022707

TOTAL 1.100188

TAX AREAS:   060-001 THRU 060-006

PROP 13 (1% Limit) 1.000000

Bishop HS Bond (Determined by Inyo County) 0.061772

TOTAL 1.061772

Unitary Tax Rate

Unitary 1% Ad Valorem 1.000000

Unitary Debt Service Rate 0.614567

TOTAL 1.614567

COUNTY OF MONO

TAX RATES

2019-20

COUNTY OF MONO
Property Tax Allocation Collection

County Wide Tax Limitation is 1 percent of Full Cash Value of $1.00 Per Hundred Dollars of Full Cash Value per Proposition 13.

The tax levy generated by the $1.00 rate is distributed to various taxing agencies using factors based upon tax collections of the three previous years 
(Local Agencies) and one year for schools (1977-78).

Voter approved debt service is exempt from the 1 percent limitation.

133



COUNTY OF MONO 

Transient Occupancy Tax Receipts 
2010-11 through 2019-20 
 

Fiscal Year  
Ended June 30 

TOT  
Receipts Growth Rate (%) 

2011 2,326,471 (1.31) 
2012 2,472,355 6.27 
2013 2,416,503 (2.26) 
2014 2,590,571 7.20 
2015 2,741,890 5.84 
2016 3,025,975 10.36 
2017 3,321,117 9.75 
2018 3,560,345 7.20 
2019 3,522,445 (1.06) 
2020 3,125,234 (11.27) 

   
Source:  Mono County Transient Occupancy Tax Statistics. 

 

134



County Date of Formation: April 21, 1861

Form of Government: General Law County under California Constitution 1849

Area: 3,049 Square Miles

County Road Mileage: 684.42

Fire Protection: No county-wide fire district, each community has its own
special fire protection district

Public Protection: Sworn Sheriff/Jail Personnel 44
Non-Sworn Sheriff/Jail Personnel 4
Number of Stations 3
Number of Employees 48
Percentage of Public Protection Personnel 15.24%

Countywide Employees Total of Full-time & Part-time 315
(Includes Public Protection Employees)
(Does not include Court Employees)

Elections: Number of Registered Voters 7,095
Number of Votes Cast Last General Election 4,267
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting 60.14%

Number of Registered Voters 7,840
Number of Votes Cast Last General Election 6,828
Percentage of Registered Voters Voting 87.09%

COUNTY OF MONO

Miscellaneous Statistical Informantion
June 30, 2020

March 3, 2020 Primary Election

November 3, 2020 General Election

135



Population: FY Year County   Incorporated Total

(Bodie Only) 1879 8,000 8,000
1910 2,042 2,042
1920 960 960
1930 1,360 1,360
1940 2,299 2,299
1950 2,115 2,115
1960 2,213 2,213
1970 4,016 4,016
1980 8,577 8,577
1990 *** 10,350
2000 *** 10,293

Department of Finance as of 1/1/*** 2001 *** 12,799
2002 *** 13,250
2003 *** 13,350
2004 5,946 7,617 13,563
2005 5,982 7,667 13,649
2006 5,880 7,717 13,597
2007 6,346 7,413 13,759
2008 6,214 7,413 13,627
2009 6,318 7,299 13,617
2010 5,819 8,209 14,028
2011 5,890 8,286 14,176
2012 5,819 8,209 14,028
2013 6,186 8,307 14,493
2014 6,045 8,098 14,143
2015 6,285 8,410 14,695
2016 5,697 8,024 13,721
2017 5,711 8,002 13,713
2018 5,506 8,316 13,822
2019 5,612 8,004 13,616
2020 5,605 7,859 13,464

*** No Data Kept for these years

COUNTY OF MONO

Miscellaneous Statistical Informantion
June 30, 2020

136



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2020 



 

 

COUNTY OF MONO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 

JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

  Page 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over 
  Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
  Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
  Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................................................................................... 1 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program  
  and on Internal Control Over Compliance, Schedule of Expenditures 
  of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance, Supplemental  
  Schedule of the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) and the  
  Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Grants Expenditures, and  
  Supplemental Schedule of the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) 
  and the Board of State and Community Corrections Grants Expenditures ............................................... 3 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................................................. 7 
 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ......................................................................... 9 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................................ 11 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings ............................................................................................... 13 
 
Supplemental Schedule of the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) 
  and the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Grants Expenditures ......................................... 16 
 
Supplemental Schedule of the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) 
  and the Board of State and Community Corrections Grants Expenditures ............................................. 17 
 
 



 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

  
 

To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Mono 
Bridgeport, California 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of 
Mono, California (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements and have issued 
our report thereon dated April 9, 2021. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 



 

2 

Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Clovis, California 
April 9, 2021 
 



 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF 

FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE, SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 
OF THE CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (CALOES) AND THE DEPARTMENT  
OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION GRANTS EXPENDITURES, AND SUPPLEMENTAL  

SCHEDULE OF THE CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (CALOES)  
AND THE BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS GRANTS EXPENDITURES 

 
 

To the Board of Supervisors  
County of Mono 
Bridgeport, California  
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
 
We have audited the County of Mono, California’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.  The County’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States;  and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance.  
 



 

4 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the County of Mono, California, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.   
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
 
Management of the County of Mono, California, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance and 
Supplemental Schedules 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Mono, California, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
County’s basic financial statements.  We issued our report thereon dated April 9, 2021, which contained 
unmodified opinions on those financial statements.  Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming 
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.  The 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The 
accompanying Supplemental Schedule of California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) and the 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Grants Expenditures, and Supplemental Schedule of California 
Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) and the Board of State and Community Corrections Grants 
Expenditures are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by CalOES and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 



 

5 

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, the Supplemental Schedule of California Office of Emergency Services 
(CalOES) and the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Grants Expenditures, and the Supplemental 
Schedule of California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) and the Board of State and Community 
Corrections Grants Expenditures are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 

 
 
Clovis, California 
April 9, 2021 



 

6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

See Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards.  
7 

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-Through
Grantor's
Number

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

Total Federal
Disbursements
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through USDA Forest Service:

2019 USDA Forest Service 10.304 -- -$                         21,800$                 

Passed through State Department of Public Health:
WIC - Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) 10.557 -- -                           200,983

Passed through State Department of Social Services
10.561 -- -                          420,852                 

Passed through State Controller's Office:
Schools and Roads - Grants to States 10.665 PL114-10 -                          330,067                 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture -                          973,702                 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through State Dept. of Housing and Community Development:

Community Development Block Grant/State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 05-STBG-1384 -                          608,363                 
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 10-STBG-6730 -                          303,500                 
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 17-CDBG-12023 203,377               209,493                 

Subtotal CFDA 14.228 203,377               1,121,356              

HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 13-HOME-8996 -                           551,375
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 06-HOME-2359 -                           243,052
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 09-HOME-6259 -                          92,900                   

Subtotal CFDA 14.239 -                          887,327                 

Total U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development 203,377               2,008,683              

U.S. Department of the Interior
Bureau of Land Management:
Direct Program:

National Fish and Wildlife Foundation 15.663 -                           147,722
Bureau of Land Management:

Sagegrouse Cooperative Agreement 15.231 L19AC00319 -                          2,342                     

Total U.S. Department of the Interior -                          150,064                 

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:

Adult Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program-BJA 16.585 2018-DC-BX-0014 -                          76,077                   

Passed through State Office of Emergency Services:
Victim Witness Assistance Program 16.575 VW 18 28 0260 -                          141,204                 
Victim Witness Assistance Program 16.575 VW 19 29 0260 -                          159,999                 

Subtotal CFDA 16.575 -                          301,203                 

Total U.S. Department of Justice -                          377,280                 

U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through Employment Development Department via Kern

County ETR
WIA Cluster
Workforce Investment Act - Adult 17.258 -- -                           7,268
Workforce Investment Act - Youth 17.259 -- -                           8,177
Workforce Investment Act - Dislocated Worker 17.278 -- -                          13,703                   

Subtotal WIA Cluster -                          29,148                   

Total U.S. Department of Labor -                          29,148                   

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program

 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
(Continued) 

 

See Notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards.  
8 

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-Through
Grantor's
Number

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

Total Federal
Disbursements
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through California Dept. of Aging Via Inyo County

Aging Title III Part B 93.044 -- -                           9,095
Aging Title III Part C 93.045 -- -                           40,487
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 -- -                          6,876                     

Subtotal Aging Cluster -                          56,458                   

Passed through State Department of Social Services:
Family Preservation and Support Services 93.556 -- -                           10,000
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 -- -                           508,023
Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645 -- -                           10,586
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 -- -                           545,114
Adoption Assistance 93.659 -- -                           75,486
In-Home Supportive Services 93.667 -- -                           51,389
Independent Living 93.674 -- -                          11,851                   

Subtotal -                          1,212,449              

Passed through California Secretary of State:

Help America Vote Act (HAVA) 93.618 18G26126 -                          3,500                     

Passed through State Department of Health Services:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 -- -                          115,992                 

Pandemic Flu 93.268 -- -                          31,624                   
Immunization 93.268 -- -                          14,775                   

Subtotal CDFA 93.268 -                          46,399                   

Maternal and Child Health Services 93.994 -- -                          67,912                   

California Children's Services 93.767 -- -                           136,241
Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care 93.767 -- -                           4,570
Children's Health and Disability Prevention 93.767 -- -                          3,582                     

Subtotal CFDA 93.767 -                          144,393                 

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 -- -                          443,234                 

Hospital Emergency Preparedness and Response 93.889 -- -                          93,929                   

Ryan White/HIV Care Formula 93.917 -- -                           19,947
HIV/AIDS Surveillance 93.917 -- -                          2,374                     

Subtotal CFDA 93.917 -                          22,321                   

Passed through State Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance

Abuse (SAPT) 93.959 -- -                          422,157                 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services -                          2,628,744              

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through State Office of Emergency Services:

EOC Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 -                          100,718                 
Disaster Grant - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster) 97.036 -                          22,085                   

Subtotal CFDA 97.036 -                          122,803                 

2019 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) 97.042 -- -                          3,333                     

2019 State Homeland Security Grant 97.067 -- -                          86,465                   

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security -                          212,601                 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 203,377$             6,380,222$            

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

9 

NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards 
programs of the County of Mono.  The County of Mono, California (the “County”) reporting entity is defined in 
Note 1 to the County’s basic financial statements.  All federal awards received directly from federal agencies as 
well as federal awards passed through other government agencies are included in the schedule.  The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 
of the County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash 
flows of the County. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting for program expenditures accounted for in governmental funds and the accrual basis of accounting 
for expenditures accounted for in proprietary funds, as described in Note 1 of the County’s basic financial 
statements. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree, in all material 
respects, to amounts reported within the County’s financial statements.  Federal award revenues are reported 
principally in the County’s financial statements as intergovernmental revenues in the General and Special 
Revenue funds. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree, in all material 
respects, with the amounts reported in the related federal financial assistance reports.  
 
 
NOTE 5 - INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The County of Mono did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as described in 2 CFR 
§200.414.  Uniform Guidance, §200.510(6), requires the County of Mono to disclose whether or not it elected to 
use the 10 percent de minimis cost rate that §200.414(f) allows for nonfederal entities that have never received 
a negotiated indirect cost rate. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – PASS-THROUGH ENTITIES’ IDENTIFYING NUMBER 
 
When federal awards were received from a pass-through entity; the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards shows, if available, the identifying number assigned by the pass-through entity.  When the County 
determined that no identifying number is assigned for the program or the County was unable to obtain an 
identifying number from the pass-through entity, the County has indicated “-“ as the pass-through identifying 
number. 



COUNTY OF MONO 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

10 

NOTE 7 – DEPARTMENT OF AGING FEDERAL/STATE SHARE 
 
The California Department of Aging (CDA) requires agencies who receive CDA funding to display state-funded 
expenditures discretely along with federal expenditures.  The County expended the following state and federal 
amounts under these grants: 
 

CFDA Federal Expenditures State Expenditures

93.044 9,095$                       -$                          
93.045 40,487                       85,745                   
93.053 6,876                        -                            

56,458$                     85,745$                 
 

 
 
NOTE 8 – LOANS WITH CONTINUING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The programs listed below had federally funded loans outstanding as of July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020: 
 

CFDA Program Title July 1, 2019 June 30, 2020

Community Development Block Grant/State's Program
14.228   and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 911,863$       911,863$       

14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Program 887,327         887,327         

Total Amount Outstanding 1,799,190$    1,799,190$    

Amount Outstanding

 
 
 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

11 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified that
  are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
 Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified that
   are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
 for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
 to be reported in accordance with 2CFR
 section 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.228 Community Development Block Grant
14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
  and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
 

 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

12 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 
 
 
SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None reported. 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

13 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 
 
 
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
Finding 2019-001 (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Program: Block Grants for the Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 
CFDA Number: 93.959 
Federal Agency: Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed-Through: State Department of Health Care Services 
Award Number: 17-94143 
Passed-Through: State Department of Health Care Services 
Award Year: FY 2018 
Compliance Requirement: Activities Allowed or Unallowed/Allowable Costs – Payroll 
Questioned Costs: Unknown 
 
Criteria: 
In accordance with 2 CFR §200.303(a), a non-federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal control 
over the federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the non-federal entity is managing the federal 
award in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal award. 2CFR 
Part 200, Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) Section 200.430 requires that personnel expenses (payroll) charged to 
the federal awards must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed. These records must be 
supported by a system of internal controls which provides reasonable assurance that the charges are accurate, 
allowable, and properly allocated. 
 
Conditions Found: 
Out of the 40 payroll samples selected for testing, we noted the following exceptions: 
 

 We were unable to determine how payroll was tracked and charged from the County’s timekeeping 
system to the ShareCare Time Study system, to the Quarterly Federal Financial Management Reports 
(QFFMR) for all of the employees who provide direct services related to this program for the entire fiscal 
year. 
 

 There was no evidence to support that the hours reported in the ShareCare Time Study system were 
complete, accurate, or reviewed. 
 

 For the employees who have an indirect cost allocation charged to this program, we were unable to 
determine how payroll was tracked and charged from the County’s timekeeping system to the QFFMR 
for all of the employees who provide indirect services related to this program for the entire fiscal year. 

 
Cause: 
The County’s Behavioral Health Department did not have adequate documentation or systems in place to 
support how payroll was recorded and reported on the QFFMR. The Department also had internal personnel 
changes which also caused this issue as there was no documentation available for how the QFFMR’s were 
prepared and supported. 
 
Effect: 
Payroll related charges that are being reported on the QFFMR’s are not supported. The Behavioral Health 
Department may not be able to fully rely on the ShareCare Time Study system as there is no evidence to support 
the data is accurate and complete. 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

14 

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 
 
Finding 2019-001 (Significant Deficiency) (Continued) 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend the Behavioral Health Department create a formal process, so hours worked by Direct-charge 
employees are fully utilizing the ShareCare Time Study system. The ShareCare reports should be reviewed for 
accuracy and completeness. In addition, there should be evidence of that review and documented as such. 
Those reports will then be the basis for tracking the payroll charges being submitted on the QFFMR’s. Another 
process should also be created to detail how Indirect-charge employees’ time is tracked and reported on the 
QFFMR’s. All related reports should be reviewed for accuracy, completeness, and allowability in accordance with 
the program’s grant contract agreement, and should include evidence that this review took place and who 
performed it. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
 
Finding 2019-002 (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Program: Block Grants for the Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 
CFDA Number: 93.959 
Federal Agency: Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed-Through: State Department of Health Care Services 
Award Number: 17-94143 
Passed-Through: State Department of Health Care Services 
Award Year: FY 2018 
Compliance Requirement: Reporting 
Questioned Costs: Unknown 
 
Criteria: 
In accordance with 2 CFR §200.303(a), a non-federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal control 
over the federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the non-federal entity is managing the federal 
award in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal award. Per the 
program grant award agreement, the County shall submit the QFFMR and a quarterly general ledger detail 60 
days after quarter-end. 
 
Conditions Found: 
We found the following exceptions during our review of the reporting requirement: 
 

 The quarters ending September 2018, March 2019, and June 2019 were submitted past the 60-day 
window. 
 

 There is no supporting documentation for how the amounts listed on the QFFMR’s were derived or 
calculated for the quarters ending September 2018 and December 2018. 

 
Cause: 
The County’s Behavioral Health Department did not have adequate documentation or systems in place to 
support how (and if) this requirement was being met. The Department also had internal personnel changes which 
also caused this issue as there was no documentation available for how this requirement was being tracked. 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 
 

15 

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 
 
Finding 2019-002 (Significant Deficiency) (Continued) 
 
Effect: 
As this is a requirement noted in the program grant award agreement, the County could potentially delay or lose 
funding from this program if not supported or reported correctly. In addition, not having support or documentation 
for the QFFMR’s will create issues when preparing the subsequent versions of those reports for the next fiscal 
year. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend the Behavioral Health Department use the general ledger as a basis for the amounts reported on 
the QFFMR, and begin developing a reconciling worksheet to assist in the preparation of the QFFMR every 
quarter. We also recommend the reports be reviewed and submitted within the 60-day window after quarter end. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (CALOES) 

AND THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION GRANTS EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

16 

For the Period For the Year Cumulative
Through Ended As of Federal State County

Program June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020 Share Share Share

2018 HSGP
Personnel services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Operating expenses -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Equipment -                       86,465              86,465              86,465              -                       -                       

Total -$                     86,465$            86,465$            86,465$            -$                     -$                     

2018 EMPG
Personnel services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Operating expenses -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Equipment 249,500            -                       249,500            -                       -                       -                       

Total 249,500$          -$                     249,500$          -$                     -$                     -$                     

2019 EMPG
Personnel services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Operating expenses -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Equipment -                       6,666                6,666                3,333                -                       3,333                

Total -$                     6,666$              6,666$              3,333$              -$                     3,333$              

HMGP; FEMA-4240-DR-CA
Personnel services 3,858$              -$                     3,858$              -$                     -$                     -$                     
Operating expenses 40,232              -                       40,232              -                       -                       -                       
Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total 44,090$            -$                     44,090$            -$                     -$                     -$                     

Expenditures Claimed Current Year
Share of Expenditures

 
 
 



COUNTY OF MONO 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (CALOES) 

AND THE BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS GRANTS EXPENDITURES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

17 

For the Period For the Year Cumulative
Through Ended As of Federal State County

Program June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020 Share Share Share

Victim/Witness Assistance VW17-270-260
Personnel services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                    
Operating expenses 2,623                -                       2,623                -                       -                       -                      
Equipment 15,959              -                       15,959              -                       -                       -                      

Total 18,582$            -$                     18,582$            -$                     -$                     -$                    

Victim/Witness Assistance VW18-280-260
Personnel services 108,690$          52,848$            161,538$          52,848$            -$                     -$                    
Operating expenses 31,168              90,029              121,197            88,356              1,673                -                      
Equipment 9,116                -                       9,116                -                       -                       -                      

Total 148,974$          142,877$          291,851$          141,204$          1,673$              -$                    

Victim/Witness Assistance VW19-290-260
Personnel services -$                     160,290$          160,290$          147,976$          -$                     12,314$          
Operating expenses -                       15,455              15,455              12,023              3,432                -                      
Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

Total -$                     175,745$          175,745$          159,999$          3,432$              12,314$          

R.E.D. Grant; 394-17
Personnel services 8,023$              -$                     8,023$              -$                     -$                     -$                    
Operating expenses 15,060              -                       15,060              -                       -                       -                      
Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

Total 23,083$            -$                     23,083$            -$                     -$                     -$                    

JJCPA
Personnel services 32,652$            32,652$            65,304$            -$                     32,652$            -$                    
Operating expenses 160                   -                       160                   -                       -                       -                      
Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      

Total 32,812$            32,652$            65,464$            -$                     32,652$            -$                    

YOBG
Personnel services 69,542$            32,500$            102,042$          -$                     32,500$            -$                    
Operating expenses 56,977              17,233              74,210              -                       17,233              -                      
Equipment 1,424                -                       1,424                -                       -                       -                      

Total 127,943$          49,733$            177,676$          -$                     49,733$            -$                    

Share of Expenditures
Expenditures Claimed Current Year

 



MONO COUNTY AUDIT 
REPORTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 1



AGENDA 
ATTACHMENTS

Auditor Communications

• Significant Audit Matters
• Difficulties
• Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
• Disagreements
• Representations
• Consultations
• Findings

2019‐20 Mono County Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report

2019‐20 Mono County Single Audit Report

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 2



ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR 

NON‐ACCOUNTANTS

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 3



ACCOUNTING vs REPORTING

Accounting: accumulating and grouping 
transactions for internal tracking purposes
• Source of data for financial reporting for users
•Categorizing for accountability & tracking
• Funds
• Functions
•Budget Units
•Objects

• Standardization

1
Reporting: Communication of accounting data 
in ways that are meaningful to the users of that 
financial information
• Internal users vs External users
• Consolidation (columns)
• Aggregation (rows)
• Standardization

2

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 4



JULY 1 TO 
JUNE 30
Transactions

Balance sheet = Cash

Revenues = Deposits

Expenditures = 
• Payroll
• Vendor Invoices
• Interfund transactions (Journal 
Entries)

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 5



CLOSING 
THE BOOKS

Receivables

Payables

Expense Accruals

Long‐term Obligations

Capital Assets

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 6



TWO TYPES 
OF 
STATEMENTS

1. Balance Sheet: What we own and owe on a 
certain day with the difference being fund 
balance or net position

2. Income Statement: Change in the Balance 
Sheet from the beginning of a period to the 
end of a period

Historical costing basis / Not market value basis

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 7



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Two Kinds of Groups of Statements

Fund Statements: short‐term perspective 
looking out 90 days

• Receivables for revenues collected from 
July thru September of subsequent FY 
earned or pertaining to the prior FY

• Payables for expenditures paid from July 
thru September of subsequent FY for 
expenses incurred in prior FY

• No long‐term assets (capital assets)
• No long‐term obligations (bonds, 
pension, OPEB, compensated absences)

Government‐Wide Statements: long‐term 
perspective

• Longer‐term receivables & revenues
• Capital assets and depreciation
• Long‐term obligations

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 8



TIMELINE July–June

Cash Transactions

July–Sep.

Receivables and 
Payables

Aug.–Oct.

LT Obligations & Capital 
Assets

Oct.–Dec.

Audit

Nov.–Jan.

Financial Statements

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 9



ANATOMY OF 
THE ANNUAL 

REPORT

• Elimination of the acronym to address inclusivity

• INTRODUCTORY
• Transmittal letter
• Organization Chart
• Directory

• FINANCIAL
• Auditor’s Report
• Management’s Discussion and Analysis
• Basic Financial Statements

• Government Wide Statements
• Fund Statements
• Notes

• Required Supplementary Information
• Combining and individual Financial Statements

• STATISTICAL

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 10



RESULTS AND SELECTED 
INFORMATION
ANNUAL REPORT, SINGLE AUDIT REPORT, AND AUDIT 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 11



WHERE TO 
FIND THE FY 
2019‐20 
REPORTS

• Auditor‐Controller website under “Audits” & FY 2019‐2020 
Audits

• https://www.monocounty.ca.gov/auditor/page/fy‐2019‐2020‐
audits‐0

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 12



AUDIT RESULTS AND FINDINGS

Financial Audit

• “Clean Opinion” = Financial Statements 
are not materially misstated

• No material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal controls over 
financial reporting

Compliance Audit

• “Clean Opinion” = Federal Expenditures 
not materially misstated and materially 
complied with requirements having a 
direct and material effect

• No material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance

• Status of Prior year significant 
deficiencies = corrective action plan is 
implemented

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 13



MANAGEMENT’S 
DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS

• Net position increased $615,000 (2.63%) but 
unrestricted net position is deficit by $49 million (or 
205% of overall net position)

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 14



UNSPENT 
RESTRICTED 
RESOURCES

• Increased by $4 million (15.35%) and represents 
accumulation of restricted intergovernmental resources 
for future spending

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 15



CHANGES IN 
POSITION
• Governmental increased 
by $4.3 million, $2.2 
million better than last 
year.

• Business type decreased 
by $2.2 million because of 
closure‐post closure costs

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 16



CAPITAL ASSETS

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 17



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 18



WHAT WE OWED AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• Summary of accounting policies
• Cash & investments
• Interfund transactions & 
balances

• Capital assets
• Long‐term liabilities
• Closure and post closure liability

• Pension plan and pension 
liability

• Other post employment benefits
and OPEB liability

• Net position & fund balances
• Risk management
• Commitments & contingencies

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 20



PENSION LIABILITIES

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 21



OPEB LIABILITY

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 22



FEDERAL EXPENDITURES
Single Audit or Compliance audit of expenditures of federal awards

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 23



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 
AWARDS

U.S. AGENCY EXPENDITURES

Agriculture $973,702

Housing & Urban Development 2,008,683

Interior 150,064

Justice 377,280

Labor 29,148

Health & Human Services 2,628,744

Homeland Security 212,601

TOTALS $6,380,222

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 24



ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION

• Direct Awards + Pass thru State Agencies

• Expenditures included in Annual Financial Report

• Expenditures include share of indirect costs (A87)

• Audit major programs
• CDBG & HOME

• Loans with continuing compliance requirements

July 20, 2021 2019‐20 Mono County Annual Financial Reports 25



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: County Counsel and Human Resources
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Stacey Simon, County Counsel, Ryan
Roe, Acting HR DirectorSUBJECT Ordinance Repealing and Replacing

Chapter 2.68 of the Mono County
Code "Personnel System"

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed ordinance repealing Mono County Code Chapter 2.68 "Personnel System" which has been superseded by
Personnel Rules negotiated between the County and each of its employee bargaining units and adding language to Chapter

2.68 instead referencing the Personnel Rules.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of proposed ordinance. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Stacey Simon

PHONE/EMAIL: x1704 / ssimon@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Ordinance

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/14/2021 5:50 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 10:57 AM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25765&ItemID=13473

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25766&ItemID=13473


 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



County Counsel 
Stacey Simon 
 
Assistant County Counsels 
Christian E. Milovich 
Anne L. Frievalt 
 
Deputy County Counsel 
Emily R. Fox 

OFFICE OF THE 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Mono County 

 
South County Offices 

P.O. BOX 2415 
MAMMOTH LAKES, CALIFORNIA 93546 

Telephone 
760-924-1700 

Facsimile 
760-924-1701 

____________ 
 

Paralegal 
Kevin Moss 

 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Stacey Simon 
 
Date:  July 20, 2021 
 
Re: Ordinance amending Chapter 2.68 of the Mono County Code to reflect the current 

use of Personnel Rules applicable to individual bargaining units, rather than a 
codified Personnel System 

 
 
Recommended Action 
Introduce, read title and waive further reading of proposed ordinance amending Mono County 
Code Chapter 2.68 to eliminate the outdated Personnel System and replace it with a reference to 
adopted Personnel Rules for each Employee Bargaining Unit 
 
Strategic Plan Focus Areas Met 

 Economic Base       Infrastructure     Public Safety 
 Environmental Sustainability          Mono Best Place to Work 

 
Fiscal Impact 
None.   
 
Discussion 
This is purely a housekeeping matter.  It recently came to this office’s attention that the language 
of Mono County Code Chapter 2.68 “Personnel System”, which has been superseded and 
replaced by individual sets of Personnel Rules applicable to each bargaining unit (and with minor 
variations between units), remains codified in the County Code through historical omission.  In 
order to avoid confusion (and misinformation) related to these outdated and inoperable rules, it is 
proposed that the language in Chapter 2.68 be repealed. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item prior to your meeting, please call me at 760-924-
1704. 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ORD21-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

REPEALING MONO COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 2.68 
“PERSONNEL SYSTEM” WHICH HAS BEEN SUPERSEDED  

BY PERSONNEL RULES NEGOTIATED BETWEEN THE COUNTY  
AND EACH OF ITS EMPLOYEE BARGAINING UNITS  

 
WHEREAS, historically, Mono County’s personnel system was contained in Chapter 

2.68 of the Mono County Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, in or around 2010, the County updated the contents of that personnel 
system to create a set of “personnel rules” which it proposed for adoption to each of its employee 
bargaining units as part of the meet-and-confer process leading to the approval of memoranda of 
understanding (MOU) for those units.  These personnel rules were implemented as to each 
bargaining unit between 2010 and 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon execution of those MOUs, employees within the following bargaining 

units became subject to the personnel rules rather than to Chapter 2.68: (1) Mono County Public 
Employees (MCPE), (2) Deputy Sheriffs’ Association (DSA); (3) Public Safety Officers’ 
Association (PSOA); (4) Paramedic Fire Rescue Association (PFRA); and (5) Mono County 
Probation Officers’ Association (MCPOA); and 
 

WHEREAS, because Chapter 2.68 is outdated and inapplicable to the County’s 
represented employees, the Board of Supervisors wishes, as a housekeeping matter, to repeal 
Chapter 2.68 and replace it with a short reference to the applicable personnel rules; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO ORDAINS that: 
 
SECTION ONE:  Chapter 2.68 of the Mono County Code “Personnel System” is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and amended to read as follows: 
 
Section 2.68.010 
The personnel rules applicable to Mono County’s represented employees were adopted 
by each employee bargaining unit upon agreement to or implementation of a 
memorandum of understanding for that bargaining unit.  Adopted personnel rules remain 
in effect as to all employees within the applicable bargaining unit unless and until those 
rules are amended, repealed or replaced by formal action of the Board of Supervisors, 
following a meet-and-confer process where required. Reference in an employment 
contract to the “personnel system” or the “personnel rules” shall mean those personnel 
rules applicable to the Mono County Public Employees (MCPE) bargaining unit. 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

SECTION TWO :  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of its 
adoption and final passage, which appears immediately below.  The Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors shall post this ordinance and also publish it in the manner prescribed by Government 
Code Section 25124 no later than 15 days after the date of its adoption and final passage.  If the 
Clerk fails to publish this ordinance within said 15-day period, then the ordinance shall not take 
effect until 30 days after the date of publication. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, 

by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN : 

       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: County Counsel and Clerk
TIME REQUIRED 5 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Stacey Simon, County Counsel,
Scheereen Dedman, Acting Clerk-
Recorder-RegistrarSUBJECT Ordinance Amending Mono County

Code Section 3.52.050 - Assessment
Appeals Boards

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed ordinance amending Mono County Code Section 3.52.050 to align with changes in state law which eliminated
specified qualifications for members of County Assessment Appeals Boards in counties with populations under 200,000.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of proposed ordinance. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Stacey Simon

PHONE/EMAIL: 7606483270 / ssimon@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Ordinance

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/9/2021 2:46 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 1:31 PM Finance Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25772&ItemID=13483

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25764&ItemID=13483


 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



County Counsel 
Stacey Simon 
 
Assistant County Counsels 
Christian E. Milovich 
Anne L. Frievalt 
 
Deputy County Counsel 
Emily R. Fox 

OFFICE OF THE 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
Mono County 

 
South County Offices 

P.O. BOX 2415 
MAMMOTH LAKES, CALIFORNIA 93546 

Telephone 
760-924-1700 

Facsimile 
760-924-1701 

____________ 
 

Paralegal 
Kevin Moss 

 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Stacey Simon 
 
Date:  July 20, 2021 
 
Re: Ordinance updating Mono County Code provisions related to qualifications for 

Assessment Appeals Board members. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
Introduce, read title and waive further reading of proposed ordinance amending Mono County 
Code Section 3.52.050 to align with changes in state law which changed the required 
qualifications for members of county assessment appeals boards in counties having populations 
of less than 200,000. 
 
Strategic Plan Focus Areas Met 

 Economic Base       Infrastructure     Public Safety 
 Environmental Sustainability          Mono Best Place to Work 

 
Fiscal Impact 
None.   
 
Discussion 
In 1984 Mono County adopted rules related to the establishment and functioning of its 
Assessment Appeals Board (AAB), which are codified in Chapter 3.52 of the Mono County 
Code. Mono’s rules were consistent with state laws at that time, which required individuals 
appointed to serve on a County Assessment Appeals Board to have a minimum of five years 
professional experience in California as a certified public accountant or public accountant, a 
licensed real estate broker, an attorney, a property appraiser accredited by a nationally 
recognized professional organization, a property appraiser certified by the Office of Real Estate 
Appraisers, or a property appraiser certified by the State Board of Equalization. 
 
State law was subsequently amended to eliminate these requirements in counties having 
populations of less than 200,000, thereby making it appropriate for Mono County to amend its 
rules to align with state requirements. This change also broadens the potential pool of individuals 
who may be appointed to serve on Mono’s AAB, thereby addressing a longstanding issue of 
recruitment. The proposed language would reference the above qualifications as desirable 
qualifications, but confirm that they are not mandatory. 



 
 
 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item prior to your meeting, please call me at 760-924-
1704. 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ORD21-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

AMENDING MONO COUNTY CODE SECTION 3.52.050 
TO ALIGN WITH CHANGES IN STATE LAW 

WHICH CHANGED THE REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
FOR INDIVIDUALS SERVING ON COUNTY ASSESSMENT APPEAL S BOARDS 

IN COUNTIES WITH POPULATIONS OF LESS THAN 200,000 
 

 
WHEREAS, in 1984 Mono County enacted rules related to the establishment and 

functioning of its Assessment Appeals Board (AAB), which are codified in Chapter 3.52 of the 
Mono County Code; and  
 

WHEREAS, Mono County’s rules were consistent with state laws at that time which 
required individuals appointed to serve on County Assessment Appeals Boards to have at least 
five years of professional experience in one of several specified professions; and 
 

WHEREAS, subsequently, state law was amended to eliminate these requirements in 
counties having populations of less than 200,000, thereby making it appropriate for Mono 
County to amend its rules to follow state requirements; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO ORDAINS that: 
 
SECTION ONE:  Section 3.52.050 of the Mono County Code is hereby amended, in its 

entirety, to read as follows: 
 
3.52.050 “Qualifications” 

 
Any person whom the board of supervisors believes is possessed of or capable of 
acquiring competent knowledge of property appraisal and taxation may be appointed to 
the Assessment Appeals Board.  A typical, but not exclusive, way to achieve such 
competent knowledge would be five years or more of professional experience in 
California as one of the following: a certified public accountant or public accountant, a 
licensed real estate broker, an attorney, or a property appraiser accredited by a nationally 
recognized professional organization. No person shall be qualified to be a member of the 
assessment appeals board who has, within the three years immediately preceding his or 
her appointment, been an employee of the Mono County assessor's office. 

 
SECTION TWO :  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of its 

adoption and final passage, which appears immediately below.  The Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors shall post this ordinance and also publish it in the manner prescribed by Government 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

Code Section 25124 no later than 15 days after the date of its adoption and final passage.  If the 
Clerk fails to publish this ordinance within said 15-day period, then the ordinance shall not take 
effect until 30 days after the date of publication. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, 

by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN : 

       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Public Works
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Tony Dublino, Director of Public
WorksSUBJECT Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.28 of

the County Code - Camping

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Ordinance amending Chapter 7.28 Camping. Extends existing prohibitions on camping in county parks to include county
recreational facilities and community centers and associated parking areas.  Also prohibits camping on paved county roads
and within their rights-of-way. Provides exceptions relating to emergencies, special uses and where otherwise authorized by

action of the Board of Supervisors. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Following the Board's July 6th introduction of this item, it was discovered that the template ordinance used to make the
proposed revisions to Chapter 7.28 was out-of-date and did not reflect amendments made to that Chapter in 2016.  The
attached Ordinance proposes the same changes proposed on July 6th, includes the additional changes the Board directed
on July 6th, and adds the omitted 2016 changes.  Because it is substantively different from what was introduced on July 6th,
the Board must start the adoption process over.  Accordingly, it is recommended that the Board today introduce, read title,
and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Tony Dublino

PHONE/EMAIL: 7607096713 / tdublino@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Ordinance

 Exhibit A - Code

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25776&ItemID=13499

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25761&ItemID=13499

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25780&ItemID=13499


 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/14/2021 12:53 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 10:56 AM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

MONO COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
POST OFFICE BOX 457 • 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517 

760.932.5440 • Fax 760.932.5441 • monopw@mono.ca.gov • www.monocounty.ca.gov 

   

 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

Date: July 20, 2021 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

From: Tony Dublino, Director of Public Works  

Subject: Revisions to Mono County Code Chapter 7.28 - Camping 

 
Recommended Action: 

Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None.  
 
Discussion: 

Mono County Code Chapter 7.28 establishes restrictions on camping within certain areas of the 
County. The original resolution was adopted in 1964 and has been amended only once since in 1985 
to establish rules for camping in County-designated campgrounds. It’s fair to say that a lot has 
changed in regards to camping in Mono County over the last 55 years.  

As the Board is aware, various forms of dispersed camping have become a major topic of interest in 
our region over the last few years. The focus of much of the discussion revolves around how to 
adequately manage the dramatic increase in dispersed camping occurring on federal lands, but there 
are also issues that impact County properties and infrastructure.  

Similar to the increases in camping on federal lands, the communities of Mono County have also seen 
increases in the utilization of parks, parking lots, and roads for camping. Camping is loosely defined 
by the 1964 Ordinance as “the act of occupying any ground or spot upon which tents, vehicles, huts, 
trailers, semitrailers or any such device for shelter is placed,” but it did not expressly prohibit the act. 
The ordinance placed specific restrictions on the activity in certain locations, generally relating to time 
limits and the need to be present at the campsite. It stands to reason the Board was addressing a 
1964 issue with this code section.  

In 2021, we have different issues to address. With the advent of self-contained camping vans and 
RV’s, individuals can simply find a place to park, enjoy the amenities at hand, and retreat to the 
confines of their vehicle to cook a meal and go to bed.  

This is not necessarily problematic as a one-off occurrence, and this kind of activity has been 
overlooked for many years, but when the individual has turned into three individuals and three has 
turned to six, and some decide to stay at the same parking lot for 3 nights, you have a de facto 
campground.  

This scenario has unfolded at County Parks several times over the last 2 years. Camping in County 
Parks was prohibited by the 1964 ordinance, so County staff responded to these situations by re-
establishing signage in all County Parks to make people aware of the prohibition there.  

But other areas such as Community Centers and neighborhood streets have no such prohibition.  



Board of Supervisors Agenda Item July 6, 2021 
Revisions to Code Chapter 7.28 - Camping  Page 2 of 2 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

Over the last 2 years, the County has received complaints from community residents of people 
camping on the street in their communities. Some people make themselves at home, even setting out 
chairs and barbeques along residential streets.  

It is staff’s belief that the roads, community centers, and parks of Mono County are not intended for 
this use, even if it is low-profile in nature. The proposed Ordinance would revise the County Code to 
prohibit ‘camping’ in all of these areas. The intent is to place signage in prominent locations near the 
entrances of communities, to discourage the activity within communities and, hopefully displace it to 
the federal lands beyond the community boundaries.  

 

Revisions following July 6 dicsussion:  

During Board discussion on July 6, two revisions were made to the Ordinance. The first clarified that 
parking lots are defined parts of County Parks and Facilities, and the second added an exception 
pertaining to any response the Board may find necessary relating to the housing crisis.  

Following the Board's July 6th introduction of the Ordinance it was discovered that the template 
ordinance used to make the proposed revisions to Chapter 7.28 was out-of-date and did not reflect 
amendments made to that Chapter in 2016.  The attached Ordinance proposes the same changes 
proposed on July 6th, includes the additional changes the Board directed on July 6th, and adds the 
omitted 2016 changes.  Because it is substantively different from what was introduced on July 6th, the 
Board must start the adoption process over, and introduce, read title, and waive further reading of the 
ordinance, with adoption at the next available meeting.  

If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact me at 760-932-5459.  I may also be 
contacted by email at tdublino@mono.ca.gov.  

 
Respectfully, 

 
Tony Dublino 
Director of Public Works 
 
Attached: Draft Ordinance 
 

mailto:tdublino@mono.ca.gov


1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 1 - 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ORD21-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 7.28 OF THE MONO COUNTY CODE PERTAINING TO CAMPING 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Mono is experiencing an increasing amount of recreational 

camping in areas outside of designated County campgrounds or other authorized campsites or 
dispersed camping areas on federal lands within the County, and in particular on County roads, 
including in residential areas and in or around other County facilities, including community 
centers and recreation facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, such camping activities are often associated with health and safety impacts, 
for example, camping on or alongside a County road interferes with roadway traffic and creates a 
hazard for other vehicles and, further, if the road is in a residential area, such camping disrupts 
the residential neighborhood character; and    

 
WHEREAS, camping in or around County community centers and recreation facilities 

has resulted in accumulations of trash and human and animal waste, vandalism and unsafe 
campfires in areas designed for day use and children’s play.  When encampments in these public 
locations are vacated, it is common for County staff to remove human and animal waste and 
substantial amounts of trash and debris; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mono County Code (MCC) Chapter 7.28 sets forth policies pertaining to 

camping within the unincorporated area of the County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors now wishes to amend MCC 

Chapter 7.28 to strengthen and clarify restrictions on camping, including camping on paved 
County roads (or adjacent right-of-way) and in County owned or maintained day-use parks, 
community centers and recreation facilities in order to protect and preserve the health, safety and 
welfare of the inhabitants of the County of Mono; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendments to MCC Chapter 7.28 are intended to address the public 

health and safety concerns outlined above including fire risk, unsanitary conditions, public safety 
hazards and environmental degradation, associated with unauthorized camping on or along 
County roads and in or around County facilities and community centers; and 

 
WHEREAS, even with these restrictions on camping in or around County facilities and 

on or alongside paved County roads, there are ample public camping sites, dispersed camping 
areas and other areas available within Mono County for public use; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has evaluated the environmental effects of this ordinance and 

finds the adoption of the ordinance to be exempt under Sections 15307 and 15308 of the 
Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act and under 
Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Code of Regulations. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

 

- 2 - 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

MONO ORDAINS that: 
 
SECTION ONE: Chapter 7.28 of the Mono County Code is replaced in entirety with 

Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
SECTION TWO:  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of its 

adoption and final passage, which appears immediately below.  The Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors shall post this ordinance and also publish it in the manner prescribed by Government 
Code Section 25124 no later than 15 days after the date of its adoption and final passage.  If the 
Clerk fails to publish this ordinance within said 15-day period, then the ordinance shall not take 
effect until 30 days after the date of publication. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, 

by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 



EXHIBIT A 

MONO COUNTY CODE Chapter 7.28 - CAMPING  

7.28.010 - Definitions.  

 

As used in this chapter:  
 
A. "Camp" or “Camping” means the act of occupying any ground or spot upon which tents,  

vehicles, huts, trailers, semitrailers or any such device for shelter is placed for any period of time 
between sunset and sunrise.  
 

B. “County Park” means all County Parks, Community Centers and Recreation Facilities and 
accompanying parking lots.  

 
C. “Paved County Road” are those roads maintained by Mono County, listed on the County’s 

Maintained Road Mileage as “paved”, and which are generally located within the residential 
communities of the County. 

     
D. "Semitrailer" means a vehicle designed for carrying persons or property and having one or more 

axles, and one or more wheels used in conjunction with a motor vehicle and so constructed that 
some part of its weight and that of its load rests upon or is carried by another vehicle. 

  
E. "Trailer" means a vehicle designed for carrying persons or property on its own structure and for 

being drawn by a motor vehicle and so constructed that no part of its weight rests upon any 
other vehicle. 

 
F. "Vehicle" means a device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may be propelled, 

moved or drawn upon a highway, excepting a device moved by human power or used 
exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks.  

 
7.28.020 – Restrictions. 

 

A. Camping in County Parks. No person shall camp in any area designated as a "County Park", with 
the exception of temporary camping in support, or as a result, of an emergency incident such as 
fire or flood. Such temporary emergency use may be approved by the Director of Public Works 
from time to time, as dictated by emergency needs. 
  

B. Camping on paved County Roads. Camping on, or alongside, a Paved County Road is strictly 
prohibited.   

 

7.28.030 - Exceptions.  

 

A. Not inclusive in this chapter are vehicles, trailers, semitrailers or other wheeled or skidded 
vehicles authorized by authorized representatives of the county or by law.  
 

B. Camping on land owned or controlled by the County may be permitted through a Special Event 
Permit, issued pursuant to Mono County Code Chapter 5.50, from time to time.  

 
C. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Ordinance, the Board of Supervisors may 

designate specific county properties, including a County Park or Paved County Road, for 
overnight use in its discretion. 
 

7.28.040 - Violation—Infraction.  

 

Any person or persons who violates any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of an infraction.  
 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

7.28.050 - Violation—Vehicle removal.  

 

Any vehicle, trailer, semitrailer, camp or other item of occupancy found in violation of this chapter 
shall, upon the presence of signs so notifying campers of the fact of this chapter, be removed, towed 
away or otherwise taken from the area occupied at no expense to the county or its authorized agents, 
representatives or departments.  
 

7.28.060 - Enforcement.  

 

Enforcement of this chapter shall be by Mono County Code Enforcement, pursuant to Chapter 1.12, 
as well as any peace officer, special deputy or regular deputy of the Mono County Sheriff's office.  
 

7.28.070 - Sign placement.  

 

Appropriate signs and placement thereof shall be the obligation of the Mono County public works 
department or their agents, representatives or personnel or subclassification.  
 

7.28.080 - Rules and regulations for Camping in County Designated Campgrounds.  

 

A. No person shall discharge sewage or other waste, or the effluent of treated sewage or other 
waste, in any manner which will result in contamination, pollution or a nuisance.  
 

B. No person shall cut, deface or harm any standing tree, dead or alive, within the campground 
area.  

 
C. No person shall start or maintain a campfire within any county-operated campground if the 

Mono County sheriff, board of supervisors, or the county public works director has determined 
in writing that fire danger in the area is extreme and a notice informing the public of the 
prohibition has been posted at the campground fee station. 

1. For purposes of this section, and except as provided in subsection 2, the 
determination of whether fire danger is extreme shall be made based on factors 
including, but not limited to, climate, precipitation, and wind forecasts, and may include 
consultation with the chief of the fire protection district in which the campground is 
located (if any) and/or with the National Forest unit for the region. 
2. If fires are prohibited at campgrounds within the National Forest for the region, then 
it shall be presumed that fire danger is extreme and, upon written declaration by the 
sheriff, board of supervisors or public works director that fire danger is extreme in the 
area, signs shall be posted informing the public of the prohibition. 
3. A violation of this section is punishable by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars 
or by imprisonment in county jail for up to six months, or by both that fine and 
imprisonment. 

 

D. No person shall litter or leave a campsite without placing all refuse, trash, cans and bottles having 
been placed in appropriate refuse containers.  
 

E. Vehicles, trailers and/or other personal property shall not be left unattended for more than 
seventy-two hours in a county campground. Any such vehicles or personal property left 
unattended for more than seventy-two hours may be cited or removed by county.  

 
F.  No person shall have any animal or pet within a county campground except on a leash, not to 

exceed ten feet in length. No animal or pet shall be left unattended within a county campground.  



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

Departments: Public Works - Solid Waste
TIME REQUIRED 30 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Justin Nalder, Solid Waste
SuperintendentSUBJECT Countywide Solid Waste Services

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Discussion of Proposals and Recommendation for next steps on Countywide Solid Waste Services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive summary report on the work of the evaluation committee and provide any direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
A precise fiscal impact is unknown at this time. Fiscal impact will be significantly different between alternatives, but it is clear
there will be financial impacts to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, the General Fund and to the citizens of Mono County by
way of tipping fees. These impacts may carry over into the General Fund if not offset by increased tipping fees. Today’s
item will provide a sense of assumed fiscal impacts, with a more precise fiscal impact possible upon the presentation of a
negotiated final agreement, as directed by the Board.

CONTACT NAME: Justin Nalder

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325453 / jnalder@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/15/2021 11:23 AM County Counsel Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25781&ItemID=13435


 7/15/2021 12:25 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:17 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 MONO COUNTY 
 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 SOLID WASTE DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 457 � 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET � BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517  

760.932.5440 � FAX 760.932.5441 � monopw@mono.ca.gov � www.monocounty.ca.gov 
 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

 
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 
 
From: Justin Nalder, Solid Waste Superintendent 
 
Date: July 20, 2021 
 
Subject: Update on Evaluation of Proposals and next steps on Countywide Solid Waste Services 
 
 
Recommended Action: 

Receive summary report on the work of the evaluation committee and provide any direction to staff. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

A precise fiscal impact is unknown at this time. Fiscal impact will be significantly different between 
alternatives, but it is clear there will be financial impacts to the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, the 
General Fund and to the citizens of Mono County by way of tipping fees. These impacts may carry 
over into the General Fund if not offset by increased tipping fees. Today’s item will provide a sense of 
assumed fiscal impacts, with a more precise fiscal impact possible upon the presentation of a 
negotiated final agreement, as directed by the Board.  
 

Discussion: 

Background 
Since 2010, the County has been researching and developing plans for a solid waste system to replace 
the services currently provided at Benton Crossing Landfill which is slated for closure on January 1, 
2023.  
 
These efforts began as early as 2010 with the HDR Report, which provided many recommendations for 
the County’s Solid Waste system (that have since been accomplished) and analyzed several options for 
a system that could be implemented in the future. Those and other options continued to be analyzed by 
Solid Waste staff and the County’s Solid Waste Task Force over the ensuing years. Solid Waste Task 
Force recommendations were brought before the Board on two separate occasions in 2017 and 2018, 
describing future needs and services the group recommended to be in place by 2023.  
 
Those recommendations were used in the development of a Request for Information (RFI) for 
Regional Solid Waste Services in 2018. The responses helped with the preparation of a Request for 
Proposals from Waste Haulers for Countywide Waste Management Services.  
 
 
 
Request for Proposals 



 
July 20, 2021 RFP Countywide Solid Waste Services Page 2 of 6 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

An initial RFP was produced in 2019 and peer-reviewed by an industry consulting firm before 
involving the services of a specialized solid waste attorney who directed the County on further 
development of the RFP, and the associated contracts. The RFP was finally distributed on March 26, 
2021 with a two-month response period. The RFP was distributed through the Bid Management 
System, sent to known contractors operating in/near the Mono County region, as well as directly 
provided to interested parties already on contract with Mono County.  
 
The primary intent of the RFP (as with most RFPs) was to receive the most cost-effective proposals 
possible for the services that we need. The RFP was structured allow proposers to choose their means 
and methods of providing the requested services while trying to limit ‘cherry picking’ of profitable 
services while refusing to provide service for unprofitable waste streams. The County also requested 
proposers to provide for a ‘county ownership option,’ so the County would be ensured that it would not 
find itself without any viable solid waste infrastructure in 20 years, and beholden to a contractor’s 
whim. 
 
The RFP was drafted so interested parties could choose to propose on multiple services or on 
individual services. The concept was that this would generate as much interest and competition as 
possible while allowing for creative business models to address County needs as well as upcoming 
state mandates.  
 
In addition to providing services following the closure of Benton Crossing Landfill, the RFP also 
requested proposals on the operation of the County’s six Transfer Stations, as well as waste hauling 
from County facilities, with an opportunity to provide ‘volume discounts’ if one company received 
multiple contracts. 
 
Despite efforts at soliciting a diverse response of proposals from a variety of contractors across the 
region, the County did not receive a single responsive proposal specific to the primary service of 
providing an Integrated Materials Management Center with Long-Haul Transport. During later 
interviews, the concept of an IMMC was discussed in further detail, and evaluators become aware of 
the proposer’s conceptual business plans for the service. Proposers indicated that the RFP was too 
restrictive for them to properly explain their comprehensive proposals within the confines of our 
proposal forms.   
 
The County received proposals on independent services as follows: 

• Disposal Services – Waste Management 
• Household Hazardous Waste – Clean Harbors 
• Operation of County Satellite Transfer Stations –  

o Mammoth Disposal  
o D&S Waste Removal  
o Olcese 

• Collection and Hauling of Waste and Recycling from County Facilities – 
o Mammoth Disposal 
o D&S Waste Removal 

 
Services with no response: 

• Transfer Services 
• Transport of Waste Material 
• Materials Management 



 
July 20, 2021 RFP Countywide Solid Waste Services Page 3 of 6 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

o Treated Wood 
o Inerts 
o C&D Debris 
o Green Waste / Wood Waste 
o Tires 
o Scrap Metal / White Goods 
o Recyclables: Beverage Containers / Old Corrugated Cardboard / Mixed Paper 
o Carpet 
o Mattresses 
o E-Waste 
o Universal Waste 
o Automobiles 
o Mobile Homes 
o Trailers 

 
Review of submitted proposals was conducted by the RFP evaluation committee which consisted of 
the Solid Waste Superintendent, the Director of Public Works, a Sacramento-based solid waste 
industry consultant, and a solid waste system manager from another California County. Each service 
was evaluated independently, followed by interview and a cost analysis. The RFP provides the 
allowance for rejecting all proposals in the event the Board does not believe any of the proposals 
provide for the best system for the residents of the County, or for any other reason.  
 
Apples to Apples 
Unfortunately, none of the proposers submitted completely responsive proposals on the provided 
response forms, which would have made an apples-to-apples comparison possible. Instead, proposers 
simply provided information and pricing on their business models, with services they wanted to 
provide to the County, without regard for the in-depth proposal forms the County had developed which 
specifically requested price/ton breakdown by waste stream. The business models of the proposers 
took on very different approaches, which makes a direct comparison impossible.  
 
Relevant Considerations 
In planning the future of Mono County’s solid waste system, staff believes there are several important 
factors to be considered: 
  

• Regionalization – In our rural setting there are great benefits to maximizing economies of scale. 
Specifically, we are presented with the option of continuing to combine and consolidate 
services along with waste from the Town of Mammoth Lakes. 

• Regulatory Compliance – The State of California continues to be on the leading edge of 
diversion, recycling and renewable energy policy implementation. We are already aware of 
several upcoming regulations as they relate to reduction of landfilled waste and reduction to 
greenhouse gas emissions. Proposals received have very different business models on how to 
address existing and upcoming regulatory changes. 

• Cost to the Customer – Residents of Mono County currently pay both a Solid Waste Parcel Fee, 
which pays for many preliminary and post-closure monitoring and maintenance activities on 
County landfills, as well as a tipping fee with scheduled specific to the facility. No changes are 
proposed to parcel fees. However, it is expected that the cost/ton and likely the minimum gate 
fee will increase. This change will be a definite result of the decision to export all municipal 
solid waste instead of landfilling.  



 
July 20, 2021 RFP Countywide Solid Waste Services Page 4 of 6 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

• Convenience to the Customer - how will these proposals impact the distance traveled to a 
transfer station site or a landfill site? Will all services be provided at each site?  

• Long-Term Disposal Security – The RFP promoted the option of County ownership for any 
newly developed Integrated Materials Management Center (IMMC), or long-haul transfer 
station, after a 20-year term. None of the proposals received offered a county ownership option. 
This begs the question of the County’s solid waste services future beyond that 20-year marker. 

• Capital Costs – Depending on the direction received from the Board there may be up-front 
costs required to provide necessary services. Specifically, if the County builds its own IMMC it 
would likely require obtaining a loan.  

• County Capacity – Any services which are currently under contract which are considered for 
County operation would need to also consider necessary increase of staff and equipment. 

• Fate of Existing Solid Waste Division – some of these proposals would reduce or eliminate the 
work currently performed by several valued County employees (by transferring it to a private 
firm) and would necessitate the transfer or re-assignment of those employees.  

• Annual Operating / Maintenance / Liability Costs – Additions to County assets will increase 
annual costs of operation, maintenance, and liability. These potential increases have been 
considered in the cost/ton to customer evaluation and can be referenced in the Proposal 
Summary below. 

 
Proposals Received 
Disposal Services The County received one responsive proposal by Waste Management for their 
Lockwood Facility near Sparks, NV. This opportunity allows for a Disposal Rate Period of $20.28 per 
ton for waste delivered to their facility, should the County transfer waste to their facility for disposal.  
 
Household Hazardous Waste Clean Harbors included a proposal for categorization, packaging, 
transport and disposal/recycling of Household Hazardous Waste which as an individual service 
proposal under the option service category. This is essentially the same exact service we currently have 
on contract with Clean Harbors. This service is based upon a fee schedule and is entirely dependent 
upon type and amount of household hazardous materials collected. Annual service fees are estimated at 
$27,000 per year. 
 
Operation of County Satellite Transfer Stations This was the most popular service solicited with 
three responses. The County maintains 6 transfer stations, two of which also operate as limited 
landfills. This service ensures that convenient solid waste disposal options are available, outside of 
curbside and special collection service. Self-haulers from the community of Crowley Lake may have 
the furthest distance to a County solid waste facility with the option of Paradise Transfer Station or use 
of Mammoth Disposal’s transfer station in the Town of Mammoth Lakes. Under this RFP, all 
municipal solid waste collected at satellite transfer stations will be consolidated and exported out of 
County. 
 
Mammoth Disposal proposed to do this by collecting and consolidating MSW through their facility 
located in Mammoth and long-hauling out of state. Mammoth Disposal is currently in the process of 
building this structure and plans to be operational by the end of next year. This facility would be 
available for self-haul disposal to both Mammoth residents as well as residents of Unincorporated 
Mono County.  
D&S proposed to operate the satellite transfer stations by collecting and consolidating waste through 
one of their facilities which could include a transfer station in Yerington, NV, a transfer station in 



 
July 20, 2021 RFP Countywide Solid Waste Services Page 5 of 6 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

Smith, NV or through a new facility being pursued along Highway 167 in the Mono Basin. This new 
facility, if developed, would not be open self-haul disposal. 
 
 
Collection and Hauling of Waste/Recycling from County Facilities Proposals were received from 
two of the same proposers, both of whom have existing contracts with the County for solid waste 
services. The results of may be contracted as a stand-alone item or may be included into a more 
comprehensive contract of services.  
 
 
Transfer Services  
Considering that no responsive proposals were received which addressed transfer services or an 
Integrated Materials Management Center, the top two submittals from the Satellite Transfer Services 
were offered an interview to provide an opportunity for them to explain their business model which 
they were unable to submit by way of RFP response format. The evaluation committee had a series of 
questions which were posed to entities to gather sufficient information and allow comparative ranking 
through the scoring criteria developed.  
 
The following table is representative of comprehensive proposals and not individual service proposals. 
 
 D&S Waste Removal Mammoth Disposal Mono County 
Tipping Fee (Price/Ton) Additional 

Negotiation 
Needed 

Additional 
Negotiation Needed 

 

IMMC Location Hwy 167 (N. Mono 
Lake) 

Mammoth Pumice Valley Landfill 

County Ownership Opt. No No Yes 
Annual CPI Increases Yes Yes No 
Term (Years) 20 20 Indefinite 
Regulatory Reporting No Yes Yes 
Cash Handling by County Yes No Yes 
 
Final Considerations 
A major part of reviewing and selecting preferred proposals must include costs, both to the County and 
to the customer. Although the RFP responses and subsequent interviews allowed evaluators to make 
some assumptions relating to cost, the proposers did not submit or commit to hard costs per ton in their 
proposals. Staff believes those costs can be ascertained through additional negotiations. Based on the 
submitted proposals, interview comments and subsequent analysis, it appears that cost increases to the 
customer will be in the order of 40% to 60%, depending on waste stream. It can reasonably be assumed 
that all waste streams will see an adjustment to account for actual cost of handling/disposal. The three 
largest waste streams received by way of tonnage are MSW, C&D and Green/Wood Waste. 
 
Until staff is able to obtain specific prices per ton for key waste streams, it will be impossible to 
recommend next steps to the Board. This is why additional negotiations are needed. Once obtained, it 
will be possible for the Board to consider those costs, and determine their preference, in consideration 
of the regional and regulatory issues at play, the costs to customer, and future waste security control. 
 
Cordially, 



 
July 20, 2021 RFP Countywide Solid Waste Services Page 6 of 6 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

 
 
Justin Nalder 
Solid Waste Superintendent 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 54957.6. Agency designated representative(s):
Bob Lawton, Stacey Simon, Janet Dutcher, and Anne Frievalt. Employee Organization(s): Mono County Sheriff's Officers

Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public Employees (MCPE)
and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Public

Safety Officers Association (PSO). Unrepresented employees: All.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Public Employee
Evaluation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Public Employment

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT. Government Code section 54957. Title: Paramedic I.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/9/2021 2:49 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/13/2021 10:54 AM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:18 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE July 20, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Exposure to
Litigation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9. Number of potential cases: One.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 7/14/2021 12:46 PM County Counsel Yes

 7/14/2021 12:27 PM Finance Yes

 7/16/2021 1:19 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);

	Meeting Agenda
	#2A - Pretrial, Probation, and Parole Week Proclamation
	#5A - Contract for Assessor's Counsel
	#5B - Behavioral Health Department Restructure
	#5C - Used Oil Opportunity Grant (OPP12) Application
	#5D - Claim for Damages - Adam Flores
	#5E - Interagency Assistance Mutual Aid and Joint Training Agreement
	#6A - Application for Alcoholic Beverage License - Mono Inn LLC
	#6B - Proposed Southern California Edison Control-Silver Peak Project Notice
	#7A - 2021 Supervisorial Redistricting Update
	#7B - COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update
	#7C - Mono County Audit Reports for FY 2019-20
	#7D - Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 2.68 of the Mono County Code "Personnel System"
	#7E - Ordinance Amending Mono County Code Section 3.52.050 - Assessment Appeals Boards
	#7F - Ordinance Amending Chapter 7.28 of the County Code - Camping
	#7G - Countywide Solid Waste Services
	#9A - Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	#9B - Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation
	#9C - Closed Session - Public Employment
	#9D - Closed Session - Exposure to Litigation



